Nen Haspihive THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

DCT e

William Cass, P.E. Sevkd Ridyigtie, RE
e Assistant Commissioner
Commissioner i
Andre Briere, Colonel, USAF (RET)
Deputy Commissioner
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council November 7, 2024

State House
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to amend an agreement with Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. (Vendor 177511), Keene, NH, Project #’s 68033D; 68034D, by increasing the price
limitation by $66,600, from $1,132,200 to $1,198,800, effective upon Governor and Council approval,
with no change to the end date of June 30, 2025. The original agreement was approved by Governor and
Council on June 14, 2023, Item #60. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this amendment is available in the Fiscal year 2025 budget:

04-96-96-964010-2916 FY 2025

Public Transportation

072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $66,600
EXPLANATION

NHDOT has approved a request to amend funding from Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section
5311 Rural Area Formula Program by $51,400, from $828,000 to $879,400, and approved an increase for
FTA Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Individuals with Disabilities Program by $15,200,
from $304,200 to $319,400, for a total priced limitation increase of $66,600. Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. (SC8) provides transportation services in Sullivan County utilizing Section 5311 and 5310
funds to support eligible activities including operating, capital, mobility management, and volunteer
driver programs.

SCS is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation, including
transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities, in Sullivan County as Sullivan County
Transportation. Inclusive of this amendment, SCS will receive $51,400 of FTA Section 5311 funds and
$15,200 of FTA Section 5310 funds for an amended agreement total of $1,198,800. Details relative to
each funding program and SCS’s award of these funds are outlined below.

The Department’s SFY 2025 operating budget includes funds from both Section 5311 and Section 5310
that provides funds for capital, planning, operating assistance, contracted services and mobility
management for public transportation in rural areas with populations of less than 50,000, seniors and
individuals with disabilities in New Hampshire.

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING s 7 HAZEN DRIVE » P.O. BOX 483 » CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE: (603) 271-3734 « FAX: (603) 271-3914 « TDD: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 sWWW.NHDOT.COM



SCS, in conjunction with its regional partners as appllcable will provide the remaining required non-
federal matching funds. In the event that Federal Funds become unavailable, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

The Amendment has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department has verified the necessary funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2025 budget.

Copies of the fully executed Agreement are on file|at the Secretary of State’s Office and the Department
of Administrative Services, and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the
Department of Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

William J. Cass, P.E.
Commissioner

Attachments




EXHIBIT C

BUDGET|(REVISED)
SFY ‘SFY - .
Propnaiy Bunding zl(]24 3025 Amendment | Revised Total
FTA Scction 5311 |
Administration $178,000 | $178.000 (-51.451) $354.549
Capital Preventive Maintenance $28.000 1 $28.000 £9,600 $65,600
Capital ADA 50 30 20 30
Opurating $208.000 | $208.000 533,251 $449,251
all Transi - . Prou TAPY - F
Rl‘.ll‘«:ll an?ll_ }\bb!bldnct‘l roara!u (R /\! ) $0 $0 $10,000 $10.000
eligible training & technical assistance
Total FTA Section 5311 Funding S414,000 | $414,000 $31,400 5879,400
| FTA Scction 5310
Contracted Scrvices $50.000 | $30.000 $15,200 $115,200
| Mobility Managcment — | $31.340 | $31.340 30 562,680
Regional Mobility Management $70,760 | $70.760 Sh S$141,520
Total FTA 3310 Funding SlSI‘Z,lUU S5152,100 $15,200 $319.400
i
Total FTA Federal Funds | $566.100 | $566.100 | $66.600 | $1,198,800
[

Amended Total Grant Funding ]

1,198,800

h. Funds are contingenr upon Federal appropriations.




IN WITNESS WIHEREOYF, the Parties hereto have sct their hands to the date first-written

above.
I

Southwestern Community Services, I[ne.

By:
Beth Daniels. CEQ

NH Department of Transportation ;

.

Bv: s

Print |

Approved by Attornev General

e

ime and Title M—iélﬁm[zd\’v

Prim Nafe and TitTe 7 3 ’ . ;
/ 26 et /;m’t‘a,}

Approved by Governor and Council

G &C liem number: G &C Mecting Dute:

g/
INtErsS  Director of Acronautics, Rail & Transit

Datc: a”/w"“é" 2(3. Z&Zﬁ
A iéz)r/){.%




SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT

Amendment i
Certificate of Good Standing
Certificate of Corporate Volte
Certificate of Insurance |
FTA Certifications and Assurances
FTA Master Agreement
2 CFR Part 200
FTA Section 5310
FTA Section 5311

G&C ltem 60 Approved ! June 14, 2023




State of New Hampshire

Department of State
|

CLERTIFICATE

[. David M. Sconlan, Secretary of State of the State vf New Hampshive, do hereby certity that SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY
SERVICES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered 1o transact business in New Hampshire on May 19, 1965,
[ further certity that all tees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s oftice have been received und is in good standing

as for as this office is concerned.

Business [ 63514
Certificate Number: 0006663003

: IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF,
! icreto set my hand and cause o be affixed

the Seal of the Siate of New Hampshire,

this Sth day of April A.D. 2024,

David M. Scanian

Secretary of Stale




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Kevin Watterson , hereby cerlify thal:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatary)

1. am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Southwestern Community Services, Inc
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 14 .20 24  atwhich a quorun‘r of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Date)

|

i

VOTED: That __Beth Daniels ! {may list more than one person)
{Name and Title of Contract Signatory) I ;

is duly authorized on behalf of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
the State E :
{Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of Nev}v Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her

judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this cen;nﬁcate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed
above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that|they have full authority 1o bind the corporation. To the
extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the carporation in contracts with the
State of New Hampshire, al! such limitations are expressly|stated herem

pates_O @\ e (Q /(M

Signature of Etected Officer
Name:
Title:

Rev. 03/24/20




DATE {MWDD/YYYY}

P s | >
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIAIBILITY INSURANCE 1211912023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY ANI? CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

tMPORTYANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the polis:y(ias) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such andorsemant(s).

PRODUGER CONTACT  ana ODonnelt, CPIW, CIC
The Hilb Group New England, LLC PHONE . (B77)352-2121 e
PO Box 605 aDpress:  acdonnell@hilbgroup.com
H INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Keene NH 03431 {| nsurer A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co 18058
INSURED '| wsurerg: Granite State Healthcare & Human Services Trust

Southwestern Community Services Inc, INSURER € -

63 Community Way INSURER D :

PO Box 603 | INSURER E :

Keene NH 03431 ! wsuRERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24125 ! REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABCVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY|CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

[TNER RDODLSUSH POLICYEFF | POLKCY EXP
TR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WD POLICY NUMBER | {MMDDAYYYY) | (MMDDYYYY) LIMITS
¢} COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY [ EACH OCCURRENCE s 1.000,000
| ["OARAGE TO RENTED
l CLAIMS-MADE Iz OCCUR ! PREMISES (Ea octurrence) s 100.000
MED EXP {Any one person) 3 5.000
A PHPK2636316 01/01/2024 | 010172025 | personaL s apv mury | 3 1:000.000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2000000
POLICY s LoG PRODUCTS - compiopaGG | 5 2:000.000
OTHER: Professional Liability $ 1m/2m
COMBINED SINGLE LWAIT
AUTOMOBILE LWBILITY (E2 acoident) s 1,000,000
| ANy AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person} | §
OWNED SCHEDULED : ;
i T SRTONT oes PHPK2636315 01/01/2024 | 01/01/2025 | BODILY INJURY (Per sccident} | §
| HRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| autos onwy AUTOS ONLY Per accident)
$
| D] umereLLALAR | X oecur i EACH OCCURRENCE s 2,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB SianEiDE PHUBB93672 010172024 | 010172025 | pcorecate s 2.000.000
veo | X< revenmion s 10.000 i 5
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH:
AND EMPLOYERS LLABILITY Rl ><l siaure | ER oo
B [oFricermemnzs exciupesr - LN | [Nra HCHS20242000036 01/0112024 | 01/01/2025 | B EACHACUIUER] P
{Mandatory in NH) E.L DISEASE - EAEMPLOVEE | s 1:000.000
if yas, describe under 1.000.000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow E.L DISEASE - POLICY LT |3 °* .

DESCRIPTION OF QPERATIONS { LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schadule, may be attached if more spaca is required)

3a slate: NH. All officers included. This cerificate is issued as a matier of information only and confers no rights upon the certificale holder. This cenificate
does not amend, extend or aller the coverage afforded by the policies referenced herein.l

|

_CERTIFICATE HOLDER ICANCELLATION

[
| SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
i THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

NH Department of Transportation Bureau of Rail & Tr ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

PO Box 483

;ALITHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

-
Concord NH 03302 : C%ﬁﬁclg wdeella e -

L 1

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 {2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2024 CERTIFIICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA

.=\SSIS'I'A1\'C1E PROGRAMS

{Signature pages aliernate o providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS )

Name ui'AppIic;ml:\S £ {'U | | f ’n o
: |

; i : - .
The Applicant centifics to the applicable provisions of all categorics: (check hiere) X ;

or,

The Applicant certities to the applicable prnvisilons of the categories it has selected:

Category Certification
01 Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant
02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans
03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions
04 Lobbying :
03 Private Sector Protections
06  Transit Asset ;\.Jlanugmncnl Plan
07  Rolting Stock Buy America Reviews anr:g Bus Testing
08 Urbanized Arca Formula Granis ngmn?
09  Formula Grants for Rural Areas \
Lo Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program
bl Grants tor Buses and Bus Facilitics and Low or No Emission -

Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs




Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

: )
12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs i

13 Sute of Good Repair Grants

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

L

Alcohel and Controtled Subsiances Testing

16 Rail Satety Training and Oversight
17 Demand Responsive Service
18 Interest and Financing Cosis

9 Cybersccurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 LEmergency Reliel Program |

CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE PAGE

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

Name of the Apphicant: Sﬂu_tb_we (']ffl [ l i{}[ ll[ 14 NJJ lll“ f S@qu & t “ l(

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalt' of the Applicant. [ duclare that it has duly authonzed me 1o make these
Certifications and Assurances and bind us compliance, Thus, iifagrees o comply with afl federal faws, regulations,
and requirements, foltow applicable federal guidance, and comply with the Certifications and Asurances ug
indicated on the toregoing page applicvable 10 cach applic:ion i1s Authorized Representative imakes w the Federal
Tronsit Administiation (FTAY in the fedearal fiscal year, irespective of whether the individual that acted en his or
her Applicant’s behalf continues wa represent i,

The Certifications and Asswrnnces the Applicant selects apply o cach Award for which it now secks, or may
luter seek tederal assistance o be awarded by FTA during the tederal tiseal veur,

The Applicant aftirms the tuthiitness and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it has selected in the
statemients submitted with this documdént and any other submission made o FTA. and acknowledyes that the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Actol 1986, 31 LES.CL § 3801 erveq., anct implementing U.S. DOT wegulations.
“Program Fraud Civil Remedies,” 49 CFR pat 3, apply 1o any certification, sssuranee vt submission made to
FIA The criminal provisions of 18 (.5.C. & 1001 apply to any|certification. assuranve, ur submission made in
connection with i federal public ransportation program authorized by 49 US.CL chapter 53 or any other statoie

(L]




FFY 2024 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Bederal Fiscal Yeur-2024 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comply with the regquirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds] The language contained in the Master
Agreemient must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of '['ralnsponaliun (NHDOT).

i acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2024 Federal Iransit Administration (IFTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred 1o in my-agency s agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in torce for the term of the
agreement,

Name of Agency Date

Smea_&mmmLthmme. D6[10/34

Beth Daniels LEO - Botr Banieta

Name ol Authortzed Olhudl Signature




Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

In signing thiz decument, [declare under peaadiivs of perjurviehat the foregoing Certiications and Assiianees, and
any wther statemems mide by me oo bebal £ ol the Applicant ;!uc e and aveurate.

Sign;uurcm ‘Danu,[ﬂ—— Dane: _O_SLOQ/_Q_L/
Nan Bf f‘h Dm "EI S ! C EO ! Authorized Representative of Applicant

4
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/11/2024

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Aldmini.\'frurimr (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire chparrmem of Transportation (NHDOT)
Name of Subrecipient Agency: Southwestern Community Services

Southwestern Community Services, shall comply with all applicable lederal laws, regulations,
mand requirements as outlined in the most recent I cederal Transit Administration (FTA) Master

|
Agreement and Federal Certitications and Assurances. This award includes information required
by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award nruicct d I..‘SCl‘iDliUﬂ LS required 1o ha.'. responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Trinsparency Act (FFATA)

Amount: $15.200

Catalog ot Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 200513

FTa Award Name: FTA SECTION 8310 F.NI-IIANCED MOBILITY OF SENIORS &
INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES PR()?‘.RAM

Federal Aowvard Identitication Number (FAEN): NH-2021-016-01

Federal Award Date: 9/1/22

Contact information for sub-awarding ufﬁciai:

Nume: Frederick J. Butler Title: Public 'I‘runspo:rlali\)n Administrator
Email: Frederick.J.Butler@@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2563

Is this award for research and development? No

NHDOT s cost rate {or the tederal award: N/A

I
Subrecipient Information: ‘
Subrecipient Name: Southwestern Community Services
Subrecipient SAM.GOV LD.: HMUUXKSM B.I|C3
Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Beth Daniels

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CEQ

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes

Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: 12%

tdn approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiaied hemween the subrecipicns and the Federal
Government or, if no such rate exists, either a rate negoticied hetveen the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
fin compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indivect cost rate as defined in 3200414 Indirect. (F&A) costs,

paragraph ().
I

Subaward Period of performance:
Start Date: 6/14/23  End Date: 6/30/25




Preportoens af Trawsportagion

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement | Revised 07/11/2024

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (contract/amendment):
For FFY: 2025 Scction: 3310 RCC Amount: $13.200

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipient foriginat contract & amendmentsy:
For FFY: 2023 Section: 3310 RCC Amount: $319.400.00

Pass-through requirements:

The Subrecipicent. Southwestern Community Services agrees to meet all requirement imposed by
the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is used in
accordance with Federal statutes, regulations. and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The Subrecipient. Sewuthwestern Community Services agrees to any additional requirements that
the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through
entity (NHDOT) to meet its own responstbility w the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including
identification of any required financial and pertormance reports.

The Subrecipient, Seuthwestern Community Services agrees o permit the pass-through entity
(NHDOT) and auditors to have access 10 the subrecipicnts records and financial stalements as
necessary tor the pass-through entity o mect thelrequirements of this part: and appropriate terms
and conditions concerning closcout of the subaward.

|
Date: IDZOS!QH |l

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Beth fi)unicls

|
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CEO

Signature ol authorizing subrecipient otticial: “wm




ﬂa\v H)Lun. A;'rs

Depaitancal of Trawspmrtation

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/11/2024

] |
FTA and 2 CFR 200 Aerecment

Nunie of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit A tllministrmifm (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Huampshire Dlupurtmem of Transportation (NHDOT)

Nane of Subrecipient Agency: Southwestern Community Services

Southwestern Community Services. shall comply with all applicable federal laws. regulations.
and requirements us outhined in the most recent II;'cc!::ruI Transit Administration {FTA) Master
Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required
by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (s required to belrespunsive to the Federal Funding Accountabilite and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount; $51.400.00 |

Catalog ol Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 20.509

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 53311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
PROJECT SOLICITATION
Federal Award Identitication Numbser (FAIN): NH-2021-017
Federal Award Date: 9/8/21

Contact information for sub-awarding ufﬁcial!:

Name: Frederick J. Butler Title: Public 'I‘ranspor'luuion Adminisirator
Email: Frederick.). Butler@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2565

Is this award tor rescarch and development? No
NHDOT s cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information:
Subrecipient Name: Southwestern Community Services

|
Subrecipient SAM.GOV 1LD.: HMUUXKSM BJFJ
Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Beth Daniels

Title ot authorizing subrecipient ofticial: CEO
Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certitications and Assurances; Yes

Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: 12%

tAn approved federathe recognized indircet cost raie negotioted between the subrecipient and the Federal
Ciovernment or, if me such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
{in compliance with this part). or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.4 14 Indirect. (F&A) vosts,
paragraph (1.

Subaward Period of performance:
Start Date: 7/1/23 End Date: 6/30/25
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/11/2024

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (agrecment/amendmeni):
For FFY: 2024 Section: 3311 Amount: $51.400.00

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipient foriginal ugreenment & amendments):
For FFY: 2024 Section: 3311 Amount: $879,40EO.()0

I
Pass-through requirements: '

Ihe Subrecipient. Southwestern Community Services agrees 1o meet all reguirement imposed by
the pass-through cntity (NHDOTY on the subrcc'}picnl so that the Federal award 1s used in
accordance with Federal statutes. regulations. and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The Subrecipient. Soarhwestern Community Services agrees to any additional requirements that
the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through
entity (NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including
identification of any required financial and performance repors.

The Subrecipient, Southwestern Community Services agrees to permit the pass-through entity
{(NHDOT) and auditors 10 have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements as
necessary tor the pass-through entity to mect thejrequirements of this part: and appropriate lerms
and conditions concerning closcout of the subaward.

Date: ‘0‘()3{&5

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Beth Danicls

Tite of authorizing subrecipient oflicial: CEO

Signature ot authorizing subrecipient officiai: iﬁfﬂ]_&{l“l(@ )




MNew Haonpshi THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTA TION

Dawvid Rodrigue, P.E.

William Cass, P.E. Assistant Commissioner

Irpartarnt of Tronepertaiion

Commissioner
Andre Briere, Colonel, USAF (RET)
Deputy Commissioner
His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council April 26, 2023
State House
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an agreement with Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. (Vendor 177511), Keene, NH, for an amount not to exceed $1,132.200 for transportation
services for the period July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2025, effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this agrecment is contingent upon the availability of funds in Fiscal Yecar 2024 and Fiscal
Year 2025, with the ability to adjust encumbrances through the Budget Office between State Fiscal Years
if needed and justified.

FY 2024 EX 2025
04-96-96-964010-2916
Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $566,100 $566,100
EXPLANATION

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (SCS) has been awarded Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities {(Section 5310) funds, in the
amount of $304,200, and FTA Section 5311 (Section 5311) Rural Area Formula Program funds, in the
amount of $828,000, for a total contract amount of $1,132,200 to provide transportation services in
Sullivan County.

SCS is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation, including transportation
for seniors and individuals with disabilities, in Sullivan County. For the FY 2024-2025 bicnnium, SCS
will receive $828.000 of Section 5311 funds and $304,200 of Section 5310 funds for the Region 4
Sullivan County Regional Coordinating Council (RCC) service arca. SCS’s total contract for
transportation services is $1,132,200 and details relative to each funding program, and SCS’s award of
these funds, are outlined below.

The Department’s proposed SFY 2024 and 2025 operating budget includes funds from the Section 5311
that provides funds for capital, planning. and operating assistance for public transportation in rural arcas
with populations of less than 50,000.

JOHN O MORTON BUILDING « 7 HAZEN DRIVE » P.O. BOX 483 « CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE. (803) 271-3734 « FAX: {803) 271-3014 « TDD: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2064 +WWW.NHDOT COM



. The Department released a pubhc notice on February 16, 2023, announcing the avaslablllly of Section
.. 5311 funds. Applications for requestéd funding were due on March 21, 2023. The Department received

Wy -applications for six (6) rural pubhc transit systems and awarded funding to cach transportation system.

#, _"The systems and their respective application scores are as follows:

s [ Transit System | i Applicant 2::::3"
-~ [Concord Area Transit mmumty Action Program Belknap-Memmack Counucs, Inc.| 83%
. Hexisting services)
. |Advance Transit : |Advance Transit, Inc. |(existing services) . 81%
- iCity Express VNA at Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services .
: : ) (cxisting services) 1 _ 76%
e iﬂ:zgﬂ(;(:i&;:ty Southwestern Commufnity Services (existing services) 76%"
" . [North Country Transit Tri-County Communily Action Program (existing services) 74%
' {Advance Transit Advance Transit, Inc. (expansion — evening services) 73%
' |Advance Transit . » . |Advance Transit, Inc. '(expansion —~ Saturday services) 73%
" [Carroll County T}ansig Tri-County Communily Action Program {existing services) .| 72%

™ An cvaluation committee that consisted of the ﬁb!ic Transportation Administrator, Fred Butler, Transit
. Grants Coordinator, Paula Devens, and the Transit Compllancc Specialist, Cathy Cormier reviewed,

" evaluated, and scored FTA Section 5311 applications based on‘criteria as indicated in the appllcauon

. "materials and the Department’s State Management Plan for FTA programs. The evaluation matrix is
" provided below for reference

a i
; b Fw Evaluahon Criteria’ . Weight
' ’Thc proposed service efFeclwcly addresses an NHDOT polucy goal (pcr statewide transit 15% |
study) and/or the proposed service is-a continuation of existing services. , ?
5 The apphcapt has the fisca! and technical capaclty‘and adequate budget to operate its 1 30%
service and demonstrates successful experience in providing transportation services. )
The application demonstrates an effort to involve thc private sector in the delivery of ]
3{transportation services as well as involvement in and support for the project, financial and | 20%
otherwise, on the part of citizens and local g_vcrnmem.
The applicant successfully demonstrates scrvice cfﬁc:cncy and effectiveness, measured in
4jridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare r[ccovcry as applicable. New applicants 15%
must demonstrate the ability to measure pcrformance and achieve goals. ;

The application shows .coordination with other tranSportatlon providers in the service area:
ublic, nonprofit, and for-profit.

The applicant complies with relevant Federal and state regulations and has a history of 10%
compliance ‘With rcgulatlons and reporting requircments.
Note: Every application met the Department’s cntem for inclusion in its SFY 2024 2025 public

transit fuudmg plan and will be awarded scparate amounts for the transit systcms.
[

\
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The Department's proposed SFY 2024 and 2025 opcrntmg budget mcludcs funds from Section 53 10 that

T “ provides funds for‘capital, contracted scmccs. and mob:l:ty managcmcnt for semors and lnlelduais with - '
L ..,dtsabnlmcs in New Hampshire e IR Ol

"~..SCS has also becn awarded FTA Section 5310 funds in the amount of $304,200 for the FY 2024-2025

* " biennium. SCS will act as the lead agency for Region 4 Sullivan County Regional Coordinating Council
- (RCC) to facilitate the provision of accessible demand response transportation services-for seniors and
- individuals with disabilities within the r¢gion and will support mobility management and strategic - | e
.~ .. planning activities in cooperation with the Region 4 IRCC As thc l;:ad agency . SCS is tasked with applylng T
e i for FTA Section 5310 RCC funds on bchaifofReglon4 et e g 6 e o

. The Section 5310 RCC funds were allocated by regton according to a formula based on regional
e populat:ons of residents over 65 and those between the ages of 5-64 with disabilities. Each individuat
*-. . RCC was responsible for conducting its own pro_lecqsol:c:tauon evaluation, and prioritization and then

e submitting one regional application for eligible Section'5310:-RCC projects through an approved lead

.~ agency. The Sullivan County RCC representing Reglon 4 demgnated SCS es the lead agency for Region 4 R

S - -and tasked SCS with applylng for Section 5310 RCC funds on behalf of the Region. As reqmrcd by FTA,

: this pmjcct is. ldﬁl‘lllf ed ina locally dcvclopcd ooordmatcd pubhc lranssl-—-human serwccs trampmtanon 9

-4 Z."SCS in conjunction with its rcglonai partners as apphcablc will provide the remaining roqulrcd non-

.-+ " federal matching funds. In the event that cheral Funds become unavmlablc gencral funds w:ll notbe
requcstcdtosupponlhlsprogram | e e R 7

.. . The Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and cxccuiic;n and the Department
.= will verify the necessary funds are available pcndmglcaactment of the Fiscal Year 2024 and 2025 budget.
. -..Copies of the fully executed Agreement are on fife at ' the Secretary of State's Office and the Depanment

Department of Transportation. - "7 | a

. of Administrative Services, and subscqucnt to Gowzmor and Counc:! npproval wnll bc on f' lc at lhe

'.'_Your approval of lh:s resoluuon s rcspectfully rcqucftcd e iz e T
l William Cass, PE, % " o
e el | Commissioner T T
: L -_I- .. --_I.. . ; ,I I_..I..'--.-I. '- ..
i ....................
...... -
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" Mutually’ agrce as follows

' i FORM NUMBER'G-1 {version 11/2021)

Subject: SFY 2024 2025 FTA Séction 5310 RCC;R!i‘gion 4 . SFY 2024 - 2025 FTA.Section 5311

GRANT Al'_GREEM-ENT

The State, of Ncw Hampshlrc and the Grantee hereby

GENERAL PROVISIONS
*.1. Identification and Def mtlons I

1.1, State Agcncy Name _ 1.2.-State AgencSr'-Addrcss

NH Depanrnenl of Transportation . PO Box 483 & Hazen Dr. Concord, NH

1.4. Grantee Address
6 Kinney Place Claremont, NH 03743-3748

i 03302-0483
I 3. Granlcc Name |
|

Soulhwestem Commumty Semces Inc.
|

l 5 Granleu Phonc i 1.6. Account Number t 1.7. Completion Date 1.8, Grani Limitation
60&542-9609 04-96 96-964010-2916-0 .
' 72-500575 June 30, 2025 $ 1,132,200.00
1.9 Grant: Oﬁi'éé'r:for' State Agency ' 1.10. State Agency Tclephone Number

Fredenck Butler ‘Public Transportation Administrator, 603-271-2565
Bureauof Rail & Transit

If Granlcc is:a municipality. or village district: "By signing this form we:certify that we have complied'with"
" any pubhc mecting requireient for acceptance of (his grant, including if apphcable RSA 31:95-b."

111 /Grantee Signature | 1.12. Name & Tiile of Grantee Signor |
- Bah Banida_ | Beth Daniels, CEO
:Q(qntcg_ Signature 2 ‘Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2
N/A ) N/A
Grantee Signaturc 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3
N/A N/A
“1713 State Agency Signature(s). 1.14. Name & Title of Siate Agency Signor(s)

et = % Midatt L. Wiishey
: Director of Acronautics R_uL&_I;,mg-f

1.15. Approval by Attomey General (Form, Substance and Exceéution) (if G & C approval required)

(}Qv@,Z/A igtdnt Altomcy-cherLl,On: g‘/{?/@?,

1.16. Apio rmg&and Council (if- a;ﬁlcablc

SECRETARY OF STATE v 14

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange {or grant funds provided by the-Statc of New Hampshire, acting
lhrough ‘the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hcrcmaﬁer referred 1o as “the State™), the Grantce identified in
block:1.3 (hercinafter referred 1o as “the Grantee™), sha!l perform that work identified and more particularly
described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work being hereinafier referred o

as “the Project™).

Page 1 of 3
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4.2,

5.1

5.2
5.3

54,

5.5.

1.2

8.2

.l

9.0.

.Gamee shall perform the Project in, and with respect 1o. the Siate of Mew
"Hampshire,

RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.
Between the Effective Date and the.date seven (1) years.after, the Completion |

W Cxcept as otherwise specifically provided for herein, lhcl

EFFECT(VE DATE; COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

‘this Agreement, end sll obligations of the pantics hereunder, shall bevon
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Govn'mrl
and Council of the Sizte of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16), or upon
signaiurc by the State Agency at shown in block 114 (“the Effective Date™).
Except as otherwise specifically provided hercin, the Project. imluding all reports
requircd by this Agr 1, shall.he completed in ITS entivety prior 1o the date \nl
block 1.7 (hereinafier rtt‘:m-d 10 as “the Compiction Dratc™}. i
PAYMENT, : -

The Grant Amount is identified sad mwore paniculardy described in EXHIBIT C,
attached hercto.

The of. and schedul ol’paymcm shall be as set forth in CXHIBIT C.

In sccordance with the provisions st fonh in EXHIBIT C. and in consideration
of 1he satigfociary performance of the Project. as detcrmined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the Suaie shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amouni. ‘The State shall withhold from the amount otherwise
payable 1o the Granice under this mibparagraph 5.V these sums required. of
permiilied, 10 be withheld parsuant to N.H, RSA 80:7 through 7.

The paynient by the Siatc of the Grant amount shall'be the only..and the complete
paymcat 10 the Graotee for sll expenses. of whatever nature, incurred by the
Graniee in the paformance hereol, and shall be the only, and the conplete,
conipensation 1o the Grantee for the Project.  The State shatl have no liabilitics 10
the Grantee uther than the Goant Asnound. -

Motwithsianding anything in this Agreancal 1o the contrary, and notwithsianding
uncxpecicd circurmsiznecs, in no cvent shall the iotal of all payments autharized,
or sctually nud.c hereunder exceed the Grant limitation st fonh in block 1.8 of
these genenl provmom

connection with the perforinence of the Project. the Grantee shall conply with atl

statutes. laws rogulxtions. snd orders of federal, siate. counly, o municipsl
suthorities which shall impose sny obligarions or duty upon the Grantee, inctuding
the sequisition of any and a)l necessary permits and RSA 31-95b,

Date, unless ocherwise required by the grani tenms of the Agency. ihe Graniee
shall keep detailed accounts of alt expenses incumed in connection with the
ije-::. inchading, bul nut limiled o, costs of sdminisiration, transponativn,
insurance, tclcphune calls, snd clesical materials and- services.  Such sccounts
shall be supported by receipls, inveices, bills and olhcr sitnilar documents.
Between the Effective Datc and the daic scven (7Y ycxrs afier the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the prant terms o the Agency pursuani io
subparagraph 7.1, at any tisne during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as
ollcn as the State shall domand, the Grantee shafl make available 1o the Siatc all
rcconds peraining 10 matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall
permit the State 10 sudit, examine, snd reproduce such records, 2nd (o make audits
of all contracts, iveies, wstciials, payiulls, 1aiunds of parssmcl, Joly (s Ui
term is hereinzfier defined), end other information relating 10 afl instters covered
by this Agreement. At used in this pangraph, “Grantee? includes all persons,
natural or fictional, affiliated with, cantrolied by o under common ownership
with, the emity identified 25.the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provigions

The Grantee shull, sl its own expense, provide all persuanel necessagy v perfunn
the Project. The Grantce warranis that sll personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified 10 perform such Project, end shall be properly Inc:nscd and authorized
to perform such Praject under all epplicsble laws.

The Grantee shall'not hire, snd it shall not parmit any subcontractor” subgrantec.
ar other person. firm or corporstion with whom it is engaged in 3 combined cffon
1o peeform the Project, Lo hire any person who hes a coalractual relationship with

9.2

9.

9.4,

9s.

1.1
1.1.2
1.1.3
1014
1.2

1.2

11.2.2

11.2.3
11.2.4

12,
12.1.

22,

the Staie, or who is a State olicer or employce. clected or eppointed.

The Grant Officer shall be 1he representative of the Suate hereundes. Ln the evenl
of any dispuie hercunder, the imterpeetation of this Agreement by the Grani
Officer, and higher decision on any dispute, shal be final.

Ag used in this Agreemiens. the word “data” shall mean all information and things
developed or obuained during the perfomunce of, or acquired or developed by
reasun ul, this Agreement. inclading, but nu linited ro, sl studies, reports, fites,
fumnulae, suneys, maps, chans, sound recordings, videu recordings, picionial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic represemations.
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124,

13.

conypyler programs. compuler printouls. notes, lelters. memoranda, paper. and
docunicnis, 811 whether finished or unitnished,

Between the Effective Daic and-the Completion Date the Grantec shall grani to
the State, or any person designaied by i1, unrestricted access to all dats Jor
cxaminstion, duplication. publication. translation, sale, disposal, or for any o“
purposc whatsocver,

No daa shatl be subject 10 copyright in the United Sunics or any other country by
anyone other than the Siate.

On 2rd alter the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been reccived
{rom the Stale or purchaged with funds provided for thal purpose under this
Agreement. shall be the propeny of the State, and shail be retumed to the State
upun demaind of upon teminstion of this Agrocment for any reason, whichever
shall fiast occur.

The Stalc. and snyonc it shall designaie, shall have uniesiricied authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise vse, in whole or in pant, ait data,

CONDITIONAL NATURE OR ACREEMENT. Notwithsianding snything in

this Agreancat 1o the contrery, all obligations of the State hereunder. including. |

without Jimitation. the continuance ol paymants hercundor, arc contingent Upon

* the availability or continued apprupriation of funds, snd in no cvent shall the State

be lisble for any paymmu hereunder in cxcess of such svailabie or epproprisicd
funds. In the even) of 3 reduction or Icrmination of those funds, the Siate shalt
have the right to withhokd payment until such funds become available, il ever, and
shall have the right 1o 1erminate this Agreement inimedisicly upon giving-the
Griantee nolice of such tenmination,

EVENT QF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following scts or omissions of the Granice shall consite
an event ul defavl hereunder (hereinafler referred to us “Events of Delaul™):
Failuse to pecform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule: or

Failure to submil any repon reguired heraunder, or N

Failure 1o maintain, or pemit access to, the records requiced hercunder: or
Failure 10 perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occummence of #ny Event of Defawlt, the State may ke any onc, or more.
or sll, of ihe fallowing actions: ™ o

Give the Grantee & written notice specifying the Even of Default and requining it
to be remedicd within, in the sbsence of 8 greater or Icsier specificotion of time,
thinty (30) days from the daie of the notice: and if the Event of Defautt is.not
limcly remedied, terminste this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice of terminalion; and, oo oo « ma

Give the Grantee » wrilien nolice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
il payments 10 be niade under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of
Grant Ampunt which would vtherwise acerve 1o the Graniee during the pe
from the dyte of such natice until such fimg 13 the' Siste detonuines that e
Girantoe hai curcd 1he Fvent of Defaut shall never be paid 10 the Granlee: and
Set off against any other obligution the Sistc ray ow to the Granice any damages
the Suic suffers by reason of any Evert of Default; and |

Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedics ot law or in oquily, .

or both.
R

in the event of any carly temination of this Agrecment for afty reason other than

the Conpletinn of Uie Fruzect, the Grantee shall deliver tv the Graut OfTres, st
later than fificen (15) days afler the date of lermination. & repon (hereinafer
referred to as the “Termination Repont™ describing in detail all Project Work
pcrfmncd and the Grant Amount camed, 1o and including the dote of termination.
In the event of Termination under parsgraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions. thc'appmval of such 3 Termination Report by the Siate shall entitlc
the Grenice v rn:m\c thal ponien uflhc Grant smount camed fo wnd ingluding
the date of Icrinination.

tn the event of Tennination under p.lrls;rlphs 1§ or 12.4 of these ;cncrnl
provisions, the approval of such & Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relicve the Grantee from any and afl Hability for damages sustamed or
incurred by the State as » result of the Granice's breach of its obkigations
hereunder, :

Noiwithsianding anything in Lhis Agrum:ru to lhc contrary, either the Sule or,
cxvepl where notice default has been given 1o the Grantee hereunder. the Grantee.
may lenninate this Agrecment without cause upon thiny {30) days wrillen notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer. member of employee of the Graniee,
snd no representative, offider or employee of the Siate uf New Hampshire or of
the goveming body of the locality or localities in which the Project is 10 be
perfommed. who cxencises any functions of responsibilities in the review or

)
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16.

17.
17.1

171

17.4.2

Jof3

?
|

approval of the undentaking or carrying out of such Project. shall pamnpm: m
any decision relating 1o this Agreement which sflecis bis or her personal nmer:n

]

17.2.

ur the interest of any éurpuration, partnership. or sssucistion in which he or she )

is dar:ctly wr indircaly interosted, nar shall he or she have any ‘persunal r'.x
pecuniary interest, dircet ar indirect, in this Agreenren) or the procecds lhcttof

GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE. I the performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and vy scbeoniracior or subgrantee of
the Grantee are in o1l respects independent contraciors, and arc neither agenis
nor cuployees of the Stae.  Neither the Granice nor sny of its omccﬁ
eruployces. agents, members, ubcwmclursor:ubgmlm shall have suthorily
10 bind the Siate nor are thoy entitled to sny of the benefits, workmenis
compensation or eolurienis provided by the State 10 s employces. l

ASSICNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign. or
otherwise tansler wny interest in this Agreement without the prioc writicn
consent of the State, None of the Project Work shsll be subcontracied or

subgnmcd by the Grantee other than as sct forth in Exhibiv B without the: pnur

wrilten conseat of the State.

m'D&]b[ﬂQAI!Q The Cramce. thall defend. indcmnily and hold
hannless the Segte, iy uﬂ'u:cn and anploycr.s from and spaing any and all
1o$ses sulTered by the Stiic, its oficers and cmployecs and any and all clatms
lishilitics or penaliics asseried wgpingt the Stare, its officers and unpby:u hy
or on behalf of any person. on sccount of, based on, resulting from, arising out
of tor which may be cliinicd 1o sritc 501 Of) the scis or omissionsTal the Granter
or subcontracior. or subgrenice or other egent of the Granice, Notwithsianding
the furegoing, nothing herein contained shall be decnicd 10 constitute 3 waiver
of the sovereign immunity of the Siate, which sununity is.hereby reserved to
the Suatz, This covenant shall survive the icnnination of ihis opreement.

£ .

INSURANCE.
The Grunice shall. at i1t own expensc. obtain and maintain in force, or shall

require any subcontractor, subgniniee or assignee perforuing Project work (o
obtain and rnmrst:m in force, both for the benelit of the Sute, the following
insurance: !

Statylury wurkers' cuntpenation’ and employees Yiability insurnee fuor all -

employces engaged in the perfonnance of the Project. and
Cieneral Iixbilily ingurance againg all claims of hodily injurics, death or propeny
damage. i amounts not Jess than $1.000.000 per occurmence and $2.000,000
sgpregstc far bodily injury or dcath any onc incident, and $500.000 for propeny
dznugc in eny one incident; and :

The pelicies described in subparagraph 17,1 of this psragreph shall be the standard
form emiployed in the Siste of New Hampshire. issued by underwriters accepiable
1 the Sizte, and suthurized 1u do business in the Siatc ol New Hampshire. Graniee
shall furnish 1o the Siae, cenificaies of insurance for sl renewzY{s) of Insurance
required under this Agreenient no [ater than ten (10} dny: priot to'ihe expirution
date of each insurance policy.

WAIVER OF BREACI]. No failure by the Staic w enforce eny provisions
hereof afier any Event of Defsuli shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard
to that Event, or any subscquent Event. No capress waiver of any Eveni of Delfault
shalt be decnwed & waiver of any provisions hereol. No such faiture of waiver
shall be deaned a waiver of the right of the State 1o enforve cach and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or dther default on the pant of the Granice,
NOTICE. Anay notice by s pany hereto 1o the other panty shail be decmed 1o hove
been duly detivesed or given 3t the 1ime of ailing by centified mail. postage
prepaid. in & United States Post Office sddressed to the partics a1 ‘the sddrosses
first sbove piven.

AMENDMENT. This Agrecruent may he amended, waived or discharged only
by un instrunien in wn'ling signed by the partics hereto und only sfler upproval of
such amendnient, waiver or discharge by the Governor snd Council ul the Siate
of New Hampshire, :fucqum:d or by the signing Siste Agency.

8. This Agreemen: shall
be construed in ncmrdanc: with the law of the Staic of Néw Hampshire, and is
binding upon‘and inurks to the benefit of the partics and their respestive successony
and assignces. The coptions ond conients of the “subject™ hlank src uscd only as
& miatter of convenience, snd are not 1o be considered a part ol this Agreement or
10 be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto,

THIRD PARTIES. The partics hereto do nol intend to benefit any third panies
and this Agreement shistl not be construed 1o conler any such benelit.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreemeni, which may be executed m & number
of coumterpans, cach of which'shal! be deemed an original, constirutes the eotire
agrecmient and understanding between he partics, and supersedes sll prior
lgrl:cmmu and understandings relating herelo.

v . The additiunal ov maalifiying provisions sct furth in
E.:h;bn A herglo ae mc_arporl!cd as pnn af this agreement.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. -

EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT
EXHIBIT A Special Provisions
EXHIBIT B Scope Pf Services
EXHIBITC Budgcé
EXHIBITD .Vchicl:e List

Centificate of Good Slandinig
- Certificate-of-Corporate Volle seme s e seemen s
Centificate c';f Insurance | ]
FTA Certifications and Assurances

FTA Master Agreement

DOL Special Warranty — Unified Protective Arrangement
2 CER Part 200 :
FTA Section 5?.]0
FTA Section 5311

Social Service Documents to Include:
501 {c) ;
Financial Report
Board of Directors,
Key Personnet and Salanes
Resumes




it ' ] : Revised 04/18/2023

Southwestern ,Collmmunity Services ) .
EXHIBIT A .
SPECIALPROVISIONS J

' 1 .
A.l. Amend G-1 Section 2: “SCOPE OF WORK?” by adding the following:

2.1. The Grantcc may change scrvices as dcscnbed in Exhibit B, Scope of Services (hereinafter the
“Services”) only with the prior written agrecmcnt of the State and in accordance with applicable .
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) rcqtlnremcnts .

A.2. Amend G-1 Section 3. “AREA COVERED” by adding the following:

3.1.  Services may extend to adjacent states with prior written approval from the State. The State

reserves the right to require formal cost allocatlon measures.
I

AJ3. Amend G-1 Section 5. “GRANT AMOUNT LIMITATION ON AMOUNT VOUCHERS;
PAVMENT?® by adding the following: | e

5.6. As applicable based on Federal’ pamc:patlon ratios, the amount paid by the State to thc Grantec
shall not exceed 50% of altlowable opcranng costs less fare revenues plus 80% of allowable
'administrative and capital costs. Opcralmg, adminjstrative and capital costs are identified in
Exhibit C. The Grantee shall provide and ldocument the availability of local funds sufficient o
meet the project cost in excess of the Grant Price Limitation.

5.7. In the event that revenues exceed the tofal allowable costs, said revenues in excess of total
allowable costs shall be placed in an mtcrcst bearing account within 30 days of the Complctton
Date and made avaitable to the State upon ‘demand.

5.8. The Grantee shatl submit a request for payment to the State on a-form specified by the State on 2
monthly or quarterly basis, together with alll information to support the request. Such requests for
payment shall be propcrly completed and sugncd Requests for payments must be for altowable
costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200, No requests for advance payment will be accepted by
the State.

\ 3
59. Upon receipt of the request for paymerit) the State shall review the request to determine the

allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand production of (and
the Grantee shall produce) and inspect any|documents and records described in Section 7.

5.10. Within 30 days of receipt of lhc request for payment and other documents and records required
by the State, the Statc shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due and owing to
= the Granteeand shall pay said amount, subjcct to ather provnsnons of this Agreement.

5.11. Final Payment. The Grantee’s provision|of all reports required under this Agrccment is 2
" condition precedent to final payment. .

Ad4. Amend G-1 Section 6.- “COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS” by adding the t’ollowmg

6.1.  The Grantee shall post in CONSpICUoUsS |plam:s, available to employees and apphcanls for
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of the Federal Title VI non-discrimination
requirements,

\ 1

6.2. The Grantee shall slatc in all solicitations or advertiscments for employees, that all qualified
applrcams will receive consideration for cmploymcm without regard 10 race, color, age, creed,
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s¢x, or national origin, l

63. The prowsnons of 2 CFR 200 shali apply to Jocal adminisiration of this agreement and any
subgrantcc under this agreement. 1 \
/

A.S. Amend G-1 Section 12. “TERMINATION” by adding the following: 4

12.5. The Termination. Report must be approvctli by the State and the Federal Transit Administration

(FTA} prior to final payment.
1
12.6. Comptetion of Services; Payment of Pnc:::l Excepting those obligations oflhc Granice which, by
the terms of this Agreement, do-not expire on the Completion Date, upon the completion of the .
Services and upon payment of the Grant Pnce this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties

_ hereunder, shall cease and neither party shall have further recourse under the Agreemcnt
|

A.6.  Amend G-1 Section 9. “DATA; RETENTIION OF DATA; ACCESS” by adding the
following:

9.6. The following restrictions apply to all SUb_]CCl data first produced in thc performance” of this
Agrecment: :

9.6.1 Exc;:pl for its own internal use, the Grantee may not publish or reproduce such data in
whole or in pan, or in any manner ot form, nor may the Grantee authorize others to do so,
without the written cansent of the Statc until such time as the FTA may havc cither
released or approved the releasc of such data to thc public.

9.6.2 As authorized by 2 CFR 200, the FTA rescrves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and
irrevocable Ticense (o reproduce, publhsh and othenwise use, and to autharize others to
use, for Federal purposes, any work clievelqpcd under a grant, cooperafive agreement,
sub-grant, or third party grant, irrcsplcctive of whether a copyright has been obtained; and
any rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third party contractor
purchases ownership with Federal assistance. ;

9.7. It is the FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Grantee understands and agrees that in addmon to the rights set forth in 9.6 (b) above, the FTA
may make available to any recipient, subgrantcc grantee or subgrantee its license in the copynght
to the date dcrwcd under this Agrccmcnt or & copy of the data first produced under this
Agreement. i

~ 9.8 The Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State and United States, their officers,
agents, and employees acting within the |scope of their official duties against any liability,
including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation of the proprietary
nghts copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translal:on reproduction,
delwcry, use, or disposition of any data Furmshcd under this Agreement.

9.9. thmg contained in thus clause shall |mply a license to the United States under any patent or bc
comstrued as affecting the 'scope of any ficense or other right otherwise grantcd to the United

States under any paient. =
\
9.10. Sccuons 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are not a;:lpllcablc to material fumrshcd to the Grantee by the
State or United States and incorporated in thc work furnished under the agreement; provided that
such incorporated material is identified by the Grantee at the time of delivery of such work.

9.11. Inthe event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under the project

[
{ :
2

|
|



-

Al
15.1

A8

25. .

A9,

Revised 04/18/2023

shall become subject Data as defined in' Section 9.1 and shall be dclivcrcd.as the State or the FTA
may direct. :

Amend G-1 Section 15. “ASSIGNMENTS/AND/SUBGRANTEES” by adding the following:

The Grantee shall cause the provisions of this grant to be inserted in all subgrants for any work
covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each subgrantee; provided, '
however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to subgrantees for standard commercial
supplies or raw materials. The Grantee shall take such action with respect to any subgrant as the
State may direct as a means of enforcing su[ch provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance.

, The Grantee shall ensure that any subgrantee has obtained all hccnses permits or approvals
rcqulrcd for the performance of grant Scrvsces

. Amend G-1 by adding “DEFINITIONS” as Section 25:

DEFINITIONS l

ALLOWABLE COSTS Costs that arc'lncurrcd in lhc pcrformance of thc Scrwccs which
satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200.

S

‘FTA: U.8. Department of Transportation,| Federal Transit Administration

|
PROJECT APPLICATION The narrauvc charts, ﬁgurcs and/or maps submitted to the State
detailing the scope of the public transpormnon program of the Grant as modlf'cd and approved
by the State.

REVENUE Fares fromindividuals or other direct income for the public transpoitation services
being prowdcd by the Grantee. Revenues also ‘include funds. from subgrants, contracts, purchasc"
of service agrccmcnts and excess matchmg funds that dnrcctly benefit the transportation service.

\

SECTION 5311 Section 5311 of the chlnﬂ Transil Act of 1964, as amcndcd -

SECTION 5310: Section 5310 of the F:xmg America's Surface Transportnuon Act (FAST), as
amended. v

STATE: The State of New Hampshire, acling through the Department of Transportation, Bureau
of Rail and Transit.

Amend G-1 by adding “ACCOUNTING BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS” as Sechon 26:

26. ACCOUNTING BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

26.1.

262.

Ledgers. Granteg and/or subgrantcc shall cslabhsh and maintain ledger sheels for cach budget
category. Entries shall be made -and shall rcﬂccl the financial activities of the Grantce. The ledger
sheet:must be in a form approved by the Slatc The ledger will indicate the funds remaining in cach
line item of the Grant Budget at the bcgmmng of each month. Entries shall be made on a running
basis and carried over (o the following month; that is, figures,will be brought forward cumulatively.
Grantee shall also prepare and submit to the State a profit and loss statement quancr|y if such
mformanon is not provided with anOICCS

Accounts Receivable, The Grantee and/or [subgrantee shall deposit all revenue in an interest-
bearing account with a bankmg institution in this State. Grantee shall preparc and maintain receipt
vouchers for all revenue, Immcdlately upon receipt, Grantee and/or subgrantee shall credit alt
revenue 1o the appropriate receipt account. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish.and maintain




26.3.

26.4.

, 26.5.

26.6.

26.7.

268.

26.9.
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an Accounts- Rcccwablc Ledger. The rccmpt number appearing in the Ledger shall correspond to
the receipt voucher number. A receipt voucher must be.completed on a form approved by the State
and shall |dcnufy each component of every depos;t All appropriale supporting documents for cach
deposit should be attached to the receipt voucher.

Payables. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall prepare vouchers o document all expenditures of funds.
The voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a form approved by
the State: The Division and account numbeérs from which the funds will-be drawn, the date of
expenditure, a voucher number running in séqucncc and any appropriate comments supporting the
expenditure of funds (e.g.; invoices and paylrroll vouchers). All invoices received by the Grantee
shall be checked for accuracy and allowability. Each invoice must-be approved for payment by the
Grant Manager or designee. Immediately u'pon payment, Grantec andfor subgrantec shall make
entries to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment. (Each subgrantee shall identify a
Grant Manager). -

Voucher and Receipt Reglstcr Grantee andlor subgrantcc shall estabiish and maintain two
registers'that will-contain a running-total of allt payable: recclpt vouchers. The registers will provide
a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount, and purpose of action. No sclf—dcslgnatcd
abbreviations are to be used. B g

Check Register. Grantee and/or subgrantec shall maintain a check register. This register is also
considered a book of ongunal entry and is postcd to the ledger immediately.

Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benef ts. Grantee andior subgrantee shall require each of its employces -
to 1) submit wcckly time reports dcssgnatlng work performed and time'spent on.such work, or 2)

be included in an indircct co$t allocation plan approved by the cognizant Federal agency. The

Grantee shall summarize time reports by task and apply .employee's- rates of pay- to the hours

worked. The Grant’ Manager shall review completed and signed time reports and cause them to be

posted to the appropriate category in the gcncral lcdgcr The Grantee shall maintain récords of

employee payroll and benefits and shall p05t this information to the appropnate category in the

general chgcrLThc Grant Manager shail ensure that all payments are on a nmcly bhasis.

Reimbursements. On a monthly basis, ‘the Grantee shall submit a dcscnpuon of Grant activities,
in a format as required by the State. Should thc Grantee show a profit for any month, the Grantcc
shall apply the amount of profit against sublscqucnt reimbursement requests. The Grantee shatl
agree to provide information in addition to the monthly narrative at such times and in such manner
as the State may require, and to prepare any rcports which may be requested by the State including

‘but not Itmucd to a final or termination rcport if operations cease.

Mamtennnce of Records. The Grantee shatl keep and .maintain lhc records, documcnls and
accounts described herein for a’period of thr‘ec years after the FTA grant is closed. The Grantee .
shall maintain, and make available to the Slatc and the FTA, records relating to complaints and
comments received from the public. In the event the State disputes the Grantee's operations or
records as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution shall rest with the State.

Audits and lnspectwns Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date,-and for a pcnod of
three (3) years after the FTA grant is ciosed or the date of resolution of all matters relating to this
Agreement, whichever is later, at any lime dun?ng the Grantee’s normal business hours, and as often
as the State or the FTA may demand, the Grantee shall make availablé to the State and the FTA or
their designees all records - pcnammg to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall
permit the State and the FTA to audit, cxammle and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, grants, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personncl, Data (as defined in G-1
section 9.1) and other information relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in
this paragraph, "Grantee" includces ail pcrsonsl natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or
undcr common’ owncrsh|p with, the entity identified as the Grantee in 1.3 of G-1.
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Independent Audit. The Grantee shall submit on¢ audit done by one Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) for the entire project, or, as the Stalc| may require, for any part of the project upon demand.
Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the Grant Budget for that specific

purpose.

26.10.1 In the event the audit reveals that monies are due and owing to the State from the
Grantee, for whatever reasons, the Gramcc shall pay to the Slalc such sums within thlrty
(30) days of the audit date. :

The Grantec shall submit quarterly pcrfomlmancc drug and alcohol, and charter activity reports
within 30 days,of the end of each quarter and shall submit any forms, mformatlon of reports
required by the State to complete the FTA’ slNallonaI Transit Database (NTD) reporting.

General Transit Feed Specification (GTFSl) The Grantec shall generate and keep updated General
Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submtt rclated data for reporting to the National Transit
Database (NTD) as required. The Grantee shall submit related data to the State upon request:

Amend G—-I by adding “PROJECT EQUIPMENT ANDREAL PROPERTY” as Séction 27;

PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL!/PROPERTY. The following terms and conditions
apply lo all equipment and real prOpcrty purchased in whole or in' part with funds prowdcd
through this or other Agrcements bctwccn|lhc State and the Grantee:

All procurcmcnts shall be made in accord:ancc with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circylar 4220.1F and
future amcndmcnts and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Parts 661 and 663.

All vehicles shall be purchased by the State unless the Grantee has received pnor approval from

_the Statc to-procure vehicles. :

" All other equipment with a cost ifi excess Lf five Hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased by
the Grantee subject to the prior approval of the State.

C ¥

Title to all project equipment funded or olhcrwnsc provided by the Grantee shall be n the name
of the Grantee; provided, however, that thc Grantee shall give the State a security interest in all
such equipment at the time of purchase and shall execute financing statements and do all other
acts necessary or useful to the perfection of that interest and the renewal thereof. In connection
with the purchase of any motor vehicles pursuant to this Agreement, the Grantee shall give the
State a security interest in the motor vchlc!cs at the time of purchase and shall take all steps -
necessary to protect the State’s security mtcrcSI including taking stcps to identify thc State as a
lien holder of such motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

In the event that this Agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property become the
property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to such equipment shall be
transferred to the State as soon as feasible. Project equipment.will be disposed of in accordance
with FTA Circular 9040.1G and lhe State Management Plan unless written approval is received
~ from the Statc

Y

|
Amend G-1 by adding “EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION? as scction 28:

EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a current inventory listing of
all Project Equipment and Real Property iri.volvcd in this Agrcement. The Grantee shall submit
to the State a certification that the Project Elquipmcnl and Real Property as referenced in Section
. 27, is still being used in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. The inventory listing and
equipment certification shall be'supplied tojthe Stale on an annual basis beginning June 30, 2024

[year]. +

|
5
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A.12. Amend G-1 by adding “EQUIPMENT M}AINTENANCE” as section 29:

29. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. The Grantee shall be respons:blc for the maintenance
and repair of all equipment used in the Services described in' Exhibit D. The Grantee shall
maintain all such equipment at.a high level of cleantiness, safety, and mechanical soundness. The
Grantee shall certify that a proper mamlenancc plan that meets or exceeds the original cquipment |
‘manufacturer’s preventive maintenance gu:delmcs is followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must
be approved by the Grantee's Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair and physical
improvement activitics on equipment shall be conducted by the Grantee and at a location
specificd by the Grantee. The Grantee shall notify the State of any changes in this location. The °
Grantee further agrees to mainlain, rt:pznr| or make any physical improvement to cqu:pmcm as
requested by the State. The State, the FTA! and/or their designees shall have the right to conduct
periodic inspections for the purpose of conf' irming proper maintenance and repair.

A.13. Amend G-1 by adding “REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS” as section 30:

30. REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. |The Grantee shall maintain a complete and up to d:nc
record of all motor vehicle repairs and shall make such records-available to the State and the FTA
upon demand.

A.l4. Amend G-1 by adding “VEHICLE STOR;AGE" as section 31:

31.  VEHICLE STORAGE As applicable, with respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or
part under this Agreement, or matntained ulndcr this Agreement, the Grantee shall park or garage
cach vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safety for each vehicle. The
Grantee shall also ensure that each vchuclt‘: will be parked or garaged in such a manner that its
daily -operations are not.-impaired or " Suntailed by- conditions of . weather-.or any other
circumstances. The Grantee shall notify the State of the location of the parking or garaging site
and any relocation, , '

A.15. Amend G-1 by adding “TRAINING AND il)RlVER REVIEW?” as section 32:

32. TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. T;hc State may require participation in training courses
determined to be essential to FTA program management in this grant period and'may require
participation in such training programs as|it deems necessary by drivers and other employees
involved in the transportation of the public. Training may include defensive driving, passenger
assistance, emergency procedures and pe‘riodic refresher training every three (3) years. The
Grantee agrees that the State shall have the nght to review the performance of all drivers who are
employed in connection with this Agrecmcnl and to disallow the use of any driver whose

performance as a driver is determined to be unsatisfactory by the State.

A.16. Amend G-1 by adding “SAFETY REQUIREMENTS” as section 33:

33.  SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. As applu':ablc all project equipment shall be mspcctcd and
certified by the Department of Safety and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards and Federal Motor Carmier Safety Regulations as required by the United States
Department of Transportation, and by lhclNcw Hampshire Department of Safety under RSA
266:72-a, in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.

33.1.  Asapplicable, the Grantee shall provide the State with full, and prompt written notification
of any accident involving any vchiclcguscd in its Services. In addition, the Grantee shall be
-responsible to report any accident in (’:ompliance with State law.

33.2.  The Grantee shall submit to the Slalllc by February 15 of each year a report covering the
I
6.
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previous year (January | through December 31), summarizing the résults of its alcoho!
misuse prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall be in
compliance with 49 CFR Part 655. -

33.3. The Grantee shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA's Transit Asset

Managcment or Public TranSportn:tion Agency Safety Plan. purposes as required by
NHDOT for compliance purposes. | '

% .o\ g )
Amend G-1 by adding “SERVICE LIMITATIONS” as section 34:

SERVICE-L'IMITATIONS_. The Grantc": shall not engage in the provision Services other than
those described in Exhibit B, or outside the scrvice area described in Exhibit B, without the
written consent of the State and, as applicable, ‘without obtaining the appropriate opcrating

_authority. The Grantee shall not engage in charter or school bus operations excep? as permitted

by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605, rcSpcctivclg'f.

"Amend G-1 by adding “GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS™ as section 35:
. GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS. Thé Grantee warrants that with respect to the Services to

be perfomicd, it has obtained all licenses, [permits, or approvals which are required by any law,
order or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may be necessary for the
performance of the Services hereunder. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the

* Services shall be qualified to perform éuch!Scrviccs and shall be properly licensed and authorized

to perform such Services under alt appﬁlicalblc laws.

y -
Amend G-1 by adding“‘LABOR PROVISIONS” as section 36:
‘LABORPROVISIONS. The Grantee-agrees to-adhereo the-terms-and-conditions-of the-Unified

Protective Ammangement, Section 5333(b) of 49 USC 53 or as amended, incorporated herein for
the protection of the employces of any emptoyer providing transportation services assisted by
this Agrcement, and.the employees of | any ‘other surface transportation providers in the
transportation scrvice area identified in Exhibit B.

2 1

PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, jmplrovcmcnl, or discovery of the Grantee is conceived or
first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this grant, which invention,
improvement or discovery may be patcntaple under the.laws of the United Staies or any foreign
country, the Grantee shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed report. The rights
and responsibilities of the Grantee and the "Statc with respect 1o such invention, improvement, or
discovery will be determined in acco'rdancic with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies,

and any waiver thereof. !
'

A.21. Amend G-1 by adding “BROKERAGE R;EPRESENTATION” as section 38:

38.

.

BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Grantee warrants that it has not employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee,

"to solicit or secure this Agreement; and lllmt it has not paid or agreed to pay any company of
* person, other than a bona-fide cmployee \fyorking solely for-the Grantee, any fee, commission,
‘percentage, brokerage fee, gifis or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the

award or making of this-Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the State shall have

" the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct from the

Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover,'the full amount of such fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, giﬂ,lor contingent fee. .




SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
EXHIBIT B 5 .
SCOPE OF SERVICES ‘

The Grantee, Southwestern Community Services, Inc., (hereinafter the “Grantee”) shall
provide the following public transportation services:

a. Fixed route, demand- responsivc !andfor route deviation public transit services in
Sullivan County as detasled in lhc “Project Description” of the Grantee’s
application to the New Hampshlre Department of Transportation, Bureau of Rail
"and Transit (hcrcmaﬂcr ‘the Stale") for Section 5311 funding. The Grantee's
appllcauon is hereby mcorporatcd by reference and made part of this agreement.

b. Serve as the lead agency for ch:on 4 Sullivan for FTA Section S310°RCC funds
10 provide accessible lransporlauon services to seniors and individuals with
“disabilities in cooperatuon with the Region 4 Sullivan RCC: The Grantee's 5310
RCC grant application is hereby ﬂncorporated by reference and made part of this
agrecment. The Grantee agrees to provide all services indicated in the grant
~ application unless modified per tl}is Grant.

The following terms and conditions apply to all of the FTA Section 531 1-funded pubii_c
transit services provided by Grantee pursuant to this agreement: .

a. The State may require the Granlce/to provide additional transportation services or
.. to reduce transportation services prov:ded under this Grant. Any alterations t0 __
such tmnsponatnon services shall be submitted in wntmg by the § State to the
Grantee. The Grantee shall |mplcmcnt the alterations within thirty (30) days
unless a-different timeframe is agreed to by the State and the Grantec

b. The Graniee may request to revise transportation services, as submitted in the
Grantee’s grant application to theiState, to add, reduce, or-adjust transportation
services provided under this Grant. Any alterations to such transportation
services, including alterations forkthc provision of service to special events, shall
be requested in writing by the Grantee to the State for approval at least 30 days in
advance. Revisions subject’to a publlc comment period shall be requested at least
60 days in advance. Upon approvzlt] of the State, the Grantee shall implement any
alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different timeframe is agreed to by the
State and the Grantee. !

I . .

" ¢. The Grantee shali not change, add, or delete any route or make any fare, service,
or operating schedule adjustments without the prior written agreement of the
State, except in an emergency situlation. Insuch-an emergency, the Grantee shall
notify the State no later than the next working day following the day-of such
changes. Such emergency changes will be valid for a maximum of five days;
thereafter, the written approval of the State shali be required to continue such

emergency changes.

d. All project vehicles, including'lholsc Federally funded vehicles outlined in Exhibit
D, Project Equipment, as identified by their Vehicle Identification Numbers, as




well as any additiona! vehicles utilized for the project, shall be used in accordance

with all applicable Federal and State laws as well as State requircmcnls.
|

3. The following terms and c0nd1110ns applly to all of the FTA Section 5310-funded services
for seniors and mdwnduals with disabilities provided by Grantee pursuant to this
agreement: ‘. i I

The State may require the Grantc‘c to provndc additional transportation services or
to reduce transportation services provided under this grant. Any alterations (o
such transpoitation services shaltlbe submitted in writing by the State to the

* . Grantee. The Grantee shall implement the alterations within thirty (30) days

-

unless a different timeframe is agrccd to by the State and the Grantee.

Mobility management activities, f““d as applicable, transportation services,
subgrantees, and maximum reimbursement rates, shall consist of those submitted
in the Grantee's 5310 Regional Coordma(mg Council (RCC) application or as
subsequently modified by the State through written notification to the Grantee.
Further amendménts to mobility management activities, transportation services,
subgrantees, and/or maximum reimbursement rates require RCC approval, as
documented in official minutes, as well as written approval from the State.

Eligible Regional Mobility Managcr expenses shall be limited to those d:rccl[y
related to the position’s role as described within the 2016 “New Hampshire
Statewide Coordination of Comrrlmmty Transportation Services Plan” and/or
within the-most recent.“New Hampshlre Statewide Mobility Manager Network: A
Blueprint tor Implcmcmatmn“ bolh hereby incorporated by reference. Roles may.
be further modified based on thoqe recommended by the Statewide Coordmatmg
Councnl (8CQ) and approved in wntmg by the State. Sy

All services provndcd shall conform to FTA Section 5310-guidelines. Per FTA
requirements, the Grantee shall be responsible for oversight of subgrantccs and
contractors relative to FTA rcqunrements

The Grantee shall énsure the provnsnon of ADA-accessible services within the
RCC region. Any marketing matcnals brochures, and other scrvice information
shall describe it as ADA- acccss:ble It is acceptable for a subgrantee/lower tier
subrecipient that does not utilize hccessible vehicles to contract with an accessnblc
provider in order to meet this rcquuremcnt

The Grantee must fu|f'|ll its contractual obligations and provide its scope of

‘services throughout the Grant pcrl!od regardless of expenses exceeding the

maximum allowéd to be rcnrnbursed As necessary, the Grantee shall establish trip
priorities to ensure funds are not cxpended prematurely.

The State may require thé Grame!e to provndc'addmonal transportalion Services or
to reduce transportation services provided under this Grant. Any alterations to
such transportation services. shalllbe submitted in writing by the State to the
Grantee. The Grantee shall 1mp|ement the alterations within thirty (30) days
unless another timeframe is agreed to by the State and the Grantee.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES
EXHIBIT B
BUDlGET

"The Grant prlcc as defined in Section 1.8 of thc General Provisions, are the respective FTA Section
5311 and Section 53l0 RCC porllons of the chglblc pl’OjCCl costs. Federal funds are granted as

follows:

Section 5311 SFY 2024 SFY 2025
Administration $178.000 $178,000
Capiltal Preventive Maintenance | $28.,000 _$28,000
Capital ADA | $00 $00 -
Operating ' $208,000 ; $208,000
Total Scction 5311 X $414.000 $414.000

Two-year FTA 5311 Totals : ; $828,000 )

Section 5310 RCC ! SFY 2024 SFY 2025

Contracted Services | $50,000 ~ | $50,000

Mobility Managemcnt | $31.340 $31.340

"Regional Mobility Management | $70,760 . $70,760
Total 5310 RCC Funding ! $152,100 :$152,100
Two-year FTA 5310 RCC Totals | ' $304,200

. | S -
Total FTA Federal Funds I ssss,mo $566,100
) !
Total Two—Ycar Grant Funds Requested | SI l32 200

~a. Funds are contingent upon ‘Federal and State appropriations.

Not less than fourteen days prior to the submnssnon of the Grantee's first request for FTA Section
531 1. reimbursement, the Grantee shall submit !o the.State a budget mcorporanng all funds to be
expended in the provision of services pursuant !o this Grant. Budget revisions may be made with
writtcn approval of the Statc. |

The Grantee may seek reimbursement for these funds by submitting a monthly or q'uartcrly invoice
for the total eligible expenses. less agency match as applicable to'the Department, Thc invoice must
include verification of source(s) of matching funds and statcments from service providers, as
applicable, to support the request for matching funds.

t
Mobility management costs shall be itemized and include such information as required to support
the request. s l .

The Grantee will verify that trip reimbursement is for non-Medicaid-eligible trips o'nly_.

a I . . £
For expenses other than contracted services, the Grantee may seek reimbursement only for eligible
expenses listed in the budget and detail-of-cost form provided by the State, with the exception of.

- funds specifically reserved, if any, and identified in “Specifically Programmed Funds,” at the end of

this Exhibit.

r . . . ;
At the sole discretion of the State, the Grantee! 'rlnay carry forward any unexpended portion oflhc

federal funds inciuded in the Grant Price to a subscqucnl contract, if any, between the State and the
Grantee. ‘

i
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
EXHIBIT D
VEHICLE LIST

Transit Vehicles: 7

2016 (Modcrl ¥r. 2017) Ford E450 10&2 Passenger Bus

IFDEE3FS2HDCO0! 149

2016 Ford E350 8 & 2 Passenger Bus #1723 IFDEE3FSXGDCS57859
2017 #450 Ford 12 & 2 Passenger IFDFE4FS4HDC49297
2018 Ford E-450 IFDFE4FSOKDC07327

2019 Ford E450SD 1242

| FDFE4FS2KDC71435

2021 Ford E450 14&2

1FDFE4FNOMDC14275

2021 Ford E-450 14&2

IFDFE4FNIMDCI 8373




State of New Hampshire
. Dep'artm‘;ent of State

{
CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secrciary of Statc of she Stalc of New Hgmfpshirc. do hereby centify that SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY
SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshirc Nonprofit Corporation registered 10 transact business in New Hampshire on May 19, 1965,
I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccrcltary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65514 |
Certificate Number: 0006194063 h

IN TESTIMONY WHERECF,

I hereto set my hand and cause 1o be affixed
the Scal of the State of New H:;_mpshirg.
this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023,

ED

. David M. Scanlan
Secrctary of Stalc




CERTIFICATE OF, AUTHORITY o .

1, _Kevin Walterson : -, hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporahon!LLC cannot be contract s:gnatory) .

1. 1ama duly elected ClerkJSecretaryIOff cer of _Mm Community Services Inc
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The foliowung is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
heid on _June 18 . 2021 ;7 at which a quorum of the D:rectorslshareholders were present and voling. -

{Date) to . |

VOTED: That __Beth Daniels, CEQ i . {may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)
is duty authorized on behalf of _Southwestern Commupity Services Inc_ 1o enter mto contracts or agreemenls with
“(Nama of Corporation/ LLC) -~ T ;

the Stale of New Hampshlre and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to éxecute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendrnenls revisions, or modifications therelo, which
may in his/her judgment be deswable or necessary tQ effect the purpose of this vote:

3. | hereby certify that said vote ‘has not been amended or rlepealed and remauns in full force and eﬁect as of the

date of the contract/contract amendment to which this cemﬁcate is ‘attached. This authority remains valid ‘for

thirty (30} days from the date .of this Certificate of Authonty | further cerify that it is understood that the State of

New Hampshire will' rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currenlly’ occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bmd the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits_on the authority of.any,listed, individual to.bind the corporat:on in.gantracts wilh :HI ota/tszew Hampshure Y

all such hmltations_are expressly stated herein. /

A%L/

Dateg: H-27. 2%
i Signature of Elecled Officer

: o, Ndme: Kevin Watterson
; Title: Chairman of the Board

Rev. 03724720
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ACORD ~ ICATE OF LIA I Ll
CERTIF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE s

' THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF’ tNFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. |

IMPORTANT: if the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditiens of the pollcy. certaln pollcles may require an endarsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the cenlificate holder In lleu of su:h endorsement(s).

FROCUCER . COMIACT  Ana O'Donnell, CPIW, CIC ;
Clark Moranson Ingurance - puons . [603}352-2121 | [a%, oy {603} 357-8491
PO Box 606 “ ADbress; dodonneli@hilbgroup.com
: 3 : INSURER(S] AFFOROING COVERAGE NAIC #
Keene NH 03431 msuren A: Philadeiphia indemnity Insurance Co. 18058
WNSURED msungr g Maine Employers Mut ins Co 11149
' Soutlwesiem Communily Services Inc. INSUREBRC :
83 Community Way IMSURER O :
PO Box 603 INSURER £ :
Keene ' NH 03431 INSURER F : g
COVERAGES ] CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2022102023 ¢ . REVISION NUMBER:
THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED.TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD Y

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN, REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

NER FOUCYEFF | FOUCY EXF

i TYPE OF INSURANCE W3D ] Wy PoLICY NUNBER | INMDBYYYY) | Doy 1 Uy
COMMEACIAL GERERAL LIABILITY , : EACH OCCURRENCE ¢ 1.000,000
TORERTED
J CLAIMS-MADE !E occur PREMISES {E3 oocumonce) k] 100,000
|| | - MED EXP (Any one pavacn) 3 5.000
A ) PHPK2431763 067302022 | 067302023 | pepconeas saovmory |3 1.000.000
GENL ACGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: _ . GENERAL AGGREGATE ) [#000.000
POLICY ECT Loc . | - PROOUCTS - CospioP A | 3 2:000.000
OTHER: | . s
| AUTONOBLE LIABIITY 3 . 2 KT c[gm o € LIt s 1.000.000
>< AMY AUTO . . BOOLY INJURY (P person) $
| OWNED SCHEDULED ‘ >
A | | AUtosomuy vos PHPK2431766 06/30/2022 | 06/30/2023 | BOOLY INASRY (Per accidern) | §
AUTOS ony P res ; s
b ] ’.I_m T
[ <] vmenzLLA LAB L( occuR . ) " |eacH ococuRmeENcE g 2000000
A EXCESS LIAD CLAMSMADE PHUBS20879 067302022 | 06/30/2023 | ,acneqatE s 2.000,000
veo | > reresmon s _10.000 - il o
WORKERS COMPENSATION i G R 0
AND EMPLOYERS' LLABILITY T H ) X st | & O
B [Srcennemncn exciuoenr e [N }{wia 3102800768 0400172022 | 04/01/2023 |ELEACHACCIOENT —
{Mandutory I KH) . =z £, OISEASE - EACMPLOYEE | 5 500.000
H yes, describe under . 500,000
L SCAIPTION OF DPERATIONS below ; EL OrsEAsE . Poucy Ly |3 500,
, " EACH OCCURRENCE $1.000,000
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY
A PHPK2431763 : 0673072022 | 0673042023 |AGGREGATE $2,000.000
OESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS { LOCATIONS { VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additionsl Remarks Schadube, may be attached H more space ks required) !
Ja Siate: NH
Al officers included for coverage !
I
I
- |
|
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
- / :
i SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

. . ' L - THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
NH Depanmeni of Transportation Bureau of Rall & Tr ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

PO Box 483 ; |
|Au‘momz£n REPRESENTATIVE [

. woe NS Y e .

I © 1988:2015 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are reglstered marks of ACORD



i ! 0410472023

Y ° - ' DATE (MMDOYYYY)
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LlABlLlTY INSURANCE w

THIS CERTFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S) AUTHORRZED -
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTlFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificaie holder Is 2n ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
! IROGATION 1S WAIVED, subjoct to the terms and condltions of the pollcy. certaln policles may require an endorsement. A slalement on
ti... certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lleu of such endorsemont(s).

*RODUCER GONIACT  Ana O'Donnefl, CPIW, CIC .
i he Hdb Group New England, LLU ""O“C B m’é Nol:
PO Box 606 . . aDoREss: @odooneli@hibgroup.com
. [ INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE WAIC §

Keene . NH 03434 J'wsuren a; Philadeiphia indemnity Insurance Co 18058
NSURED k \ . wsurer p: Granile State Healthcare & Human Senvices Trust

Southwestern Comm Services inc ) \NSURBR C :

63 Community Way INSURER © :

PO Box 603 . INSURER E : .
.o v Keene NH 03431 ' NAURER F =
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2223 wiWCO | ) REVISION NUMBER: _

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. -NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM QR CONDITION OF ANY CONTR.ACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS"
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POI.ICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. )

- 0T —TOUEVEFF | POLCVED -
_‘-.—s,? TYPE OF (NSURANCE 130 | verp POLICY HUMBER {MMDONYYY) | (MWDDIYYYY) LTS
3| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 4 i EACH OCCURRENCE s 1.000,000 .
"OAMAGE TORENTED ..
I CLAIMS-MADE g OCCUR PREMISES (Es ocourence] $ 1_00,000
S<| PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY ) WED EXP (g ove pernon) | 5 5000
Al ¥ " PHPK2431763 06/30/2022 | 06/30/2023 1,000,000
PEASOMALA ADVINJURY |8
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: y GENERAL AGGREGATE § 2.000.000
pover %% [ Jioc PRODUCTS - Commopacs |5 2:000.000
OTHER: ) PROFESSIONAL - 1§ 1M/2M
.3 COMBIRED SINGLE UMY
I.w.muuout.ﬁumm.. . ey 2 _@‘mf”@- LM $ 1,000,000
] ANY AUTO ) ' BOORY INJURY [Pwr porson) | §
1 owneo SCHEOULED
A | Srosomy ey Y PHPK2431766 06/30/2022 | 0653072023 | BOOLY INJURY (Per acchient) | §
HIRED NOM-OWNED PHOPCRTY DANAGE 5
|| auTos onwy AUTOS ORLY g sociden) ;
t
>¢| vwereriatne | 3¢ oocun . . . EACH OCCURRENCE il 20001080
A EXCESS LIAD s | Y PHUB820879 06/30/2022 | 06302023 | ,ocneoate s 2,000,000
oeo | XX] reresmon ¢ 10.000 : i - 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION onv 3
AND EMPLOYERS® LIABIUITY " ovaw o > sisnre. |_|in 500,000
B | ocenatsben ExeLuoeer NIA HCHS 20232000036 040172023 | 0470172024 | B4 EACH ACCIDENT M
{ikandstory in Nr) . £ tisEasE . EAEmprovee |4 500.000
Y you, deucribe under " A 500.000
DESCRIPTION DF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY Ui | ¢ SO0
1
i i

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS f LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addlilonal Remarks Schaduls, may bs stischad if mors space bs rrquired}
3a stote: NH, All officers included. This certificale is Issved as a matier of information only and confers no rights upon the cenificate holder, Thls certificate
does not amend, exlend or alter tha coverage afforded by tha poficias relerenced herein.

Department of Transportation is included as addltiona! insured with respect to the Sullivan Colunty Transportation program.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER - |CANCELLATION

- 1 SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE'
! THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

Sisie of NH Depanment of Transportation- ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

John O Morton Building
PO Box 483

Concord : NH 03302 @“)‘e iea——

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

+ f“

i © 1388-2015 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights rcserved.
ACORD 25:(2016/03} The ACORD name and logo arn reglstercd marks of ACORD




Cerhifications and Assurances i = Fiseal Year 2023

L]
-

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2023 CEI'&"!'IF‘IECA'I‘I()NS AND ASSU RANCES FOR FTA
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing qummnou\ and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant: _dmfbuxsft_ﬂ_cp_f.‘?mmﬁ 543;.&@ S, Inc..

The Applicant ceriifies to the'applicable provisions of alt categories: (check here) Z
‘ Or.

The Applicant cerrifies to the applicable provisions of the categories il has selecied:

®
- - i -

Category . Cerdificution

} A%

1} Cerbifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant

P

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Fax Liabitity and Felony Convictions

04" Labbying

05 Trivaie Scotor Protections

06 Trn;xsit Asset Managcﬁcnt Plan ‘ : ’
07 Rolling Sinck Buy America Rcvicwls and Bus Testing

0% Urbani;:c.d Area Formula Grants Program
09, Fornuala Grants for R.ilr-al Arcas

C10 Fixed Guidews ay Capital In\'cstm(.m Grants and the L.\pudll(‘d
Project Delivery for (‘dpnal Investment Grams Pilo Program

11 (u.'mu. for Buses and Bus Facilities.and Low or No meton
‘ehitle Duploymuu Girant Programs




——

Cerifi

[2

b4

Infrastructure Finance Programs

cirions and Assurances

1

= ‘Fizcal Year 2023

Enhanced Mobility of Scniors and Individuals with Disabilities

Programs

State of Good Repair Granis

Alcobol and Controlled Substances Testing

Rail Safety Training und Oversight
Demand Responsive. Service

Interest and Financing (I'_'osls
Cybersceurity Cortification for Rait Rollin
Operations

Tribal Transit Programs

Emergency Relief Program

nz Stock and

CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE, PAGE

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT .

-

Namg of the Applicani; SOU}hMS'{ﬁrn_ mmW]Iffj (S\{]Vl Cﬁ_SJﬂC .

BY SIGNING BELOW, ou behall of the Applican, [ declare thau it has duly authorized me to imake these
Certiticatinns and Assarances and bind iss compliance, Thus, it agrees 10 comply with afl federal laws, rayulations,
ambrequirements, follow applicable tedecil guidancs, sid comply with ihe Cenifications and Assurices 45

ind:emed on the loregomy page appheublz to each applivetion its Authenized Representative makes o ihe Federal
Transit Adwministvation (FFAYin the (edernl liscal year, iencspeetive of whether he individual ihat acted on his or

hier Applicant”s behal Feaminues (o represang it

The Cerifications and Assurances the Applicani sélects apply 10 cach Award fur which it now secks. or may
tuter seek federal assisionce tu e uwarded by FTA during the federal tiscal veuy.

Thye Applicant afMimus the rachilness and acouvacy o' the Cenibicarions cad Assrances it has selected i the
statements submitcd witl this docuanent and any other subini ﬁlion wade w 1A, and acknowlcd_}:':s that tlw
Progeam Fraud Civil Romedics Actaf 1986, 31 US.CL g 380D & xeq, and implemienting LS. DUT regulstions,
cenification, a3surance or submission wade 10

“Program Fravd Civil Remedics.” 49 CFR pan 31 upply waamy,
FYA. The criminal provisions of t8 U.8.C. § 100) apply 10 any

certidbamion, assurancy, o subimission meide

connection with a federad pubitic iransporiation progran authorieed by 918

[ )

L. chapter 33 or any other stakne



Cerifications and Assuranccs

In sigping this decument, 1decliee utder penaluics of perjury
oy other sgatements made by e on behatf o the Applicant ar

Fiscal Year 2023

a1 the forcgoing Cenificaions and Assurances, and
wue il scgurnte,

Siu_:-r.uurc______m-&af_w

Date: Q_g/ﬁ&/.&.ﬁ.

Authorized Represemtative ol Apphcam

wne__ Beth Daniels LEO

e




FFY.2022 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Master Agreement
requires recipients and- subrecipients to corﬁpl)r with the requirements-contained in the
agreement in order 10 receive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT). "~ =~~~ 7~ 77

[ acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2022 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreem!en,t remains in force for the term of the
agreement.

.,.J/_zg;_-. s _QG.[Q./.'[Q_Q. —

g Date

i ameo Apency:

Name of Authorized Official . Signature




@ (LS. QEPRBTUENT OF LAROR

" Office of Labor-Management Standards :

- Special Warranty Arrangement . -

For Application to Other Than Urbanized and Over-the-Road Bus (\ccessibility
Pro;ects
. PURSUANT TO SECTION 5333(b) OF
TITLE 49 CI)F THE U.S. CODE CHAPTER 53
Jonuary 3,'2011

The fotlowing language shall be made part of the contract of assistance by reference in the Federal Transit Administration’s Master

Agreement as signed by the grantee:
|

The.terms and conditions set forth below shall apply for the proteclicim of the transportation-related employees.in the
transportation service arca of the Project, As a precondilion of the celease of assistance by the Grantee/State Agency to any
Recipient under the grant, the Grantee shall bind the Recipient to these obligations by incorporating this arrangement into the )
contract of assistance between the Grantee and the Recipient(s), by reference. If a Grantee fails to comply with the terms of the
Warranty and fails to bind a Recipient as a precondition 1o the release of funds, the Grantee will be a guarantor of the required
protections and the Grantee will be required to act as if it were the Recigient of funds unless and untit the Grantee is able to secure
the retroactive agreen?ent of the Recipient to be bound by the terms of the Warranty. n ’

These protective arrangements arc intended for the benefit of tranzit employecsin the 5&rvicc area of the project, who are

considered as third-party beneficiaries 10 the employee protective arrangements incorporated by referenced in the grant contract
between the U.S. Departmem of Transportation and the Grantee, and the parties to the contract so signify by executing that

contract. Transit ernployees are atso third party beneficiaries to lhe protective arrangements incorporated in subsequent contracts

of assistance between the Grantee and any Recipient: Employees, or- the.r.represenmtwe-may assert daumswnh réspect to-thess=
protective arrangements under this provisicn. This clause creates ne mdependent cause of action agamst the United States

Government.
{

The term “service area,” as vsed herein, includes the geographic area over which the Project is operated and the area whose -
poputation is served by the Penject, incloding adjacent aroar aﬁeﬂed by the Project, The term “Union,” ag wsed hernin, chall refer ta
any labor orgam.zauon representing employees providing public transporiation services in the service area of a Project assisted
under the grant. The term "employee,” as used herein, shall include individuals who may Fl’ may not be represented by a Union.
The term “Recipient,” as used herein, sha[l-"refer to any employer(s) receiving transportation assistance under the grant. The term

: “Grantee,” as used herein, shall refer to the applicant for assistance; 3 Grantee which receives assistance is also a Recipient.

. Peh A .

Where the Department of Labor (the Depaniment) deems it necessary to madify the requirements of this Special Warranty
Arrangement so that a particular Grantee or Recipient can continue to satisfy the fequiremenls of the statute, the Department will
issue a supplementary centification letter setting forth the allefnatcve provisions 1o be included in the contract of assistance
between the Grantee and £TA, by reference. These terms will be rnade binding upon the particular Grantee or Recuplent along with
these terms and conditions, !or each subsequent grant of assistance until withdrawn in writing by thr.' Department

.

[1) The Project shall be carried outin such a man‘ner'and upon such terms and conditions as will not adversely affect employees of
the Recipient and of any other surface public transportation providerin the traﬁsporta:ion'service aréa ol the Project. [t shallbe an
obligation of the Recipient to assure that any and all lran;gonation slervices assisted by the Prgject are contiacted for and operated
in such a manner that they do not impair the righu and interests ofa{fecled employees. The term “Project,” as used herein, shall
not be limited lo the particular facility, service, or operation assisted by Federal funds, but shall include any changes, whether
orgamzauonal operational, technologncal)or otherwise, which are a result of the assistance provided. The phrase "as a result of the
Project,” shall, when used in this arrangement, include events related Lo the Project occurning in ‘anticipation of, during, and
subsequent to the Project and any program of efficiencies or economies related thereto; provided, however, (hat volume rises and
falls of business, or changes in volume and character of employment brought about solely by causes other than the Project
(including any economies or efficiencies unrelated to the Project) are not within the purview of this arrangement.

An employee covered by this arrangement, who is not dismissed, dnsplaced or otherwise worsened in hisfher position with regard
to employment as a result of the Project, but who is dismissed, dnsplaced o¢ otherwise worsened solely because of the total or
partial termination of the Project or exhaustion of Praject funding shall not be deemed eligible for a dismissal or displacement
allowance within the meaning of paragraphs (6) and {T}of this arrangement,



(2) Whiere employees of a Recipient are represented for collective bargaenmg purposes, all Project services provided by that
Recipient shall be provided under and in accordance with any collective bargaining agreement applicable to such employees which
is then in efect. This Arrangement does not create any collective barga:mng relationship where one does not already exist or
between any Recipient and the employees of another eniployer. Where the Recipient has no collective bargzining relationship with
the Unions representing employees in the service area, the Retipient \Imll not take any action which impairs or interferes with the
rights, privileges, and benefits andfor the preservation or continuation of the collective bargaining rights of such employees.

[y
(3) All rights, privileges, and benefits (including pension rights and berllerts] of employees covered by this arrangement {including
employees having already retired) under existing collectwe bargammg agreements or otherwise, or under any revision or renewal
thereof, shall be preserved and continued; provided, however that such rights, privileges and benefits whuch are not {oreclosed
from further bargaining under appllcable law or contract may be modlrﬁed by collective bargaining and agreement by the Recipient
and the Union involved to subsiilute other rights, privileges and benefits. Unless otherwise provided, nothing in this arrangement
shall be deemed to restrict any rights the Recipient may otherwise have to direct the working forces and manage its business as it
deemed best, in accordance with the applicable collective bargaining'agreement.
{8} The collective bargammg rights of employees covered by this arrangement, including the right 1o arbitrate labor disputes and to
mainLain union security and checkoff arrangements, as provided by applucable laws, policies and/or existing collective bargaining
agreements, shall be preserved and continued. Provided, however, that this provision shall not be interpreted s as to require the
Recipient to retasn any such rights which exist by virtue of a collective bargammg agreement aher such agreementis no longerin
effect, N ]
The Recipient agrees that it will bargain collectively with the Union or otherwise arrange for the continuation of collective
bargaining, and that it will enter into agreements with the Union or afrange for such agreements to be entered into, relatuve toall
subjects which are or may be proper subjects of collective bargaining. I, at any time, applicable law or contracts permlt or grant to
employees covered by this arrangement the right to utilize any econamic measures, nothing in this arﬂngement shall be deemed
to foréciose the exercise of such right,

(5)(a) The Recipient shall provide to all affected employees sixty [60) days' notice of intended actions which may resultin

displacements or dismissals or rearrangements of the working forces as a result of the Project. In the case of employees

represented by a Union, such notice shall be provided by certilied malul through their representatives. The notice shalt contain a full

and adequate’statemient of the proposed changes, and-an-estimate of the number of employeesafiected-by the intended changesy-~——-
and the number and.clossifications of any job: within the jurisdiction and cantrol of the Recipient, includ'ing-those inthe

smployment ot any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21}, available (o be filled by such aflfedted enployess.

{5){b) The pro;:edures of this subparagraph shall 2pply to cases where notices involve employees represented by a Union for.
colleetive Lan gotning g puss, AU requast of either the Recipient or the representatives nf sorh emplayeer, negntiations for the
purpases of reaching agreement with respect o the apptication of the tenns anl, anelitics of 1his avcanganent shall commence
immediately. These negotiations shaltinclude determining the selecuon of forces from among the mass tansportation amployees
who may be affected as a result of the Project, to establish which such employees shall be offered employment for which they are,
qualified or can be trained: 1f no agreement is reached within twenty,{20) days from the commencement of negonauons any party
10 the dispute may submit the matter to dispute settlement procedures in accordance with paragraph (15) o this arrangement.
Unfess the parties olherwnse mutually agreein wrmng, no changei in operations, services, facilities or equapment withinthe
purview of this paragraph (5} shall occur-unti! after either: 1) an agreernent with respect to the application of the terms and
conditions of this arrangement 1o the intended changc(s] is reached; 2 the decision of the arbitrator has been rendered pursuant
to this subparagraph (bl; or 3} an arbitratar selected pursuant to Paralgraph {15) of this arrangement determmes that the intended
changels) may be instituted prior to the finalization of implementing arrangements.

{S}c) In the event ofa dispute as to whether an intended change within the purview of this paragraph (5) may be instituted at the
end aof the 60-day notice period and before an umplemenung agreement is reached or a final arbitration decision is| rendered
pursuant Lo subparagraph {b), any involved party may immediately subm:t that issue to arbitration under paragraph {(15) of this
arrangement' In any such arbitration, the arbitrator shall rely upon the standards and criteria utilized by the Surface Transportation
Board {and its predecessor agency, the Interstate Commerce Commission} 1o address the “preconsummation” issue in cases
involving employee protections pursuant 1049 U.5, C Section 11326 [orits predecessor, Section S(2}(f) of the Interstate Commerce
Act, as amended}. If the Recipient demonstrates, as a threshold marter in any such arbitration, that the intended action'is 2
trackage rights, lease proceeding or similar transaction, and not a merger, acquisition, cansolidation, or other similar transaction,
the burden shall then shift to the involved labor organization(s) to prave that under the standards and criteria referenced above,
the intended action should not be permitted to be instituted prior to the effective date of 2 negotiated or arbitrated implementing
agreement. If the Recipient fails 10 demonstmte that the intended acluon is a trackage rights, lease proceeding, or similar
transaction, it shall be the burden of the Recrpaent 10 prove that under the standards and criteria réferenced above, the intended
action should be permnned-to be instituted prior 10 the effective d;ne of a negotiated or arbitrated implementing agreement. For
purposes of any such arbitration, the time period within which the parties are to respond to the list of potential arbitrators



submitted by the American Arbitration Association Service shall be five (SJ"days, the nolice of hearing may be'given oralty orby
facsimile, the hearing will be held promptly, the award of the arbitrator shall be rendered promgtly and, unless otherwise igrced e .
by the parties, no later than-fourteen (14} days from tlie date of closinlg the hearings, with five (S} additional days for mailing il *
posthearing briefs are requested by either party, The intended changle shall not be instituted during th pendency of any T
arbitration proceedings under this subparagraph (c).

{S){d} I an intended change within the purview of this paragraph (5)i is instituted belore animplementing agreement isreached ora,

final arbitration decision is rendered pursuant to subparagraph (b), all employees affected shall be kept l‘manc:ally whole, asifthe ~
noticed and implemented action has not taken place, from the time they are affected until the effective date of an implementing '
agreement or final arbitration decision. This protection shall be in addition o the protective pericd defined in paragraph (14) of this
arrangement, which period shall begin an the effective date of the ileememlng agreement or final arbitration decision rendered &
pursuant 1o subparagraph [b). _ iz

An employee selecting, bidding on, or hired to fill any position established 2s a result of 2 noticed and implemented action prior to
the consummation of an implementing agreement or linal arbitration decision shall accumulate o benefits under this
arrangement as a result thefeql during that period prior to the consummation of an implementing agreement or final arbitration

decision pursuant to subparagraph (b). )

(6}{a) Whenever an employee, retained in service, recalled 1o service..'or employed by the Recipient pursuant to paragraph's'.ﬁ), {7

(e), or (18) hereof is placed in a worse position with respect to compensation as a result of the.Project, the emplbyee shall be

considered a “displaced employee”, and shall be paid a monthly "displacement allowance” to be determined in accordance with

this paragraph. Said displacement atfowance shall be paid each displaced employee dufing the protective p'»erlpd so long as the

employee is unable, in thé exercise of his/her seniority rights, to cblailn a l?osilion praoducing compensation equal to or exceeding

the compensation the employee received in the position from which the employee was displaced, adjusted to reflect subsequent .

general wage adjustments, includin g cost of living adjustments where provided for. ;
] :

(6}(b) The displacement allowance shall be a monthly allowance determined by computing the total compensation recewed by the

employee, including vacation allowances and monthly compensanon guarantees, and hnsjher total time paid for during the last

twelve {12) months in which the employee performed compensated siemce more than fi fty per centum of each such months, based

upon the employee's normal work schedule, imniediately preceding the date of hisflier dn:.placemenl as a resuit of the Project, and

by divi(:ﬁl'_lg separately the total compensation,and the.totaltime paid for by twelve, thereby producing the average monthly . . ... ...

compensation and the average monthly time pald for. Such allowance shali be adjusted Lo reflect subsequent general wage-_

adiustments, including cost of tiving adjustments where proviead farlif the displacad employee's compensation in hisfher current

position is less in any month during his/her protective peried than the aforesaid average compensation {adjusted 10 reflect

s

'subsequent general wageadjustments, including cost'of tiving-adjustments where provided for), the employee shall be paid the

dlﬁerence less compensation for any time lost on account of voluntary absences to the extent that the employee is not available
for service equivalent to histher average monthly time, but the employee shall be compensatediin addition thereto at the rate of
the current position for any time worked in excess of the average monthly time paid lor. tf a dnsplaccd empIOyee fails to exercise
hnslher seniority rights to-secure- ;nother posilion tg which the emptayee is entitled under the then existing collective bargaining
agreement, and which carries 2 wage rate and compensation exceeding that of the position which the employee elects L retain,
the employee shall thereafter be treated, for the purposes of this paragraph, as occupying the position the employee elects to
decline. - 3

{6}(c) The displacement allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period in the event of the displaced
employee’s resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause in accordance with any labor agreement applicable to hisfher

employment. [
T

" (7)(a) Whenever any employee is laid off or otherwise deprived of employment as a result of the Project, in accordance with any

collective bargaining agreement applicable to his/her employment, the enﬂployee shall be considered a "dismissed employee” and
shall be paid a monthly dismissal allowance to be determined ins accardance with this paragraph. Said dismissal allowance shail
first be'paid each dismissed employee on the thirtieth (30th) day fOllO[wing the day on which the employee is “dismissed” and shall
conlinue during the protective period. a5 follow: & .

Employee's length of service
1 day to 6 years equivatent period . A .
6 years or more 6 years

The monthly dismissal allowance shall be equivatent to one-twelfih {L/32th) of the total compensauon received by the employeein .
the {ast twelve {12) months of histher employment in which the employee performed compensalion service rnore |han fifty per
centum of each such month based on the employee’s normal work schedule to the date on which ll}e employee was first deprived

L *» . i




of employment as a result of the Project. Such allowance shall be adjusted 10 reflect subsequent general wage adjustments,
including cost of living ad;ustments where prowded for - '

{1(b) An employee shall, be cegarded as deprived of employment and entitled to a dismissal allowance when the position the
employee holds is abolished as a result of the Project, or when the position the employee holds is not abolished but the employee
toses that position as a result.of the exercise of seniority rights by an employee whose position s abolished as a result ol the Project
or as a result of the exercise of seniority rights by other employees brought aboutasa résult of the Project, and the employee is
Unable to obtain anothér posmon gither by the exercise of the employee's seniority rights, or through the Recipient, in accordance
with subparagraph (e). In the absence of proper notice followed by anragreemem or decision pursuant to parograph (S} hereol, no
employee who has been deprived of employment 3s a result of the Project shall be required to exercise hisfher semoruy rights to
secure another position in order to qualify for a dismissal allowance hereunder. \ i

{1H{c) Each employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall keep the Recipient mlormed asto hisfher current address and the
current name and address of any olher person by whom the employee may be regularly employed orif the employeeis self-
employed.

'

{T}Hd) The dismissal al!owance shall be paid to the regularly assigned mcumbenl of the position abolished. If the position of an
employee is abolished when the employee is absent from service, the employee will be enmled to the dismissal ollowance when
the employee is availabie for service. The employee temporarily llllmg sald position at the time it was obolished will be given a
dismissal allowance on the. basis of that position, until the regutar employee is available for service, and lhereafter shall revert to
the employee's previous status and will be given the p:otecuons of the agreement in said position, if any aré due him/her. /

(7){e) An employee receiying a dismissal allgwance shall be subject to ¢all to return to service by the employee’s former employer,
netification shall be in accordance with the terms of the then-existing coltective bargaining agreement if the employeeis
represented by 3 union, Prior to such call to return to work by hnslherlemployer the employee may be required by the Recipientto
accept reasanably comparable employment for which the employee is physically and mentalty qualified, or for which the employee
can become qualified after a reasonable training or retraining period, provided it does not require a change in residence or infringe
upon the employment rights of other employees under then-existing collective bargaining agreements.
)
(7){f} When an employee whois receiving a dismissal allowance again commences employmentin accordance with subparagraph
(e) above, said dllowande $hall céasé while the employee is so régmployed, and the period of time’ durmg which the employeeis so" -
reemployed shall be deducted from the total period fer which the émployee is entitled to receive a dismissal allowance. During the
time of such reemptoyment the employee shall be entitled 10 the protchons of this armangement o lhe extent they are applicable.
(THg) The dismissal- allowance of any employee who is otherwise employed shall be reduced to the extent that the employee’s
combined monthly earnings from such other employment or self empldyment any benefits received from any unemployment
insurance law, and hisfher dismissal altowance exceed the amount u;’aon which the employee’s dismissal allowance is based. Such
« employee, or hic/her urion reprecentative, and the Feciplent shall agree upan a procedurs by which the Redipisot stall T kept
currently mlonned of the earnings of such employee in employment !olher than with xhe employee's former employer, including
seif-employment, and the benefits received.
{7)ih) The dismissal allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period in the event of the filure of the employee
-without good cause to return to service in accordance with the applicable labor agreement, of to accept emptoyment as provided
under subparagraph (e) above, or in the event of the employee’s resugnauon death, retirement, or d:smissal for cause in
accordance with any labor agreement applicable to hig/her employmenl
{7t A dlsm:ssecl employee receiving a dusmussal allowance shall actively seek and not refuse other reasonably comparable
employment oflered him/her for which the employee is physically and mentally quatified and does not require a change in the
employee s place of residence. Failure of the dismissed employee to comply with this obligation shall be grounds for
discontinuance of the employee’s allowance; provided that said dismissal atowance shall not be discontinued until final
determination is made either by agreement between the Recipient and the employee or his/her representative, os by final
arbitration decision rendered in accordance with paragraph (L5) of this arrangement that such-employee did not comply with this
obligation. :

{8} In determining length of service of a displaced or dismissed employee for purposes of this arrangement, such employee shall be
given full service credits in accordance with the recoeds and labor agreemenls applicable to him/her and the employee shall be
given additional service crednts for each menth in which the employee recewes a dismissal or displacement aliowance asif the
employee were continuing Lo perform services in hisfher foreer po‘smon

(9} Mo employee thail be entitled to either a displacement or dismissal allowance under paragraphs (6} or (7) hereof because of the
abotishment ¢l 2 position Lo which, at some future time, the employee could have bid, been transferred, or promoted.

u



(10} No employee receiving a dismissal or displacement allowance shall be deprived, during the emptoyee’s prc;lected period, of
any rights, privileges, or benefits attaching to hisfher employment, including, without limitation, group life insurance,
hospitalization and medical care, free transportation for the employele and the emplayee’s family, sick leave, continued status and
participation under any disability or retirement program, and such olrler employee benefits as Railro-ad Retirement, Social Security,
workmen's Compensation, and unempldyment compensation, as well as any other benefits to which the employee may be entitled
under the same céndih'ons and so long as such benefits continue to be accorded to other employees of the bargaining unit, in
active service or furloughed as the case may be.

{11){a} Any employee covered by this arrangement who is retained in Ilhe service of hisfher employer, or who is later restored to
service after being entitled to receive a dismissal allowance, and who is required 1o change the point of hisfher émploymentin
order to retain or secure aclive employment with the Recipient in accordance with this arranger‘nent, and whao is required to move
his/her place ol residence, shall be reimbursed for att expenses of mO\lfing his/her household and other personal effects, for the
traveling expenses for the employee and members of the employee’s immediate lamily, including living expenses for the emplayee
and the employee'’s immediate family, and for hisfher own actual wage loss during the time necessary for such transfer and for a
reasonable time thereafier, nol 10 exceed five {S5) working days. The e::tact extent of the responsibility of the Recipient under this
paragraph, and the ways and means of transportation, shall be agreed upon in advance between the Récipient and the affected
employee or the employee’s representatives. .

{11){b} i any such employee is laid off Wwithin three (3) years after changing his/her pgint of employment in accordance with
paragraph {3) hereol, and elects to move his/her place of residence back to the original point of employment, the Recipient shall
assume the expenses, losses and costs of moving to the same extent provided in subparagraph (a) of this paragraph (11) anﬁ
paragraph {12){a) hereol. . )
v . )
{(11)(¢) No claim for reimbursement shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph unless such claim is presented to the
Recipient in writing within ninety (90} days after the date on which the expenses were incusred.
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(11)(d) Except as otherwise provided in‘subparagraph (b}, changes in place of residence, subsequent to the initial changes asa
result of the Profect, which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of seniority rights, shall not be
considered within the purview of this paragraph. SRR S WS S S ———
{12}{a) The following conditions shall apply to the extent they are applicable in each instance to any employee who is retained in '
the service of the employer (or who is later restored 1o service after being entitied Lo receive a dismissal allowance), who is required
to change the point of his/her employment as a result of the Project, and is thereby required to move hisfher place of residence.

If the employee is under a contract to purchase hisfher home, the Recipient shail protect the employee against loss under such
contract, and in addition, shall relieve the employee from any further obligation thereunder.

If the employee holds an unexpired lease of 3 dwelling occupied as the employee's home, the Recipient shall protect the employee
from all loss and costin sec'un’ng the cancellation of said lease.

/
{12)(b) No claim for loss shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph unless such claim is presented to the Recipientin
writing within one year after the effective date of the change in residence.

{12}{c) Should a controversy arise in respect to the value of the home the foss sustained in its sale, the lass uinder a contract for
purchase, loss and cost in securing termination of a lease, or any other question in connection with these matters, it shall be
decided through a joint conference between the emptoyee, or histher,union, and the Recipient. In the avent the{n are unable to
agree, the dispute or controversy may be reférred by the Reciplent or the union to a board of compelen't real estate appraisers
selacted in the (ollowing manner: ane {1) to be sefected by the representatives of the employee, and one (1) by the Recipient, and
these two, if unable to agree within thirty (30) days upon the valuation, shall endeavor by agreement with ten (10) days thereafter
to select a third appraiser of to agree to a method by which a third appraiser shall be setected, and failing such agreement, either
party may request the State and local Board of Real £state Com[nissit:llners to designate within ten (10} days a third appraiser,
whose designation will be binding upon the parties and whose iurisdilction shall be limited to determination of the issues raised in
this paragraph only. A decision of a majority of the appraisers shall be. required and said decision shall be final, binding, and
conclusive. The compensation and expenses of the neutral appraiser including expenses of the appraisal board, shall be borne
equally by the parties to the pr-ocee_dings. All other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them, including the compensation
of the appraiser selected by such party.

{12)}{d) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph {11){b) hereof, changes in place of residence, sﬁbseqﬁenl to theinitial changes as
aresult ol the Project, which are not a resutt of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of seniority rights, shall notbe




" considered within the purview of this paragraph.

{12}{e} "Change in residence” means transfer 10 a work location whn:r is eulher - {A) outside 2 radnus of twenty (20) miles of lhe
employee's former work location and farther from the employee’s resrdence than was hisfher {ormer work location, of (B) is more
than thirty {30) normal highway route miles from the employee’s residence and also farther [rom hisfher residence than was the
employee's former work logation.

{13){2} A dismissed employee entitled to protection under this arrangement may, a1 the employee's option within iwenty-one (21)
days of his/her dismissal, resign and (in lieu of all other benefits and protections provided in this arrangement) accept alump sum
payment computed in accordance with section {9) of the Washington'Job Protection Agreement of May 1936: \

Length of Seryice Separation Allgwance  «
1 year and less than 2 years 3 months' pay
27""376""
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In the case of an employee with less than one year's service, five days' pay, computed by multiplying by S the normat daily eamings
{including regularly scheduled overtime, but extluding other overtime payments) received by the emp} oyee in the position last
occupied, for each month in which the employee performed service, will be paid as the lump sum. '

Length of sérvice shall be computed as provided in Section 7{b) of the washington Job Protection Agreement, as foliows:

For the purposes of this arrangement, the Iength of service of the employee shall be determined from the date the employee Ias‘t
acquired an ernployment status with the emptoying carrier and the emplayee shall be given credit for one month's service for each
month in which the employee performed any service (in any capacm,: whatsoever} and twelve {12) such months shall be credited as -
one year's service. The employment status of an employee shall not be interrupted by furlough in instances where the employee ¢
“hasa right to and does return to service when called. In determmmgllength ol service of an employee acting as an officer or other
afficial representative of‘an emplGyde organization, the employee will be given-credit for perfqrmmg service while so engaged on
leave of absence from the service of a carrier, . )
{13){b) One month's pay shall be computed by muiliplying by 30 the normal daily earnings (including regularly scheduled overtime,
but excluding other overtime payments} received by the employee in the position last occupied priorto ime of the employee’s
dismissal as a result of the Project. :
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{14) Whenever used herein, untess the context requires atherwise, the term ~protective period™ means that period of time during
which a displaced o “Uisniissed emplayeeis to'be provided protection hereunder and extends from the date on which an employee
is displaced or dismissed to the expiration of six (6} years therefrom, prcmded however, that the protective.period for any
particular employee during which the employee is entitled to receive the benefits of these provisians shall not continue for a longer
period-loitowing the date the employee was disptaced or dismissed than the employee's length of service, as shown by the records
and labor agreements applicable to his/her employment prior to the date of the employee's displacement or dismissal.

{15}{a) tn the event that employeel(s} are represented by a Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the
interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this airrangement.'ncu otherwise governed by paragraph 12(c}, the
Labor-Management Relations Act, as amended, the Railway Laber Acr,' asamended, or by impasse resolution provisions in\a
collective bargaining or protective arrangement involving the Recipient and the Union, which cannot be settled by the parties
thereto within thirty {30) days after the dispute or controversy anses may be referred by any such party to any final and binding
disputes'settlement procedure acceptable to the parties. In the evenl they cannot agree upon such procedure, the dispute, claim,

or grievance may be submitted at the written request of the Recipient or the Union to final and binding arbitration. Should the
parties be unable to agree upon |he selection of a neutral arbitrator rvlthm ten (10) days, any party may request the American
Arbitration Association (o rurmsh fram among arbitrators wha are then available to serve, five (5) arbitrators from which a neutral
arbitrator shall be setected. The parties shall, within five (5] days after the receipt of such list, determine by lot the order of
elimination and thereafter each shall, in that order, alternately eliminate one name until only one name remalns. The remaining
person on the list shall be' the neulral arbitrator, Untess otherwise provided, in the case of arbitration proceedings, under paragraph
{5) of this arrangement the arbitration shall commence within fifteen (15) days atter selection or appointment of the neutral
arbitrator, and the dec\sslon shall be rendered within forty-five (45) days after the hearing of the dispute has been concluded and the
record closed. The decision shall be finat and binding, All the condmons of the arrangement shall continue 16 be effective durmg
the arbitration proceedings.



{15)(b) The compensation and expenses of the neutral arbitrator, and any other jointly incurred expenses, shall be borne equally by
_the Union{s) and Recipient, and all other expenses shalt be paid by the party incurring them. '

{15}c) In the event thal employee{s) are not represented by a Union, anly dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or refating Lo the
interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this arrengement which cannot be settled by the Recipient and the
employee(s) within thirty {30} days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any final and
binding dispute settlement procedure acceptable to the parties, or in the event the parties cannot agree upon such a procedure,
the dispute or controversy may be referred to the Secretary of Labor for 3 final and binding determination. |

L]

(15)(d) In the event of any dispute a5 to whether or not a particular employee was affected by the Project, it shall be the abligation
of the employee or the representative of the employee to identify the Project and specify the pertinent facts of the Project relied
upon. It shall then be the burden of the Recipient to prove that factors other than the Project affected the employee. The claiming
empioyee shall prevail il it is established that the Project had an effect upon the employee even if other factors may also have’
affected the employee. (See Hodgson‘s Affidavit in Civil Action No. 825-71).

(16) The Recipient wnII be financially responsible for the application of these conditions and will make the necessary arrangements
so that any employee covered by this arrangement may file 3 written claim of its violation, through the Union, or d:rectly ifthe
employee is outside the bargaining unit, with the Recnprent wuthm slxlty {60) days of the date the employee is terminated or. Ia-\d off
as a result of the Project, or within eighteen (18} months of the date the employee’s position with respect (o his/her employment is
otherwise worsened as a resull of the Project. In the latter case, if the events giving rise to the claim have occurred over an
extended period, the 18-month limitation shall be measured from the last such event. No benefits shall be payable for any period
prior to six {6} months from the date of the filing of any claim. Unless such claims are liled with the Recipient within said time .
limitations, the Recipient shall thereafter be rgticved of all liabilities and obligationi'related to the claim,

The Recipient will fully hanor the claim, making appropriate payments or will give notice to the ctaimant or h:s[her representative

of the basis for denying or modifying such claim, giving reasons’ therefore Il the Recipient fails to honor such claim, the Union or
non-bargaining unit employee may invoke the following procedures for further joint investigation of the claim by giving notice in
writing. Within ten (10} days Irorn the receipt of such notice, the pames shall exchange such factual material as may be requested of
them relevant to the dlSpOSlllon of the claim and shall jointly take such steps as may be necessary or desurable to obtain from any
third party such additional factual materials as may be relevant. in the event the Recipient rejects the claim, the claim may be )
processed 1o arbilation as heieinabove provided by paragraphi15).|__
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{17} Nothing in this arrangement shall be construed as depriving any employee of any rights or benefits which such employee may
have under existing employment or collective Bargainingagreemenl? or otherwise; provided that there shall be no duplication of
benefits to any employee, and, provided further, that any benefit under this arrangement shatl be construed te include the
conditions, responsibilities, and obligations accompanying such benefit. This arrangement shall not be deemed a waiver of any
rights of any Union or of any represented employee derived from any other agreement or provision of federal, state or local law.

(18) During the employee'; protective period, a dismissed employee shall, if the employee so requests, in wrilin.g, be granted

priority ol employment or reemployment 10 fill any vacant position within the jurisdiction and control of the Recipient reasonably
comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed, including those in the employment of any entity bound by this
arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21} herein, for which the employee is, or by training or retraining can become, qualified; not,
however, in contravention of collective bargaining agreements related thereto. In the event such employee requests such training

or re-training to fill such vacant position, the Recipient shall provide for such training or re-tr2ining al no cost to the employce. The
employee shall be paid the salary or hourly rate provided for in the applrcable collective bargaining agreement or atherwise
established in personnel polncnes or practices for such position, plus any displacement alldwance to which the employce may be
otherwise entitled. If sugh dismissed employee who has made such request lails, without good cause, within ten [10) days to accept
an offer of 2 positian comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed for which the employee is qualified, or for which .
the employee has satisfactorily completed such taining, the employee shall, effective at the expiration of such ten-day period,

forfeit all rights and benefits under this arcangement.

As between employees who request employment pursuant 10 this paragraph, the following order where applicable shatl prevait in
hiring such empltoyees:

(a) Employees in the craft or class of the vacancy shall be given priority over employees without seniority in such cralt or class;

(b) As between employees having seniority in the craft or class of the vacancy, the senior employces, based upon their service in
that craft or class, as shown on the apgropriate seniorily roster, shall prevail over junior employees;

{c) As between employees not having seniomy in the craft or class of the vacancy, the senior employees, based upon their servicein
the crafts or classes in which they do have seniority as shown on the appropriate senlorlty rosters, shall prevail overjumor
employees.
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{19) The Recipient will post, in a prominent and accessible place, a notice stating that the Recipient has received federal assistance

under the Federal Transit statute and has agreed to comply with the provisions of 43 U.5.C., Section 5333(b). This notite shall also

specily the terms and conditions set forth herein for the protection of employees. The Recipient shall maintain and keep on file all s
relevant books and records in sufficient detail as to provide the basic infermatiofi'necessary to the proper application,

- administration, and enforcement of this arrangement and Lo the proper determination of any claims arising thereunder.

{20} 1n the event the Project is approvéd for assistance under the statute, the foregoing terms and conditions shall be made pant of
the contract of assistance between the federal government and the appllcant for federal funds and between the appliant and any
recipient of lederal lunds; provided, however, that this arrangement shall not merge into the contract of assistance, but shall be
independently binding and enforceabte by and upan the parties therelp, and by any covered employee or hisfher represeniative, in

accordance with its terms, nor shall any other emptoyee protective agreement merge into this arrangement, but each shall be

independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties lhere'to, in accordance with its terms. | —
. L3 . [l

{21) This arrangement shall be binding upan the successors and assigns of the parties hereto, and no provisions, terms, or

- obligations herein contained shall be.affect'ed, modified, allered, or changed in any respect whatsoever by reason of the

arrangements made by or for the Recipient to manage and operate the system.

Any person, enterprise, body, or agency, whether publicly - or privately-owned, which shall undertake the management, provision
and/or operation of the Project services or the Recipient’s transit sysiem, of any parnt ar portion thereol, under contractual
arrangements of any form with the Recipient, its successors or 2ssigns, shall agree to be bound by the terms of this arrangement
and accept the :espons:bnmy with the Recipient for [l pefformancé of these conditions. As 3 condition precedent 1o any Fsuch
contractual arrangemenu the Recipient shall require such person, enterprise, body or agency to 5o agree.

{22) In the event of the acquisition, assisted with Fecleral funds, of any transportation system or services, or any partor poriion
thereof, the employees of the acquired entity shall be assured emp{oymenl in comparable positions; within the jurisdiction and
control of the acquiring entity, inctuding positions in the employment of any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to
paragraph (21). All persoris'employed under the provisions of this paragraph shall be appointed to such comparable positions
without examination, other than that required by applicable federal, state or federal law or collective bargam:ng agreement, and
shalt be credited with their years of service for purposes of seniority, vacations, and pensions in accordance with the records of
their lofmer employer and/or any app.licable collective bargaining agreements, E

{23) Thé employees covered by this arrangement shall continue to receive any applicable coverage under Social Security; Railroad
Retirement, Workmen's Compensalian, unemployment compensation, and the like. In no event shall these.benefits be worscned
as a result of the Project.

(24} In the event any provision of this arRngement is held to be invalid, or otherwise unenforceable under the federal, state, or
local taw, in the context of a particular Project, the remaining provns:r.:lms of this arrangement shail not be affected and the invalid or

" unenforceable provision shall be renegouated by the Recipient and lllme interested Union represematwes il any, of the emptoyees

involved for purpose of adequate replacement under Section 5333(b). i such negatiation shall not result in mutually satislactory
agreement any party may invoke the jurisdiction of the Secretary of Uabor to determine substitute fair and equitable employee
protective arrangements Tor application only to the particular ijectl. which shall be incorporated in this arrangement 6nly as
applied to that Project, and any other appropriate action, remedy, of relief. '

{25) If any employer of the employees covered by this arrangement shall have rearranged or ad;usv.ed its forces in anticipation of .
the Project, with the effect of depriving an employee of benefits to whnch the employee shoutd be entitled under this arrangement,
the provisions of this arrangement shall apply to such employee as o the date when the employee was so affected.
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement - Revised 07/18/2022

FTA and 2 CFR|200 Agreement Cy

’ 1
Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA}
Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDbT)
Name of Subrecipicm'/Contracting Agency: Southwestern t‘rxmmunity Services

Southwestern Qammuni{y Services, shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations,
and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required

by 2 CFR Par{ 200'as follows: "

FTA award project description: (ds required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA) ) ) ¢

Amount: $304,200.00
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA)I number: 20.513 e
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5310 (COMBINED) RCC PROGRAM APPLICATION
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-2021-016-01 "

Federal Award Date: 9/1/22 .

- . - . o

Contact information for sub-awarding official: 4

Name: Michelle L. Winters Title: Director of Acronautics, Rail & Transit .
Email: Michelle.L.Winters@dot.nh.gov Phone: 6§03-271-2449

Is this award for research and development? No

NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A -

Subrecipient/Contractor Information:
Subrecipient/Contractor Name: Southwestern Crlimmunity Services

Subrecipient/Contractor SAM.GOV 1.D.: HMUI'JXKBMBJCS
Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Beth Daniels
Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: CEO

Fedeeal Clauses: N/A ;
Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient/Contractor Federal indirect cost rate: 12%
{An approved federally recognired indirect cost raie nego;ia!ed benveen the subrecipienyconiractor and the Federal
Government or, if no such rate exisis, either a rate ncgo!iafred benveen the pass-through entity and the subrecipieni
fin compliance with this pari), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414 indirect. (F&4) costs,
paragraph (1), : . .

Subaward Period of performance:
Start Date: 7/1/23 End Date; 6/30/25

A
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement i . Revised 07/18/2022

Total amount of FTA sub-awaid obligated by this action fcontract/umendmeni):
For FFY: 2024 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $304,200.00

Total amount of FTA sub- award committed to the subrecipiernt foriginal contract & amend‘mcm:
For FFY: 2024 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: 5304 200.00

Pass-through requirements: : . - ,

The Subrecipient/Contraclor, Southwestern Community Services agrees to meet all requirement
imposed by the pass-through entity INHDOT) oni{the subrecipient so that the Federal award is
used in accordance with Federal statues, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal

award.

[l e -

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Southwestern Community Services agrees to any additional
requirements that the pass-through entity NHDOT) imposes on thé subrecipient in order for the
pass-through entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own

" responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required
financial and performance reports.

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Southwestern Communirg Services agrees to permit the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to havé acccss to the subrecipients records and financial
statements as necessary for the pass-through ennry to meet the requirements of this part; and
appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward

Date: D“f‘ Q'ua,a
Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Beth Daniels

Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: CEO

Signature of authorizing subrecipient/contracting|official: M_ML_
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

_FTA and 2 CFR !200 Agreement

Name of Awardiné Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)
Name of ._S‘ubrecipiem/Comracr{ng Agency: Southwestern Cﬂmmunityl.;'er\':iccs
Southwestern Commu}rft;; Services, shall comply with all-applicablé federal laws, regulations,
and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master

Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes inlormation required
. by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows: ] o

!
[

FTA award project description: (As required io be responsive fo the Federal Funding Accountabilitv and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount: $828,000.00
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 20.509

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 531} (RUR'AL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT
SOLICITATION ;
Federal Award Identification Numbér (FAIN): _NH-ZDZI-OI? .

Federal Award Date’ 9/8721 W 2 @ Boe e

Contact information for sub-awarding official: .
Name: Michelle L. Winters Title: Director of Aeronautics. Rail & Transit
Email- Michelle.L Winters@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2449

Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

#

Subrecipicnt/Contractor Information:
Subrecipient/Contractor Name: Southwestern Community Services

| !
" Subrecipient/Contractor SAM.GOV LD.: HMUIUXKSMBJCl! ! ®
Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting of'lﬁcipl: Beth Daniels '
Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: CEO

Federal Clauses: N/A X

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes

Subrecipient/Contractor Federal indirect cost rate: 12% 3 :

(An approved federally recognized indirect cost raie negotiated henween the subrecipieni/contracior and the Federal
Govermmnent or, if no such rate exists, either a rate negau"a!ed between the pass-through eniity and the subrecipient
(in compliarice with this part). or a De Minimis indireci cost rate as defined in §200.414 Indirect, (F&A) costs, i

paragraph (f}). : .

Subaward Period of performance: - .
Start Date: 7/1/23 End Date: 6/30/25 d
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement ‘ Revised 07/18/2022"

Total amount at of FTA sub- award oblngated bylthis action (conrracl/nmendmenl)
For FFY: 2024 Section: 53| 1 Amount: $828 000 00

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipien! foriginal contract & amendments):

For FEY: 2024 Section: 53) 1 Amount: $828.000.00 )

Pass-through requirements:

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Southwestern Community Services agrees 1o meet all requirement
impOSed by the pass-through entity/(NHDOT) on; the subrecipient so that the Federal award is
used in accordance wuh Federal statues, rcgulauons and the terms and conditions of the Federal

award. ] o

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Southwestern Community Services agrees to any additional

_ requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the
pass-through entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-lhrough entity (NHDOT) to meet its own
responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) mcludmg identification of any required
financial and performance reports.

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Southwestern C, ommunir_v_Services agrees 1o permit the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) and auditors 10 have acccss ta the subrecipients records and ﬁnancnal
statements as necessary for the pass-through ennlly to meet the requircments of this part; and
appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date: qug (/i QQ , )
. / _ :
Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting ofTicial: Beth Daniels | ’ )

Title of authorizing subrccipicnﬂcpnlracting official: CEQ |

. ; . .
Signature of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: MML

A
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For Dlstiict Dirsctor's Uss Only
rom 031 . Under Chapter 32 of the Internal Revenue Code. |-~ -
(Rev. Jily. 197%) .

: This Apgplication Should Also ‘Be Used. by Producers and Importers e e
Fatataat Awvemst Sersien. . of Gasoline and Manufacturers of Lubricating Oli. No. a2- 7& 0051 -1
o | Nameot Individuel, corporation, partnership, ns:nr_laﬂon etc. | L §0eTa fl‘“éﬁﬁli-or Employer Idantlnclllon Number
f’i UL TR Soaer Tk Ly Lot o nint foayha. | 02-6013308- 00 Lo L.
g | Name under which business |s. opersted l Will you be required :
Ko & ’ ; i to file Form 7202 . [ Yes [J No
g Bustness address (Number UL - e i File this application In” duplicate
g ST S R T 1 R : ‘with your District Director of Internal
s Clty. Stm and ZIP code Revenue. See the Instructions on
x T | £ A ] . pages 2 and'4. '

Application Is heroby made for a Certificate of Registry [n the name(s), lnchcated above. The applicant Js a:
[ Manufecturer ] Producer [ lmporter ] wholesater {D Jobber | Selling or. [ Purchasing (specify typo of
U Retaller D Other (specify). > g Sev et RS s | product) >h‘“ s e s e
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law.
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,INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT - ll)\’if_l;'aﬁfmliiﬁfi!"

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, inc.

Report.on the Audit.of the Financial Statements . '
Opinion: -

We' Have. audited -the accompanying consolidated: financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New-Hampshire. nonprofit corporation) and.related .companies,.
which. comprise the cohsolidated statements of financial position. as. of May 31, 2022, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, fur}chonal expenses, and cash ﬂows for the year
then ended; and the related notes to the consohdated fi nanc:al stalements

In our-opinian, the c0nsolldated financial slatements presentifairly, in all material respects, the
financial position-of Southwestem Communlty Services, In¢, and: related companies as o6f. May ‘
31, 2022, and. the changes in its net assets ‘and ity cash flows for the year lhen-ended in °
accord ance with accounting principles gcncrally accepted in the United States of America.

-Basis-for Opinion

United States of Amenca and the standards apphcab!e to -financial audits conlalned in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the. Comptroller General-of the. United States. Our
. responsibilities under those standards are further-described-in the Auditors’ ‘Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of'our report. We are required to be 1ndopendent
.of Southwestern Community -Services,. Inc. and related compariies- and to meet our’ other
ethical responsibilities,. in accordance ‘with. the relevant ethical requirements relafing to our:
audll We believe-that the audit evidence we have obtained s ‘sufficient-and appropnate to-
provide ‘@ basis-for our audit opinions. ] . ;

'R'éspons'ibilities of Management for the Financial Statements \

Managerment is responsible for the preparatlon and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements-in accordance with accountlng principles. generally accepted:in:the United
(Slates of America, -and. for the design, |mplementat|on and maintenance of internal -control
. relevant to the .preparation and fair presentation of consolidated. financial statements that are
free from material m|sstatemenl whether dug to-fraud or erfror.




In preparing the financial statements managemlent is required lo evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the: aggregate that raise subsiantial doubt .aboul.
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies’ ability to continue as a going .
- concern within one year after {he dale that the consolidated financial statements are available.

to be. sssoed.

) 1
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit-of the Financial Statements L
Our objectives are to-obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from maleriat mrsstatement whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors' report.lhat includes our oplnlon Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance bul is not absolule assurance and| therefore is nol a guarantee that an audit -
conducted in accordance with.generally accepted auditing standards and Govemmen! Audmng
Standards will always deleci a material misstaterhent when it exists, The risk-of not detecting a.
material misstatement tesulting. from fraud-is hrgher than for one resulting from eror, -as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, |ntennonal“om|s|snons misrepresentations, or the override of
iniemnal control. Misstatement$ are considered materlal if there is & suibstantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregale they would influence. the. judgment made by .a:reasonable usér
based on the consolidated-financial. stalements.

-

in performing. an audit in. accordance with. generally accepted auditing" standa_rds and,
Gover'nmenr. Auditing Standards, we:

» Exercise professmnal judgment and maintain- professional skepticism throughout the'
audit. . ,

L

« Identify and assess the risks of ma(enal mrsstalement of the -consdlidated financial
stateéments, whetlher.due te fraud or error and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a:test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclusures inlhe consuolitaled financigl: btdlelnel ils.

+ Obtain an understanding of intermnal.control relevant to the audit.in order to design audit
procedures that are. appropriate in the| circumstances; but .not" for the- purpose- of
expressing .an opinion on the effeclivengss of Southwestern Community Services, Inc
and related com_panies internal control. A'c_cordlngly, no such- opmton i$ expressed.

-+ .Evaluate the approprateness of -accoun mg policles used and:the reasonablenéss of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as weéll as evaluate the. overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements:

+ Concludé whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the:
aggregate, that raise substantial ‘doubt aboul Southweslern Community Services, Inc.
and related companies' ability to continue-as a going concern for a réasonable penod of
time.

We are required to communicate with those: charged with: governance regarding, among other
. matlers, the planned scope and-tiiing-of the audit, significant. audit. findings; and cenain
intemal control-related matters that we .|denl|f|ed durmg the audit. ~

2

v



Report on Summarized Comparative information

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services; Inc. and related companies’
2021 financial statements. and we expressed an unmodified audit .opinion.on those audited
financial stalements. in our report dated 'Octo_bér‘ 22.2021.- In our opinion, the summarized
comparative: information presented heréin.as. q:f and- for the year ended May .31, 2021, is. |
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial stalements from which it has.been:
dérived. - - g

éupp‘f'ementiary information

Our audit was cénducied for the purposé of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
stalements as a whole. The accompariying sc}"me‘cid'le- of éxpenditqres of federal awards. as
required by Title: 2. U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Rart."200, Uniform Administrative.
Requirerents,- Cost Principles, -and -Audit Requirémerits.for. Federal Awards, is.presented for
purposes -of ‘additional analysis’ and is nol a] required part of the consolidated financial
statéments. Such informatioriis the responsibility of management and was- dérived from and
rélates -directly to the. underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial . statements. The "information has been subjected to ‘the. auditing
procédures applied in the audit of the consolidalted financial statements and certain additional
procedures, incliding comparing and reconciling such information directly te the - underlying

accolinting .ahd other records used to prepare t;he consolidated financial statements or to the -

consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing. standards generally-accepted in th{a United States of America. In our-opinion, the
" schedule of: expenditurés of federal awards iSTAify Stated, in‘all' material respects. in refation’to”
'+ the’ consblidated finantial statements-as a whole, ' ' '

‘Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Audifing Standards, We haveé also issued. our report dated
Febriiary 92023, on our considerafion of Southwesten .Co'njuhu'r‘\ity Se‘rv‘ic‘es. Inc.'s Internal
contfol. over:financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with, certain. provisions of
laws;, regulations, contracts, and grant agreen-.n'enté;"_and other matters: The purpose of that
report is.solely to. describe the scope of our _te§'_ti'ng of internal cantrol dver financial reporting
and complianéeé and. the. results of that testing, and not to previde -ah .gpinion on the
effectivéness of Southwestern: Community Services, Inc.'s internal contro! over . financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an intbgfa];par_t_ of an-audit performed in accordance
with. Goverhment.Auditing Standards-in consideirin'g-.Sc'>ulhw'este_rh Community Services, Inc.'s
internal. control over financial reporting and compliance. '

[l

‘Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
_February 9, 2023 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31, 2022 AND 2024

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.
Agcointsg.receivable. net
Prepaid expenses

Total-currenl assels

PROPERTY"
Land"and buildings
Vehitles and equipmenl « 5 >
Furnilura and fix!ures
Tolal propeny ’

\  Less accumuialed depremahon
Propeity, net

OTHER ASSETS
Investment in relaisd pafties
Due-from related parties
Cash escrow and reseive’ lunds.
Security deposits . ’

‘ Qther assels

Total other-assals

Totsl agsels

. L 1E © et W araun ~

LABILITIES:AND

1 H

NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accoun!s payable .
Accrued expenses.

Aderugd-payrol) and payroll laxes

Clher current liabilities-

Réfundable advances a i

Curient portion of Economic injury Disaster Lodn
Current portion of Iong term debt

Tolal.cumént liébi’ities
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES, .
Long lerm dabt, fess current portion shown above
Econdrmic Injury Disaster Loan less currant ponlon shown above
Totat nonqucrenl liabilitles:
Tota! fiabilities
-y -

‘NET ASSETS ) _ :
Withoul dondr- raslrictions .
With donor restrictions

Total nal asséts =

Tolal liabllilies and net assels

I

« ‘See Notes to-Consolldate
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d Financial Statéments

P e b Bfaf e . om .

2022 202

$ 3353976 0§ 1,722.84%
1,745.952" 1,783,993
243.990- 62,628
= 143,91 3,569,562
29.852.136-  28.5491202
- 555,654 565.380
72 934.441
31,372,762 30 048 023
-15.-52‘?448'3. 14 821 952‘
15:845,279 15,477,071
94,230, 138,007
© 47,566 y, 85 138
1.479,277" 1,474,741,
_ 111,033 105,790
384 a4

. . 1,732,490 1,771,054
3 (32.731887° 'S 20,767,687
S 208035 § 240,586
220.110. 170,074
153,786 -244:003:
158.972. 148,854
1,510,622 729,955

. 3.585"" =l
159.974 . 142,174
'2.633,084 1,675,646
\
11,243,212 10.911.627
146,415 " 150,000

11,389,627 11081627 -
14,022,711 12.73_7."2?3
8.564,624 71,815,085
134,352 - 215,349
8.698.976. 8,030 414
L 22721687 $ . 20,767.687




WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMAR‘ZED COMPARATIVE INFORMAT!DN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY. 3%, 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Gaverament contracls
Program service fees
Renlal income
Suppon
Sponsgrehip
Inlerast income
Forgiveness ol debl
Miscetlaneous
In-kind contributions

-Total revenues ehd oiner-support:

‘NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Tolal révenues, other.suppor: and -
nel asseis released lrom cesliclions
/

EXPENSES

Program.services:
Home energy programs
Education and nulAton
Homeless programs
Housing services
Economic devehpmen! services

“'Qiher orograms

Total program.services:
Supporting activilies
Management and general
I
Totai expenses-

¥ ., N
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE:
L 055 ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON INVESTMENT-tN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS -

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS:

NET ASSETS, END.OF YEAR

without Dorior.  With Donor 022 2021
Restrictions Resifjctions Total Total
$ (24553574 € L § 24553574  § 14.451.497
2,991:407 C 2:991.407 2,708.902
1817.636 - 1,817,636 1,657,741
610,247 . 58,028 669,175 ‘601,838
28:520 : 28,520 21.703
1,009 1,099 1.402
0,609 90,609 51850
156,954 155,954 239,096
) 89,366 80,366 65.414
30,339,412 £8.928 30.398.340 20,265.804
i 130,925 {139,925) -
L] Y
_sdargayr (80997 _ 30308340 20265804\
7.051.760. - 7.05%.760 5:559 497
2.826.493 5 2,626,493 2.629,099
13,349,415 13,349,415 5.516,502
3,070,446 3.070.448 2,813,953
658,701 a 658791 621.784
583000 - *683,000 750,430
27,639,905 . 27,838,905 17.991.265
. \
7.031.266 2,031;266 1,948,672
29,671,171 - 29,671,171 19,939,937
808,166 {80,997). . 727469 325.957
(14.836) . . (14.836)
{43.771} - {43.771) (60,897}
749.559 . {80,897 668.562' 265.060
7815085 215,349, . -8:.030.414 4,911,108
4 Lok 2,854,245
‘5 pseaf24 § 134355 5. 8698978 5. B030.414
‘See Notes io Consalidated Financlal Stalements
5




‘RQUIHWESTERN COMEUNITY SCRVICES, BIC, AND RELATED CQUPANIED

CONSOLIDATED BTATEMENT OF FURCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022

Sducation Economic Wanagement
Homse Ensigy (1. Hoemaless Housing Ceveiepmant Other Total b and 022
[ Mutritiun Proyranm Bevvigey Sirvices Piogrpms Program znecal Toial
Pord 3 f5.449 3 15537 $  DO1<o9 § orzam 1 MOGH0 5 A0R2¢ $ a13man $ AL 743 5 4592559
Payxdases N 45,132 127887 T 40849 51,540 20,450 35,545 330,127 £8.173 408,501
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SOUTHWESTERN COMNURITY SERVICES ING. A RELATED COMPAIIES.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIDNAL EXPENSES
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‘EOR AR ENDED MAY 31
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS ‘OF CASHFLOWS.
" FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021
CASH.FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Chango in nel assets ‘S 668562 $ - 265060

Agdjuslmanils 1o recoricile chango'in net assels 10

nel cash from operating actlwlses )

- Depreciation 989.773 809.155
{oss on sale of propeny 14 8% A
Loss on investment in limiled pannershlps 43,771 60.897
Forgiveness of debt (90.609) {518,501}

Decrease-(increase) in assets. i :
Accounts.réceivable, nal. 38,041 (580,504}
Prepaid expensas {181,362) 31,348 -
Due from retated partles A 7.572 3.929
Secunly depoan A {5.243) (2.242)

(Decrease) increasé in Ilabnnhes . .
Accounts payable’ . "(32.551) 22.045.
Actruad expénses ’ 58.036- 36,929
Accrued payroll @nd payroll laxes 109,783 15,609
Otrigr current liabifilies 107118 {300)
Refundable advances ..789.667 439.518

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,421,394 682,943
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Procceds from sale of. property i 3.840° .

Purchasa of proparty . (831.642) (432,400}
NET CASH USED IN-INVESTING ACTIVITIES. (827.802) {432.400)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

- Procseds from long term debt - 85,000

Repayment of lopg lerih debt {155.021) Y (272.062)

Procesads from Economic, Injury D|saster Loan - - 150.000
NET CASH USEQ N FINANGING-ACTIVITIES ; (155.021) (37.062)
NET INCREASE'IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 1,438,571 213.481
CASH.AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR' 3.194 682 2,210,050
CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TRANSFERRED :

FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS 771,151
'CASH AND RES’TRIC-‘IED-CASH, ENDIOF YEAR $. 4:633.253 * -§ 3,194 882

1
N See Notes.to Consolidaled Financlal Statements
8
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS [CONTINUED):
:FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY: 31, 2022 AND 2021

' 2022 2021
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION /
Gash pald during the year for interes! $ 176803 §  .175.005
CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH: .
Cash-and cash equwalents - . ‘$ 3,153,976 § 1,72290
Cash escrow and reserve funds f : " 1,479,277 1.47%.741
Total cash and resiricted cash 5 $ 4633953 & 3.194682

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES > OF ! NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES .

Property financad by long torh debl $§ 595015 % 787.599

Transler of assets.from newly mnsolidaled LPs . '
Prepaig expenses - | < - § 2.8 36807
Ltand and buildings”  ° i "z 3 3.382,003
Fumiture and fixtures ; ~ £24.49
Securly daposits - 33,7681

Total transfer of assels from newly consolidated LPs ] i =+ § 4077082

Transier.of liabiliigs from newly consohdated LPs . :

Accounts payable -~ . <o - . = .5... 57,865
Atcrued expenses’ . : z 46,122
Long term debl- : . . ro . . 1,880,298°
Tolal transtér of figbiiitles from newly consolidated LPs L 3 - § 1994285

" Total paniners’ capilal irom newly consolldated.LFs B 3 - $ 2853948
Pariners’ capltal-'pre'viously recorded as investment in roldted paries - + 1297
Tolal iransier of parners’ capilal from newly consolidated LP$ $ - § 2854245

Sea Notes.to Consolldated Financlal Stateménts
) /

- y H
~ \

al . i




NOTE 1

‘Principles of Consolldatlon

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021

S

ORGANIZATION.AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

LY
General ’

" Southwestern Gemmunity.: Serwces Inc. is a New Hampshtre nonprof t corporation

formed .as. an umbrella. corporation that offers an array -of services to the elderly
disabled: -and low-income households in the Cheshire and Sullivan ¢ounties of
New Hampshire, Various programs [provide assistance in the areas of education,

child development, employment, energy. and its conservation, ‘housing, and
homelessness prevention. Serwces are provided through. Southwestern‘
Community Servicés; Inc.; -and |ts relatéd- corporations, SCS -Management

: 'Corporatlon SCS Housing; Inc., SCS Development Corporatton SECS Housing
_ Development, Inc.,. and'.various limited partnerships, as, described’ below. The

Organization. is committed  to provudmg respectful support servlces and assisting
individuals-and families in-achieving |sélf-sufficienicy by helping them overcome the
causés-of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from'ggvermnmental
coritracts. '

The consohdated fi nancnal statements |nclude the accounts of Southwestern

' Commumty Services, Inc. and the followmg entltles (coliectively theT'('D'Fganlzatlon)

as Southwestern. Commumty Serwces Inc. has both an. economiic -interest and
control of the entities: through a majomy ‘voting interest in their _goveming board.
All significant intercompany items -and transactions havé been ehminaled from the
basi¢ consofidated fi nancual statements.
-’SCS Management Corporation '
SCS Housing, Inc. .~ :
SCS Development Corporahon
SCS Housing Development, Inc
Drewsville Carriage House Assomates Limited Pannershlp (Drewsville) ~
Troy Senior Housing: Assocnates Limited: Partnership (Troy Senior)
Keene East Side Senior Heusmg Associates, Limited Partnershlp (Keene
' East Side) .
Wlnchesler Senior Housing Assocnates Limited Partnershlp (Winchester)
= Swanzey Township Housing Assoc1ates Limited Partnership. (Swanzey)
» Snow Brook Meadow Village Housmg Associates, Limited Partnership
(Snow: Brook) |
.o Keené Hughiand Housing Associates, Limited Partnersmp (Keene Highland)
. Wanmck Meadow Housing Aesomates ‘Limited Partnérship (Warwick)

Basis of Accounting
The consohdated fi nancual statements of. the Organizatior have been prepared
utilizing the accrual basis of accountnng in accordance with generally. accepted
aCCOuntlng principles:

10
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‘NOTES-TO-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022.AND-2021 :

Ba_'sis of Presentation !
The consolidated financial statements of the-Orgariization have been prepared, in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: (US GAAP),

which require the ‘Organization to report. infqnné_tion regarding .its financial
position .and activities according to the -follbwing' nét asset classifications. The
classes .of .net .assels are determined by the presence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions. .

Net assets without donor restrictioris: Net assets that ‘are not subject to
~dofhor-imposed. srestrictions’ and-J may -be. expénded. for -any. pumose. in

performing the p‘rimary.gb_jeclivé_s of the Or_'g.ahiz?tion. Tbesé.héf’assets may

bé. used-at the discretion of the Organization's,Board-of\Directors. )
‘Net ‘assels with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to, stipulations imposed
by, donors: and grantors: -Some |donor restrictions: are-temporary in nature,
those restrictions. will be met by ‘actions of the Organization-or by passage of
time: “Other donar restrictions are: perpetual in'naturé, whereby the donor has
stipulated the-funds be maintained in perpetuity..

4o,
A

restiictions.and with-donor restrictions.

s of A May 31:. 2_52?563_"_56_'2“1:i{h‘{el‘@r,ga_nj’z'%iion‘- had’fﬁé'g'hssei§'ﬁtﬁgut'd__c')nbr

The financial statements include |certain prior-year -sunimarized gomparative
information in"tetal bul not by -net asset class. Such 'information does not include
sufficient defail {a constitute a-presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting prindiples. Accqrding'ly_, such inforation should be réad in conjunction
.with, the Organization’s financial statements for tihe year ended May 31, 2021 from
which-the summarized information was 'derived.,
]

Refundablé Advances : .
The Organization reécords grant.and cpht‘(aci revenue as refundable: advances. until
it is expended forthe purpose of the/grant or contract; at.which time it is recognized
as revenue: ' s

In-Kind-Support:
The Organization records. various types of .in-kind. suppart including professional

services and materials. Contr_ibute:ci professional.'services are recognized if the
service.received creates or 'enhancqs- long-lived assets -or'_rf'a‘.quires_'specialized skill,
-are: provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need-to be

purchased if not provided by dcn:natid'n. Contiibutions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received. ' '
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021

Estimates
The presentation of f nancial statemenls tin conformily with generally accepted
accountmg principles requires management to make ‘estimates -and assumptions
that affect the' reportéd amounts |of assets and liabilities. and disclosuré of
contingent assets and liabilities at |the date of the financial’ statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and lexpenses during the reporting period. Actual
resulls could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents .
‘For purposés of thé-statement. of cash ‘flows,. the Organization considers all liquid-
investments purchased with original°'maturilies of three months or less to be'cash
equivalents.’

Accounts Receivable -
Accounts recewable are Stated al thle amount management expects to coltect from
fbalances outstanding at year end Balances that are still outstanding .after
management has ‘used reasonable collection efforts -are ‘written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
_allowance_for uncolléctible ; accounls was_estimated_to_be zerd at May 31, 2022.
The aflowance for uncollectlble accounts was approximately’ $3 600 for the year
ended May.31, 2021.-The Organizatlon ‘has no pollcy for charglng interest on.

" overdue accounts.

Concentration of -Credit Risk

The' Organization: maintaing its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federallly insured limits. The Organization has nol
expenenced any l6sses insuch accounts and beliéves it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respéct to these accounts.

Current Vulnera‘bility Due to Certain Concentrations

of the Orgamzatnon ‘are" subject |to the admwstrahve durectwes rules and
regulations of federal; state and’ lqcal regulatory agencies Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or
Legislature. Such ¢hanges may oclcur with little notice or inadequate funding to-
pay for the related cost, including tlpe additional administrative burden, to comply:
with a change. For the.years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, approximately 80%
and 71%, respechvely of the Orgamzatlons total revenue was received from
government agencnes The future nature of the Qrganizalion is dependent upon
continued support from the governnnent

12




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31; 2022.AND 2021

Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment|are stated at cost. ai the date -of acquisition
or af fair valve at the date of recleipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization. generally-capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater

than $5,000 and a@n expected life gréater.lhan.one.year. Depreciation is provided

for using the straight-line method in amounts designed:to amortize the cost of
the assets over {heir estimated useful lives as follows: :

Lo

Buildings and improvements 10 -"40 Years
Vehiclés'and equipment -+ 510 Years
Furniture-and fixtures 7 Years

The use of-cérain .as_sét's-is- specified under the terms-of grants received from

- agencies of ‘the fe'c'ieré!f government. Thése grants. -also place liens on cerain

. Advedisifig

assets and impose restrictions on th:e use of funds received from thé disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years endéd May 31,-2022 and 20271
totaled $989,773 and $909,155, respectively.

\

1o expire-in 2035.

vvvvv m mrr om e w s -

The Organizalion expenses advertising cosls as incurred.

Income Taxes : ,
Southwestern Commuinity Services, Inc. and SCS Management Corporation are
exempt from Fedefal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are éxempt from
income-tax on their exempt function income. .

SCS Housing, Inc.,-S€S’ Development Corpdration.and SCS qut,;sing ‘Development,

Inc. are taxed as. corporalions. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net operating 1085.
carryforwards -available- for the May 31, 2022, and 2021 tax relums lotaling

$1,252,122 'and $1,230,191, respectively. Thesé loss carryforwards may be offset

against future taxable income and, if riot used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS

Dévelopment Corporation has federdl. net-operating loss.camyforwards totaling $513 .-

and $542 at May 31, 2022 and 2021 |respectively. These loss.camyforwards may be.

offset dgainst future taxable income| and, if riot used; will begin to expire in 2022,

SCS Housinig Development, inc. iP.as- federal net operating loss carryforwards
lotalihg $55,128 and $59,861 at May 31, 2022 and 2021,.respectively. These loss
camyforwards may be offset against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin

13




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31; 2022 AND 2021

i .
The tax effects of the carryforwards as related. to deferred 'tax assels . is as
- follows as of May 31, 2022 and. 2021: _ &
2022 202'1-
Tax benéfit from loss camyforwards © §274630. .$271,025
Valuation alfowance © {274,630). {271,025)
Deferred lax asset: $ - & -

Drewslee Troy Seénior, Wmchester Keene East Side, Swanzey, Snow Brook,

- Keene Highland, and Warwick-are taxed as partnersh|ps Federal income taxes are

not payable by. or provided for lhese entities. 'Eamings-and losses are included in
-the- partners’ federal income. tax- returng’ based on their share of partnership

gamings; Partnerships afe required tg file incoma tax' retums ‘with the: State of New.

Hampshire and pay an income tax atjthe state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification! No. 740, “Accounting for -Income Taxes,”
_-established the minimum.threshold|for recogrizing, and a system for measunng,
the, beneflts of tax relurn posnhonb, in- financial, sjatem_ents Management has.
analyzed the Orgamzatlcn s. tax posmon taken on its income tax returns for all
open years.and has concluded that no additiénal provision. for income taxés is
necessary in the Organization's ﬁnancnal statements.

]

Fair Value of Fmanc:al Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an_exit pnce rathier than an. entry price, éstablishes a
framework in-generally accepted accountmg pnncuples for measuring fair value
which emphasw_es that fair value is a ‘market: based measurement, not an entity-
spetific meéasurement, and requnres expanded disclosures ‘about fair value
measurements. In accordance. W|th ASC :820- 10, the Organization -may use.
valuahon technigues consistent wuth market, income -and cost approaches to
measure fair value. As a basis fot consmienng market participant assumptions in
fairvalue measurements, Topic 820 10 establishes @ fair value hierarchy, which
pnonhzes the inputs used in measunng fair values. The h1erarchy gives the
highest priofity to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priofity to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hlerarchy under’ ASC Topic
820:10 are described as follows: 2

Level 1 — Inputs 1o the valuation|methodology .are quoted prices available.in
aclive rnarkets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuationimethodology are:other'than quoted markel
prices in active markets, which are: gither directly. or mdlrectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value ¢an be determined through the use of
-models or other valuation methodologies:

14




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY:31,.2022 AND 2021

Level 3 - Inputs to the v‘alua_tién-m?thodOquy-are. Unbbservabie'inputs‘ in
situations where there is fittie or no market activity for the asset or liability and
the reportirig entity makes éstimates and assumplions related to the pricing of

the asset or liability incliding a_ssurinption,s regarding risk. ”

‘The -carryirig ‘amount. of cash, accouiqls receiva‘bies-. prepaid éxpenses. accounts.
payable, accrued!expenses, and relfundabie advances approximates, fair value
because of the-short maturity. of thgse instruments:.

Support-and-Revenue Rec_:bén'ition - e e A

Conlracts with Customers’ ‘

Program fees are reported at the amount that reflects. the consideration-to which:
the -Organization expects to be entilled for providing childcare services 0. its.
clients. '

~-

Geénerally, the, Orgahization. bills. customers and third-party payors several days
after the. services: -are- "der'formedl Revenue is. recognized as performance
obligations. are satisﬁed.._.Per‘formén:ce- obligations are determined based on,the
nature’of the services provided by the Orgariization. The' Organlzation ‘measures
the perdormance obligations of its childcare: services to the point when il is no
. longer required. .to .brovide.:--seryices' 1o 'the -client, which is generally, weekly for
childcare. services: These services ;are: considered to be a single. perfermance
obligation. B

Revenue for pe'ffonnaﬁc':e obligations satisfied at a point in time: is -recognized
when services are provided,-and the Organization does not believe it is required-to
provide additional services.to the client.

Based on the nature of services. provided by {he Organization and dué.?;’ to the fact
that: all of the Organization's: perfortance obligations related to contracts with- a
duration of less than oné year, the Organization has elecled to apply the optional
exemption provided in-FASB-'_ASC'6‘06-1-0-5,0a14'(a):-and, iherefore is.not required
to disclose. the aggregatée -amount of the transaction price -allocated to
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the €nd of
the reporting period. ) .

The transaction price for childcare| services. Is based on standard charges for
services provided to clients.. Unde:r the terms..of the State of New Hampshire
Depaitment of Health and- Human Services childcare subsidy pfograms,
‘reimbursement for childcare-services provided may differ from established rates. It
is the Organization's policy to. set its rates to ‘be consistent’ with: current
reimbursement. rates. Therefore, amounts due do not inciude significant variable
consideration subjeci to retroactive revenue -adjustments due fo settliement of
reviews and audits. '
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021

y
e
s

Private Grant Revenue and Contributions
Private: grant contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other

assets, an unconditional promise to|give, or nolification of-a beneficial interest is-

received: Condifional promises to give are.not.recognized until the conditions on
which they depend have been: substanhally met Suppor that i is restricted by the.
doriof i$ reporied as an increase m net assets ‘without. donor restrictions, if the
restriction expires in the reporting perrod in which the: support is recagnized. All
other donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the réstriction. When a restriction
expires, (lhat is, when a stipulatéd. tame restriction. ends or purpose-restriclion is.
accomphshed) net assels with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without dorior restrictions and repor'ted in the combined statements of aclivities
as net-gssels re!eased from restrictions.

Grants and Support

Grant revénue is derived from various federal -grant agreements and various
state. and. private entity passthrough grant agréements and contracts to provide
fundlng support of the Organlzallops programs’ and.-services provided by the
Orgamzat:on including childcare; child development..-social, health, -nutrition,
employment language,” energy, and special needs gervices to families énrolled
in the:- Organtzahons programs, The Orgamzahon has evaluated its gram
agreements :against apphcable accounting standard guidarice and determined
that the grant agreements -are| contributions -(nonreciprocal transagtion)
conditioned. upon cerain performance r'eqUirén‘i‘énts and/or incurrence’ of
allowable qualifying expenses. Amounls received are recognized as revenue
when- the: Organization has incurred ‘expenses. in. comphance with specific
provasnons of the grant agreements,

v (.
Rental Revénue
~ The -Organization derives revenues from the rental .of apariment units.
Revenues are recogmzed as mcome monthly, when rents becomerdus and
contral -of the. apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual
feases are for .a term of one year and are cancélable by thé tenants. Control of
the' leased units. is. transferred to |the lessee. in an-amount that reflects the
consideration. the Partnership expects to bé entitled to.in exchange for the
" {eased units. The cost'incurred to d_btaipra lease will be-expensed. as incurred.
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NOTE 3,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS..
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31 .2022 AND 2021

\

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the wvarious programs and other actlwtles have ‘been
summarized on a functional basis. l\'latural expenses are defined- by their nature,
such- as -salaries, rent, supplies, etc Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are’ incurred, 'such as management and
general and direct program: costs.. |Expenses are allocated by function using a

. reasonable-and consistent approachlthat is primarily based on function and use..
. The- cosis of providing tertain. program &and supportlng services have been
dlrectly charged

- o am w rEr —— BT L . faoee

The Organ:zatlon submlts an’ rndrrect cost rate proposal for the pard |eave fnnge
benefits and other indirect c¢osts to|the"U.S. Depanment of Health .and Human
service$.. The indirect cost rate is 12% effectrve from June 1, 2021 through May
31, 2022: : - ’

1
BANK LINE OF CR'E'DlT
The Organization has a $250.000 revolving lineé of Credit. agreement. with a bank.
lnterest is due monthly and-is" stated at.the- Wall Street Journal Prime Rate orata
fioor raie of 4%. The ime IS’ secured by ali the Organization’s assels. As of ‘May
31, 2022 and 2021, the: rnterest rate .was.4%. There was.no outstandmg balance.
at May 3%, 2022 and 2021..

LONG TERM DEBT

. The_ long'term debt consisted: c')f the following at May 31 ;

N
b=
Ind
N
[a]
=)
N
—

1% mortgage payable to New: Hampshire. Housing
in monthly instaliménts for pnncrpall and interest -of
$891 through August 2032. Thi note is secured by
real: -eslate of the Organlzatnon (NHH 96 Main N
Street) - $ 117535- § 127,000

Non-intérest  bearing mortgage| payable to '

Community Develgpment’ Frnance -Authority, in '

quarterly principal payments based- on .an-operating

income formula applied- to- affordable housmg'-

portion of ‘the specified real estatle Thé note.is

secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA '
96 Main Street). _ 25,589 27,589
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Non-interest bearing morigage payablé. to New.
Hampshire Housing: Payment is qefer'red for 30
years, through- September- 2031, or; until project is
'sold or refinanced, The 'note is secured by- real
. eslate of the Organization (NHH, 17 Pearl). 242,708 242 708

Non-intérest bearing mortgage payable to New

Hampshire Housing. Payment. is deferred for 30

years, through July 2032, iunless there -is- surplus .

¢ash from which-to:make a payment or until project

is sold or refinanced. -The note is secured by real )

estate of the Organization (NHH, 41-43 Central). 376,066 376.066

425% morigage: payable to a bank in monthly

instaliments for principal and mtelrest of $1,875

through December 2016, with a balloon payment

that was due. January 2017. The note "was
" amended during the year ended May 31, 2019; and

'is'now due December 2026. Under the ameéndment,

interest rate is 4.94% :and' monthly {lnstallments for

principal and interest- are $1,957 The note- is

secured by réal estatée of the Orgamzatuon

(People s United Bank, M1Ieslones) 94456 112,702

4.375% note payable to Rural Hoqsing Service in
monthly. instaltments. for principal and interest of
$11, 050 through May.2049. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TI Bank, . Keene
Office): 2,095,30% 2,134,970

Non-intérest bearing. noté payable to Cheshire

County in New Hampshlre Payment is not

necessary unless Organization defaulls on contract.

- The note is secured by real ‘estate. of the '

Organization (CDBG, Keene Ofﬁce).| 460,000 460,000

18
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Nole payable to a bank in monthly |mstalimenls for
principal and mteresl of $2,463 mciudmg interest
through May 2039. Interest is ad]usted every five
years based on remaining pnncmal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate* provided by 'Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which tesilted in an
interest rate of 4.67% at May 31, 2022 and 2021.
The nbte is secured by real |estate -of the

*  Organization (TD Bank? Keene- OfficelCommunity T o
Way). 362,931 376.617

Non-interest bearing, note payable to 'the: United

'States, Department of Housmg and Wrban

Developmenl No payment is due and begmmng in

_January 2015 10% of the note- 15 fon!gwen each year

prowdmg thé property is used for 16w income:

housing ; through January 2025. ' The note is

. secured. by, real: estate_of lhe Organuzauon (HUD, o _

Ashuelot). 50. ooo -~ 75,000

Non- intergst bearing note payable to ‘the United
_States. Department. of Housnng and Urban
Development, No payment is due aﬁnd beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven eachyear
providing the propérty. is used for low -income.
housing through January 2025. The; riote’is'secured
by real estate of the Organlzatuon (HUD 112 -
Charlestown Road). , 30,000 45,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to- . New .

Hampshire: Housing in annual payments in the

-gmount of 50% of annual surplus 'cash through. July:

2042 ‘at which time the: rérnaining jbalance is-due.

The noté is secured by real |estaté of the ‘
Organization (NHH, Second Chance). : 794,189 794,189

Non- :nterest bearing’ nole payabler to a county in ~ =
. New Hampshlre No payment is- due and 5% of the
balance is forgiven each year through 2032.wheén
the. remaining balance becomes due The note. is
secured by real estate.of the Orgamzatlon (CDBG,
Second Chance). 296,217 311.808
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NOTES TQ.CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS

_FOR THE YEARS ENDED:MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021

Non-intérest bearing note payablelto a courity in
New Hampshire, relating to an-agreement. between

_ the City of Keene and SCS for the purpose of

renovating Keene-shelters. in total, SCS will receive
$472,000 from CDBG. The agreement was

amended during the yéar ended. May 31, 2022 to-

increase the total loan to $652’091 'SCS  will
receive the funds as progress is- made The note is
secured by.real. estate.of. the- Organ:zatuon and will

be fully forgiven providing the facility serves low-

and moderate-income individuals; for 20 years

(Keene Shelters).

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly- installments. for principal }and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van),

2.99% notE Ppayable to & bank Tin mishthly

“instaliments for principal and interest of $820
through May 2031. Theé note is secured by real.
estate of the Organization (Savmgs Bank: of
. Walpole, 45 Central Streét).

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene, New Hampshire. The note. lexp"ires. in-June
2022 and. payment. is. not necessary unless the
Organization. defaults on contract Thé note i$
secured by real esta!e of the Organlzatuon {City of

Keene, 139 Roxbury Street).

-Non-interest bearing note -payable to. the City of

Keene, New Hampshn'e with an. original balance of,

$240,000 reduced o $204,000 when the
Organization acquired the note from -Keene.

Housing. in July 2020. No payment; is due and 5%
of the balance is forgiven each year through June
2037. The nole is' secured by. real estate of the
Organizatian (Clty of Keene 139 Roxbury Street).

3.575% note payable lo. a finance company in
monthly instalilments for principal |[and interest of

$650 through September 2026. The| note is secured
by a vehicle (Leaf, Dodge Ram).

20
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1.581

76,974

77100

192,000

30.888
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127,215
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84,395

' 77.100

204.000



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY: 31, 2022 AND 2021

| 2022 2021
3.75% nole ‘payable to a fi nance company in !
monihly. installments for pnncupal and interest of
$530 through November 2026. The note is secured’
by a vehicle{Leaf, Promaster Van). 25,860 -

4.373% note payable to.a finance company in

monthly installments for -principal and interest of

$534 through Decémber 2026. The note is secured .

by .a vehicle (Leaf, Promaster Van).. L. - 26,576 s -

Troy Semof - Non-intéres! bearing note payable to
a county i in New Hampshire. Payments are deferred
- until ‘the’ fote’ miatures in June 2029 The note:.is -

“secured by real estale of the Orgamzahon (CDBG). . :64'0;000 | 640,000

Troy Semor --Non inferest bearing note payable 1o

New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund’

energy efficieit improvements | through the.

Adthority's” Greener Homes"Program‘"Payment"ls"‘“ ==k ===
deferréd for 30 years, through Aug[ust 2042. The®

note is. secured.by real, estate of the: Organization .

(NHH). -~ 140,210 140,210

Keene East Side - Non-intérest] bearing note

payable to a county in New Hampshlre Payments

are deferred until the note. matures in- December

2028. The note is secured by: real estate of the - s :
Organization (CDBG). - 900,000 "900,000

Keene East Side - Non-interest] bearing note

payable. to New Hampshire Community

Development Finance:- Authofity (CEDFA) to fund

energy upgrades and capital tlmprovements

Beginningin 2016 10% of the.note is forgiven each

year -based on the rolling balance. The mortgage

* may be réleased. after ten years in January 2026..

The note is secured by real jestate of .the _ .
Orgariization (COFA). - . 116,841 139,860
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND:2021

2022 2021
Keene East Side. - Non-interest bearmg note
-payable-to- New Hampshire Hous:ng to fund energy
efficient improvements through lhe Authority’s
Greener Homes Program.. Paymentn is deferred for
30 vyears, lhrough August 2042. , The note is
-secured by real estate of the Organization (NHH) 228,934 228,934

Swanzey - " Non-recourse,  4.90% simple mterest
miortgage note payable to ‘the New’ Hampshire’
Housing (HOME), due September, ]2033 principal .
and interest payable at thé soie dlscretlon of the
lender from the excess cash oﬁ the .bérmower
determined by {ormula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings;, lsubjecl 16 low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year -
term of the mortgage. . 286,530 287,710

-Swanzey - _Non: recou[sg,_m,oﬁrjgage ,note payable_to, - b

New Hampshwe Housing (AHF),. due September,

2043, payable in monthly mslallments of. $1,608,

including tnterest at 235% secured - by the

Parnership's land and buuldmgs 'sub;ect to low

income housing use restnctlons for. the 40 year .

terr of the mortgage. : . 341,364 - 353.561

Snaw Brook' - Non:recourse, mortgage note

payable to New Hampshlre Housmg due July

2057, payable in monthly installments' of $2,002

including interest .at 4.35% sectiréed by the :

Parinership's fand and. buudmgs lsub;ect fo low !
income. housing use Testrictions . for the 30 year

term of the morigage. . 431,859 436,974

‘.Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero, interest montgage

note payable to New Hampshtre Housmg (AHF)

due June, 2034, principal and mterest payable at ®

the sole discretion of the lender frlom the éxcess .

cash of the borrower determined by formula,

secured by thé Partnership’s land| and buildings,

subject to low income housing use reslrictions for

the 30 year term of the morigage. 237173 237,73
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. .
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021

' 2022 2021
" Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing {AHF), jdue May 2032,
payable in monthly 1nstallments of $370, including.
interest at 2.00%, secured by the- Pa nnership's land
and buildings, subject to low mcome housing use "

restrictions for the 30 year term of the modgage

note (NHH). g T 39,850 - 43,450

* Winchester ~ Non-recourse, zero mterest beanng -
mortgage- nole: ‘payable to New Hampshlre Housing
(FAF), due May 2032 payable at the sole-discretion
of the lender from the excess cashlof the borrower §
‘determined. . by formula, secired by the : |
Partnership's land and buildings, |subject to low '
income housing use restrictions: for the- 30-year . R
term of the mortgage note (NHH). 77.452 79,609

__Winchester - | Non recourse, zero interest bearing,

Tdirect subsidy AHP foan -secuied by ihe e T
Partnership’s land: and buildings, }sub}ect 1o0. low- g
income housing restrictions.under the terms of the:
AHP .agreement: In,the event'of a default under the.
aforementioned. agreement, the Io:an is ‘due upon
demand with interest accrued al a fate of 11.67%
for the period the funds were outstandlng (Federal 2
Home:Loan Bank), ) 150.000 150,000
Keene Highland - Non recourse | mortgage note

payable o New Hampshire Housmg (AHF), due

August 2035, payable. in. monthly installments of

$3.122, including interest at 2. 90%., secured by the

Partnershlps land--and bulldlngsf subject to low.

income housing use restfictions for the 30. year '
term.of the mortgage note (NHH). 409,579 434,765

Keene Hnghland - 30 year. zéro interest, non-

recourse deferred. mortgage nole payab|e to the

Cuty of Keene New: Hampshire due June 2035,

payment of, principal is deferred until the due date, ‘
secured by land.and buildings (City of Keene): 915,000 915,000
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Warwick - 30 year, zero mlerest non-recourse

‘deferred mortgage nolé payable f

winchester, New Hampshire due

0 the Town of
' August 2036,

payment’ of principal is deferred unttl the due date

secured by land and buﬂdmgs {Town  of

Winchester).

Total long=term debt before unamon
financing costs =

500,000 500,000

ized deferred i :
TTTTT U 11,42001437 7 11,071,420

Unamortized-deferred fidancing costs (16, 957) ___(17619)

11,403, 186 11,053,801

Less current portion due within one year 159974 - 142,174

$11243212 $10.911627

The_schéedule of maturities 9f long term deht at May. 31, 2022 is.as follows:

Year Ending
May 31
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
Thereafter

Total

Amount
$ 159974
164,282
170,410
176,786
159,624
10,589,067

ECONOMIC INJURY DISASTER LOAN

During June 2020, the Orgamzanop received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan
(EIDL)-from the Small Business Admnnlstratson with proceeds.in the. amount of

$150,000. The EIDL is payable ove

r 30 years -t an interest rate of 2.75% with a

deferral of payments:for. 30.-months from the daté of the nole: Instaliments, including
principal and interest, of $641 monthly begin. in December 2022 .- The balance of

principal and interest wm be. payab
the Smal! Business, Administration.

24

ein December 2052. The loan is secured by
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The scheduled maturities of the EIDL as of May 31, 2022 were as follows:

Year.Ending
May 31 Amount
2023 ) $ 3,585
2024 b 3,685
2025 : ' 3,788
2026 T . 3,803
2027 4,001
TR .Thereaﬁer. R p— o e e e = 21311 -,0.48. .

)

FORGIVENESS OF DEBT -
During thé years énded May 31,2022 and 2021, 1he Organizalion realized
forgiveness ‘of debt Income in connection with notes payable to Community
Development Block Grant, HUD .and’ -Community ‘Development ‘Finance .
Authority.  Forgiveness of debl _irfmcome {otaled '$90,609 and .$79,431 lor the

£

years ended May 312022 3rd. 2021, fésgectively” == © .. ;

1 ?I?h.ewOrga'hiz.a*uon recognizc-:d-(urg_iveness.qf'_:-_d'ebl‘.bf $439,070 .i'elal‘ed to the

Paycheck Protection Program during the -year ended May 31, 2021. See
additional detait at Note 16. ‘ :

\ J
'OPERATING LEASES : -
The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable
lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods range from
month to month to 2027 Monthly lease payments range from $900 to $3,625.
Lease expense for the years ended-May 31, 2022 and 2021 lotaled $156,230
and $148,143, respectively. -

Future.minimum payments._as.of May 31, 2022 on the above leases are as

follows: .
Year Ending
May 31 - Amount
! 2023 ¥ $ 52915
' 2024 49,500
2025 - 49,481
2026. © . 49 959
2027 A 41,576
Tolal o - $_ 243431

™




'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANC!AL STATEMENTS,
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY" 31 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 7 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES
At May 31, 2022 and 2021, the. Organization accrued a liability for future annual
ieave time-that its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $143,703
and.$144,916; respéctively.

NOTE 8 CONTINGENCIES . :

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owrier of SC$ Housmg Inc..

. and SCS Housing Development, Inc SCS Housing, Inc. and SCS Housing

. Development {nc: are-the general partners of eight limited-partnerships formed

to develop low-income housing pro;ecls through the use of Low Income Housing

Tax Credits. Soutliwestern Commumty Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and

SCS Housmg Development, Inc. have guaranleed repayment -of liabilities. of

various partnershIps totaling . approxlmately $11,760, 000" and. ‘$11,929,000 at
May 31, 2022 and 2021. reSpectwely

Pannershnp feal estate with a Cost basis. of approximately- $27; 348 000 at May
37, 2022 and 2021 provides collateral on lhese foans.

'The Organuzahon réceives funds. under Various state’ grants and from Féderdl
sources. Under the terms of these'agreements the Organization is required to
use the funds-within-a.certain- penod and for purposes specified.by the governing
3 laws and' regulailons If costs were found not to have; been’ incurred in
‘compliance with. the laws and regulallons the Organization; mlght be required to
repay the funds.

No provisions-have been made for thus contingency becatise specnf ic amounts, if
any. have-not been-determined or assessed by govemmenl audits as-of May 31,
2022 and 2021.

¥

NOTE 9 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS .
During the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021 SCS Housing, Inc. managed
nine and eleven: limited partnershlps respectively. Management fees charged by -
SCS Housing, Jic. totaled $237, 822 and $228,239, for the years. ended May 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively. Addlt:onally SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the
hmlted partnersh:ps funds for cash ﬂow purposes over several years.

The Orgamzatlon has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorshlp purposes.

The total amounts due and- -expected to be collected from the. limited parinerships

and related entities totaled” $47.566 and $55.138 at May 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.
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NOTE 10

NOTES TO-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND.2021

EQUITY INVESTMENT _ .
Southwestérn' Commiunity. Services; INc. and rejated cofripanies use the equity
methad fo account for their financial interests in-the: following companies:

[}

' 2022 2021
b . i
Cityside Housing Associates, LP '$  (9.516)' $ (9.509)
Mariborough Homes, LP (57) - . (43)
Paysan Village Senlor Housing Assclci_ates, LP (12.539) (12,524)
Railroad Square Senior Housing-Associates, LP "(2,436) (2.247)
Woodcrest Drive: Housing Associates, LP 137,205 180,727
Westmill Senior Housing, LP . | 1 34 49
Alstead Senior-Housing Associates, |i.P (18,461) (18,452}

$.94230 § 138001

$CS Housing Development, Inc:| is a 0.01%. parter of Cityside Housing
Associates;. LP, Mariborough Homes;, LP, Payson Village Seénior- Housing

. Associates,_L'P, Warwick _Meadows. Housing Associales, LP, Woodcrest, Drive

Housing Associates, LP, and Alstead Senior Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10%
partner of Railroad Square Senidr Housing Associates, LP..and a 1%.partner of

"Westmill Senior-Housing. LP.d‘u'ring[ the years ended:May 3t, 2022 and2021. -

-8€$ Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner ofWinchester Sénior Housing Associales,

kP, Swanzey Township Housing ﬁ}ssot:i‘ates, LP, Show Brook Meadow Village
Housing. Associates, LP, and Keener Highland Housing, Assctiates, LP during.the
years ended-May 31, 2022 and 2021.

The  remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP and ‘Warwick Me'adpw Housing Associates, LP were ac‘q.uir'e._d by
Southwestern Community Services, In¢. during the year ending. May 31, 2021
(see Note 14), and therefore th:e limited partnerships are included in the:

consolidated financial statements for the years.ended:Mdy 31, 2022 and 2021.
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" NOTES TO ‘CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED, MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021

Summanzed financial information for entities- accounted for Under the equily
method, as of May 31, 2022 and 2021, consists of the followmg

2022 2021

Totalassets “$._53.204 $ 56169

Total liabilities | 14923 15200,
Capital/iMember's equity 36,2817 37.969 ,
Income: ' ‘5 3,306 $ 3267

Expenses P I 4713 4719 )

NOTE11 RETIREMENT PLAN.
The-Organization maintains a tax’ sheltered annuity plan undér the provisions. of

Section 403(b) of the: internal Revenue Code. ‘All employees who have had at
‘least 30.days of service to the Orga;mzataon are.eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Qrganization begins: matchlng contributions after the' employee has reached
one year of service. Employer contnbuhons are at the Organization's-discretion
and totaled $310,304 and-$296, 322, for Ihe yéars ended May 31 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

NOTE12 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS.
Nel.assets with donor restrictions are-available-for the fellowing purposes:

g N 2022 2021
NNECAC ~ Annual Conference Fund . $ .8 16,646
GAPS/MWarm Fund ’ : ) 108,508 101,736
Transport ' . 20.000 90,000
HS Parenits Assocnation _ 5,844 6,967

Totai net assels with donor restrictions $ 134352 § 215349
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE Y_EARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021 ¢
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NOTE 13 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS
The board desighates a portion of the unrestricted net asseis for WM Marcello
GAPS .funds. There was $12,792 and $12,790 designated by the beard al May
31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE 14 TRANSEER OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS
‘During the: year ended May 31, QQ21, Southwestern Community..Services, Inc.
-acquired .a parinership interest in two low-income housing limited ‘partnerships:
-Keene Highland: :and Warwick. The- amount-paid for-:the .parinership..interest .in
Keene Highland and Warwick was $1 €ach, and at the time of acquisition,
Southwestem. Commuinity Services, inc. became the. general partnér: i

The foliowing is a summary- of he-assels.and liabilities :of the partnerships at the
. date of acquiisition: '

Keene .
Highland Warwick

' Date oF Transfer © m=el Q70172020 "UO0172021 <

Cash - $ 156907 .§ -68.061
Security deposits 21,321 . 12:460
"~ Cash reserves . ¢ ‘391,456 154,727
_Propery. net | 2,769,245 1,237.249
Other assets. 25,946 i J_OLSE‘Sl
Total assets; 3,364,875 1,483,358
Notes payable 1,372,220 518,078
Other liabilitie’s : 85,048 18,939
Total Habilities. A 1,457,268 537,017
Partriers’ capital : 1,907,607 946,341,

Partners’ t:apital,pf:re,vipusiy. recorded ‘

as an investment in related parties 269" 28
_ Pariners’ capital transferred $.1,907,876. $ 946,369

-




NOTE 15

NOTE 16

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA'I:EM ENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY.31; 2022 AND 2021

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

-

companies' financial assets as.of May 31, 2022 and 2021:

i

. The follow:ng represents. Scuthwestem Commumty ‘Services, Inc. and relaled

E 2022 2021
Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,153,976 1,722,941
Accounts receivable: 1745952 - 1.783.993
Due from related party 47,566 55,138
_-.C—)a'sh-esc‘row-and‘re'ser-vesfunds- e 1479277 .. --. 1471741
Total findncial assets 6,426,771 5,033,813
Liess amounts not available to.be used
within.one year:
P
Due:from related party (47,566) {55,138)
Reserve funds (1.479.277) (1.471.741)

Total amounts Aot available within oné year

‘Financial assets available to meet gereral
expenditures over-the next twelve morniths

(1,526.843)"

_(1.526.879)

The Qrganization has a goal io maintain unrestricted cash on ‘hand to meet 30
days of normal qperating expendnures which are, -on average, approximately
$2.350.000° and $1,559.000 @l May 31, 2022 and 2021, iespeclively. The
Organization has a $250, 000-line of|credit availa_ble._to meet cash flow needs.

3
vy

PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

In April 2020, the. Organization recelved loan proceeds in the amount of $439,070
under.the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The PPP, is-éstablished as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Rehef and Economm Security Act (CARES Act). If the
‘Organization did not meet the loan cntena the unforgiven portion of the PPP ican is
payable over five years at'an mterest rate of 1%, with.a deferral-of payments for the
first ten months. The. Orgamzatlon has used thé prOceeds for purposes consistent
with the PPP and the PPP-Igan has|been forgiven.in fuil. Therefore, forgiveness of
the loan totaling $439.070. was recognized 6n the. Consolidated Statement, of
Activities for the year ended May 31, 2021
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NOTE 17

NOTE 18

-NOTE 19.

- SUBSEQUENT.EVENIS.. .. . .b. .

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
" - FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND 202t

RECLASSIFICATION N " A
Cerlain amounts and .accounts:from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

OTHER EVENTS .

The impac! of the novel .coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its.

spread are affecting he O‘rganizatior?‘s operations. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's

" financial opérational” reSUIS; iwill bE" dictated by thelength “of time that such
- disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowablé duration

of the COVID-19_pandemic. and th,é‘|impact of governmental regutationis that. might
be imposed in response to the pandémic. The Organization's business could also
be impacted should-the: disnuptions from’ COVID-19 lead to changes in consumer
behavior. COVID-18 also.makes. it more challenging for management 10 estimate
futuire performance of the: businesses, particularly over the near t6 medium term.

Subsequent events are-everts or transactions that occut after the statement of
financial. position date, DUtfbefoq._ﬁhancial. staternents are:available. to be .issued.
Recognized-subsequent events are events or transactions hat provide ‘additional
evidence ‘about: conditions that existed at the. statement of financial position date,
including‘the. estimates’ inherent.in ithe process of prepairing financial statemnents.
Nonrecognized subseguent events. afe évents thal provide -eviderce about
conditions that did not-exist at. the. 'statement of financial position-date, but arose
after that date. Management-has evaluated subsequent events through .February
g, 2023, the.date thé financial statements were available to be issued.

1 . |
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= 0 CONSULIDATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES o : - -
Education ) Economic Wanpgement /.
Homa Energy and ™} Homaleas Housing Development Othar Total and 022
. Brpgiym ‘Muion 3 Eregtemt -services Strvicey Brogramy Brogram Guneeal Topt
REVENUES AXD OTHER SUPPORT ol B G ; y
Grronrivr e covirmes 5 6CAI708 '8 3308274 | § iagwoair 3 470 S TN 3 75335 5 AEAII0 5 GORIT0 § PLEAS
Pregram sarvice lsr - 1,163.527 y . 93,388 181,840- : 40,474- 2.683.401 . 6000 ., 299107
Rentslfricom: . . . BA.OAS 1711208 . [ 1.707.451 20,185 1.917.636
Seprpn 0208 14,491 254,636 - 191342 120.400 fag 175 - 20,000 £82.175
Seovvutsiiu - . B - =k 8,50 20,520 . - 29.520
Tniecert incore ? 7 153 3z &6 L srar - 525 1.009
Ferprraness of g . - .. 87,550 23019, . . 0,803 ) -t 2,609
Macidie o 10219 1033, -9.873 83870 33,851 - 141,797 BEYHY 158.9%4
n-kind ‘corinaudons. : 29368 E - o, NS . 49,388 i - 89,2¢8
Total evwrwary wnd uihar vuzpen 3 LR2300Y R 2N 4 s S 2032237 40245 3_1A2009 120734100 0§ oedzyvce 3 3009040
EXPENSES. .. ) ’ - E
Payrelt = T os5144¢ 1383713 S e0i4N0 BOETZAYY OS5 20070 5 _ciBDda 34 S A543  § 4PN
Pyl izzes £ . 43:237 121587 ° 9849 51,549 10490 35,545 M2 68,379 08,521
Eol/es senelar 137,334 Jarwg 140.322 217 837 BTAL 137584 1647 571 161,743 1,149,314
Heurement 31.440 95675 . 2,887 43.044 16,083 18,530 242.7% 68,504 J10,354°
Advartising 1,000 . 2873 i 48 7537 8.801 - L 4170 35525
Ben’y Cliuty sy 3 L. 653 , 48% - - s LMs 2,700 15,049
Compurer.cost_y N7, 16,755, 13319 2,001 14,818 - 53,100 137,747 170,048
Cantraciuat gB075, 5258 87 424 7’03 .. B BN 7 a8 B335y 1T058.7%2
Deorae’stion . 8,43 : 134,030 eresm - ase 538,790 150,983 989,773
Dumsieeghurnbion . 259 . 0 508 s 1882 11,732 i6.451
Ovplicaing . 838 * - : . - 8.680 5203 - V4,183
rounce T 6423 6520 35676 62,108 850 am 147 609 5,537 103.238
Frrest ' - 23 , 9538 @ean - 2 £2.08 118,505 V17.56%
Yesting ard coaterence . L o- d 1285 - (11} T2.AR2 1.0 1838 8,038
Vecsarenn riferes a7e” 2.2 120 H2.217 T 5102 127 414 30,519 A28
YEcelmoeous e N . . 125,976 . - 129,978 182 130,128
Ecupme: Juithates . : ' 18I0 3421 .. 378 . g 24018 o 24,768
Oheo cxoensy 43204 8735 22754 10.400 151 90 £3.702 24,071 11277
Pestace | g AR m 24 17 . ] A7 T2
Professizonn) lnes 1075 . 4323 2692 - 220 32,548 85,753 14,00
Stalf divtopssbrd w [raiiog . 1806 2287 823 2005 121 ~1,B83 10,2% 2781 19,040
Sutecripdon LI - - 2 . - pr: 180 408
Tsisphoze 5,137 g’ 2:,670 wIm 1,030 768 53,491 4250¢ 160,078
Tve 715 B 1, 058 14,784 28,30 249 78,028 1.£28 17.923
Vehicie 041 - 2,09 - 24,585 m2s- 13,081 120374 A0 20,704
Remt  “/ ) 3 .8.000 . 16360 . - 24.50% 5 - 48,805 - 43,803
Seooe costy 287 26037 ' 458,308 688,317 10.742 5 1,589,451 TR WTE3ED
Oirest Ziont Basisanse . £.438,825~ DZEW 1 1172407 11.007 37.540 2953 1738100 - 17.327,043
rind sxcaniss - B9.26E | L - i . . _maes : £0,368
TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE ) )
MANAGEMENT ARD GENERAL ALLOLATION 1,051,740 2,820,003 13,349,413 31,070,448 050,191 023,000 27,0% 005 2,031,208 b LR ER]
Npeaton of merisgoment and genaral expenses ) 513.218 202,120 £51.053 225 848 ca el 30,104 2031266 {2,031.286}
TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $ 7500038 5 30043213 | § 16330468 3 2308004 P 7OT208 0§ TANIG4  § WA - s wenan
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDLE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AMD EXPENSES
EQR THE YEAR EMDED MAY 1, 2021

-
Edu=siion . . Economlic i 3
Homa Enargy and Homaless Houtlng Davelapment Other. Total Hanagemaent 2024
Progsime Nutdiion - Propmmy Seorviccs Services Pioctams Progrom 2nd General Jotay
REVENUES AND.OTHER SUPPORT - .
Governmen] contiads P S 45X $ 105§ swTwt s 4260 § 795897 3 « % 3@ S BLSIIE 3 HASLAW
Pragram sefvice lee LN Cy 0.851 848971 : 178,732 2,708 9C2 . 2,100,902
Rurial i . e ? 90,942 1,566,633 i a 27 V852,741 1,657,741
Seooon i 56,162 B33 |~ 425 To. 180,072 THLI94 £01.572 56 . 601838,
Szoxaciship = : 5 .4 2 . z 71,703 21703 21,703
Inaies! income N p 13 "¢ 1 k.. ] n as 5ET 738 1.402
Fagioneas of debl . . 54411 23920 : . ) %404 433,070 S1A501
thscitlaneous 1947 3908 813’ 10,279 25 . 39.36% 169,224 67,662 220.008
. \hln_ocmuh.llom_ 4 .§S, 444 1 _— " . . 05,414 ] — AR 414
Totsl rzvenued n2 0her 30307 ] § 571n518 £ 2204350 §L_ANIS0ED rh dd 0.1 $  BE2155 E 1910782 [RETR1] RS PAd
EXPENSES t :
Payroll hag 3 4BB3ET 0§ IEILEIA . 3 491064 S TSI 3 3S0A S 4003 § 49108 $ 0 TS280 % 4783182
Pyyroll taxes 25,674 108,568 { 17,008 43514 30,218 3024 116,033 120,697 398 530
€ mplrase bl 171,279 81,588 ¢ 144229 23870 55,453 150,793 1,197,763 43,508 1,244,211
Reg:amant 32504 85.275 i 671 §9.208 20,180 14,243 FAL35? 58085 206,022
Aericng : - 3102 356 1,295 1838 . 6418 133 6.552
Bank Cherges 10 AN S K" 4109 E i 5.250 2366 . 1402
Cimguler Tost - 238 ————— 28,113 12,051 7.705% H8ATL . 84,322 185,332 247354
Centrmchla 1,007 4L 12,804 § R YA E1.435 40 48,737 LATARTT 59,518 233808
Deprociation - -28.435-y 117 857 03,233 . TA% 755883 153,392 ~909,155
Does'regiaretion ! - 202 . 223 543 ' . 3153 613 1,772
Ouplicating [ 8,185 . - - . 8,220 4528 12.8:7
i ance : 5.530 15,038 33,453 57,381 15203 820 12,108 43,430 177.835
nziost = . $.955 5,953 a7 . 1,890 61,748 13918 175,687
Heeting and condacener, . - . B0 154 133 1,127 1637 2,764
Miscalliresus eapente 2,883 . 1,202 £2.239 2548 1132 91.209 2878 0.924
Macsllanedus ks = - . - 101,224 - - 131,224 30 W13
Eanpmont curchises by 1310 . P52 - * - 10,217 ¢ 2.A08 13,042
Ofica Expenas 10084 17475 80,872 V8% 2.588 143 112,588 49,579 82152
Pesiage ; X0 16k Y 128 bt 342 . ARy 31.6%0 - 3,478
Profassiing! : 1050 x| 330 heer . g LYy 81,004 124.011
S3%-deveiopmant #no toning 3,406 1327 § 1RS 2,008 G4 1,385 i 9,189 17048 SB.522
Suhisoriptions . . 3 e o8 H . 1.3 2,187 2,205
Tdwplmn H EH 3,108 20.602 18.87% 2% 1117 48,515 47,535 €6,250
Tre! © 8.904 12328 7.2 9813 14,328 - 33497 5.615 67,172
vehicla a.147 400 1,748 41,289 35,841 9.52 $9,187 3912 1009
Rani - 24,254 . : 21,112 . @171 . 45,771
Suuuy CIsh . 122478 | 184,003 718,703 1210 114 1,242,119 130,088 1,352,587
Drect ¢'on EEBLaNCe 3,788,540 110702 . 4,126,109 YN 24,359 3182 2.125.512 . 8135512
Iviind Lroenses ' - 85,414 L - : . 85414 . _ 65444
,TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE s . A
GENERAL AND NANAGEMENT ALLOCATION ; 5,550,467 2,019,599 A.518.502 2,9120%2 €21,784. 150,430 37991,265 1,948,872 19.939,037
Alosniion of maragomai £nY QLAY expent a2 602,161 34783 4 597.504 J5EIE 52 M7 81,201 1948672 11.948.672) 3
: TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES ' $_618:658 § 203882 4 4 S11C006 5 NZMESE S EERAM S B3I 6 Eemusy ¢ o 81093959
See [ndapendant .gudlmrlr Regort .
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SOUTHWEXTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

= )
SCMEDULE OF. EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS .
EOR THE YEAR ERDEQ MAY 11,2022
»
ASSISTANCE B 4
FEDERAL GRANTORS USTING PASS-THROUGH FEDERAL
ANT G T NUMBER ) RANT ME QRANTOR3 NHUMBER
N s Y .
Spacial Supplermantal Nutrition 2rogem for T . =
Wot, Infarts, aimd Chitdren (WIC) 10557 Stelw of N Gupurbment of Haalth $'Hunwn Survices 010-090-52000000-102.50073¢ - s 250.358
: ; L4} :
Chidd end Adutt Cars Food Progrmm 10558  Sima of Nit. Dapartment of Education Untriown H 11470 o
Crd 2nd Aduh Crra Food Frogmm 10.558 St of N4 Depornient of Sducstion Uniniown £9.48] 204277
Food Otstribution Cluxter . : g )
Commodity S_!.mp!omar.al Food Program 10.565 Sute of NH, Cepartment of Healfth 8 Human Berviees 010:090-5?600000-102-5_60734 2400
Commodity Suzplamentsl Food Pragram (Fooc Commadiies! 10565 . Communily Acilon Program Benmol_uam-nac\ Countles Unknawn 106.330 108,720

- Totm\y.S. Deparimient of Agrioutum

3.0 mynl ing w06 Urban Davelopn
Coammunity Davaisament 8inck Grants/State’s Pragam snd

s, 562310

NonEntitamen Grants in Hmwan VAEWT ity of Kzene SCHAshaltaT Impmvemenrs 3 618,008
Emamgincy Sosions Gam Program I'4.f231 Siate of NH, DHHS, Bursav of Heusing Supooits 05-85-85-958310-717600000- 102-507 31 $ 12.25%
COVID-19 Emarmgancy Soksions Gram Program: 14,23 Sune of N4, DHHS, Buresu of Mousing Suppons 05-93-42-42300-79270000 283,853 296.100
Supsoriee Housing Program 14,233 Slety of N¥. DHHS. Butwins of Houslng Supporls 05-45-05-058310-7 17600000 102-507 31 ~.-132.0707
Supootvs Housing Program 1423 Suth of NH, OHHS, Buruau of Housing Supporis. 05-D5-42-422010-79270000 27,870 161,940

: ' } . : o .
Shejar Pus Care . 14234 Stdv of NH, DHHS, Burgsr'al Housing Suposts HHOOSTLITO0I10 278,794
Contnaum of Cars Progrem 14257 State of NH, DHHS, Burenis of Hotsing Sushods NHEDE2L 1 TOO 1904 81,228
Confimuin of Cars Program 14267 Sixe of NN, OHHS, Burssu o Howing Suppoits NHCOOGL 1 TOO1904° 128.004 ]
Contawm of Care Program 14,261 Stute of NH, OHHS, Buniau of Housing Suopons | NHO074L1TOC1007 BIBST 200.089
: ) i . ) i ™~

Taotd U5, Depasment of Rousing and Udan Devaloprsant » $ 1,508,340
Foema Grants tor Rurat Arszt 20500  Sizie of NH. Deparement of Transportation - DA-DB-DB-DB4010-2018 3 548,401
Transk Servicas Progratns Cluster ) .

Enhanced Matiity of Seniors end incividualy with Cisabiities 20513 Stsin of N, Depanimen: of I magporision 04-96-98-964010-2916 50.465
Fedars! Tranalt Cluster

Bus a7 Bus Facilies Formuta &8 Discrelionary Programs .

(Tuss Progrmm) ) 20528 Siate of NH, Depsriment of Tranapociation 04.56-96-534010-2918 3.024
1
Totd U.5. Oepariment of Transportation Fedarsl Transit Adminisiration (FTA) b 1 607,084

See Notes 10 Schedute of Expsnditures of Fadersl Awards ¢
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ERDED MAY 31, 2012

ASSISTANCE -
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ -LISTING PASS-THROUGH FEDERAL
PASS-THROUGH GRANTORPROGRAM TITLE NUMBER GRANTOR'S NAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER E OITY
U.5. Dapartment of Teaasuty .
Cornniys Relle! Fund 21019 Suns of NH. GHHS. Bursa of Heusing Sugpants UBYE-AZ-422010-194 10000 ) " 60,850
Emergency Reat Asclstance Pragrom 21023 Now Hompshire Housing unknown 1,410,85%
Tatal\).5. Dupanman: of Tregeury. _ 1 11471314
AL3. Dygartment of Evvrgy : x ] |
VW oather lgation Asairisnce for Low-incomit Peisons 81042  Statwof NH. Office.of Enwiyy & Plunring 01.02-0240 10-T708-074-520587 H59.132
Tot LS. Dopatment of Sramy ) ' 850,132
Aging Clusisr )
Sf-;‘al Progra:ns bt (e Agity. Tie Hl Pacl B, g
Gmeds s Suppnnive Se-vicay and Senpine Cantars 83.042 Sty of NH, ORlcs of Enargy 8 Planning 0102-024010-7 706-074.500537 % £.730
Specigl Progromy tor (na Aging; Tilo - Pan B;

Geanis for Supdorive Soices and Sehior Cenlen G3.045 Simtr af NA, LHHS, tomeas of Eldady & Acul Secsnes 05-95-48-4810%0-To72 70,240 75870
Grants 16 $latos 0 Suppon Orol Heahh Workforca Acthities §3238  Siote of NH, DHAS, NH Medicald 1003368 2483
Activities 1o Suppor Sizte, Td>al, Local and Teritorigl (STLT)

Hantth Dapa:imant Response ko Public Haalth or 1iaslheam

Criazs 93,391 Siate of N, GHHS, Division of Hubb: Heath Services 010390517 1000050073 4 18,07
Low Income Moma Enamy Assistancs (Fue Assisiance) £3.388 State of NH. Office of Enargy & Punning 02-52-82.520010-18370000-0 T4-500587 4,426,005,
Low Income Hame Energy Assisnce (BWP) 93,508 Sixig of N4, Office of Enargy & Planiding 0102-07-024010-77050000- 500587 267,968

) . E 02-52-52-520010-12870000-474-500587 T o136.4M
; ‘Statn of NA, UHHS, Administration tor Ciron &

COVID- 10 Low lrcomo Homa Enargy Assisianca $3.568 Famiies, Offico of Communlty Sordcor Grant F2001NHESCI 07.274
ARPA Low Incoma Homo Encrgy Assistanco (BAWYF) 92,568 Siate of MM, Otiize of Energy & Planalry. 0205205262000~ 244 WOOUC-074- 50058 7 338/
ARDS Low incoma Homa Energy Assisiancs A1S8N  Buea of NH, Ofice of Energy S leiin( 02-052-052-520010- 24450000 4,150,158 6.353.518
Community Senices Biock Grant 93509 Simte of NH, DHHS, Oiv. of Famdy Aisinance .500721 252,812

L . . ) Stata of M), DHILS, ONitins of Enoiom'e & Housing .
COVIO- 10 Commuahy Services Block Grant 63.569 Stabillty R g 50071 ! . 222,108 579.718

. i . X ' '
Cammanity Serviens Biock Genl - Dcrationdary '93.'570 Stats ol NH, DHHS, O, of Famdy A.:ml?‘ncn Unknown 22552
San NOles 1o Sthedule of Expinditures of Fadersl Awards 3
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SQUUNESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICEI.ING,

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2082
ASSIITANCE ' ' i
* FEDERAL GRANTQR! LISTING PASS-THROUGH FEDERAL
BPASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE HUMBER GRANTOR'S MAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER EXPENDITURE
Hexd Start Clusier : i
Mand $tart S50  Dimat Funding ! QICHY1 1454 H 2,270,884
CCWID-18 1 lead Stan . 9450 Oirect Funsing GIHE000I3R - 2,110,580
4
Toaad U.S. Departmenit of tleahh & Human Sarioas J 5 §,390,053
; 3 ' e
.8, Denaﬁmam ot Homatand Gecyrity }
Emergancy Food and Shaller Navonal Bosso Progeam 97024  Stats of NH, DS, Offies of Ihm«iﬁqﬁzfa Uaknown -$ 9,203
Tatd U.S. Depsrtmant of Hostwbeen) Secwrity B . ® 5 9,203
TOTAL ’ i 3 24,507,403

Set Notas to Schisdute of Expendliures of Federal Awards

k1]



}
NOTES TO SCHEDULE.OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION '

i The accompanying schedule of. expenditures of Federal Awards (the ‘Schedule)

includes the federal award actwny of Southwestern Community Services; Inc.
undet-programs of the federal. govemment for.the’ year ended May.31,.2022. The
information in this Schedule is presenled in-accordance with the requirements of
Title- 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulattons Part 200, Unrform Administrative
Requiréments, Cost Principles, and Audit .Requitements for .Federal. Awards
*(Uniform Guidance). Because. the' 'Schedule presents only 3 selected ‘portion of
the operations of Southweslern Community- Services, Inc., it i$ not intended to
and does not.present the financial |posmon changes.in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization. g

-

NOTfE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
_Expenditures reported. en the Schedule are- reported- on the .accrual ‘basis of
accounling. ‘Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform, Gu1dance wherein certain’ lypes’ of expendilures are not
allowable or are limited as to reambursement

[, — e

S L

NOTE3 ~ ~ INDIRECT COST RATE
‘Southweéstem Commumly Senvices, Inc. has electéd hot to use the: ‘ten percent
de mirimis indirect-cost rate a!lowed under the Umform Giidance.

NOTE 4 FOODDONATION.
y Nonmonelary assistance is reporlted in the Schedule at ‘the fair value of the
commodmes recewed .and disbursed.

NOTE 5. . SUBRECIPIENTS - :
" Souttiwestern Community Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended.
May 31, 2022. '
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. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ‘ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING.AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN'ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

© o~

‘We have audlted in accordance with the audmng standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable [to financial audits contalned in Government
Auditing Standards:issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States, the consolidated
_ financial statements, of Southwestern Commumty Serwces Iné: (2. New: Hampshare nonprofit,
corporation) and felated companies, which compnse the consohdated statement of financial
position ‘as of May 31, 2022, and the related: consohdated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and-cash flows for the year then ended, and the relatéd hotes -to thé consolidated

financial statements, and have |ssued olr report thefeon dated February 9, 2023.

‘Report on’ Internal Control Over Flnanclal Reportlnq

in planning "and performing our audit: of the consphdated financial statements we considered
Southwesterm Community Services, Inc.'s inlernal control over financial reporting (internal
conirol) to, determme the .audit_procedures' that are’ appropnate in. the circumstances for the
pufpose of expressing our opinion on the consolndated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectweness of Southwestern Community Services,
. Inc.'s internal ¢ontrol. Accordingly; we' do not |express an opinion on the effectiveness of

‘Southwestern Commumty Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A def:c:ency in internal contro! exists.when the desngn of operatlon of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent; or detéct and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. * A material weakness is a
.deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in mternal contrgl, such-that there is a reasonable.
possibility that a material misstatement of the entltys consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, .or-detected and corrected, .on d timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or @ combination of deficiencies, in internal control that i§ less severe than a
‘material weakness, yet imporiant. enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance

38




i response:

i

Our consideration of the, internal control was for the limited purpose -described in: the first.

_paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify -all deficiencies in internal control
that might be malerial weaknesses or significant deficiencies and theréfore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were nol identified. Given ‘these
limitations, during our -audit we -did’ not identify any-deficiencies in- internal control that we,
consider to be material wéaknesses. We' identified a deficiency in internal control, described in
the. accompanying schedule of findings and du'e_sliohed. costs as item 2022-001 that we
~ consider o be a-significant deficiency. ’

Report on.Compliance and Othei Matters :

As part of obtaining reasonable assiirance about whether Southwestern Communily Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are freé jof materal misstatement, we performed tésts.
of its compliance wilh certain pravisions of laws, régulations, contracts, and grant .agreements,
noncompfiance with which could have a direct and material effecl on the consolidated financial

slatemerits. However, providing..an:opinion. -on_'gompii',a_nce with those provisions. was not an.

objective of our audit, and accordingly, we doz‘n?_t express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance. of other matters that are required to."be
reported under Governmen! Auditing Standards.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.’s. R'e‘sb‘ons‘é"té-ir'ihdings

Governiment Auditing’ Standards -requirés: the|-‘audilor 1o. perform Iim‘i@ed procedures: on:
Southwestern, Commiunity Servicés, InC.’s response 1o the findings identified in -our .audit:and

deséribed' in the accompanying schedule of ‘findings and questioned costs. Southwestern

Community. Services, Inc.’s response .was. not subjected to the other duditing procédures.

-applied-in"the audit of'th‘e:‘ﬁnan'c'ial‘statem‘ent's"_a'nd'.ta'cbor'dingty.'We ‘express-notopinion:on-the

Purpose of this Report . F .
The purpose of this' report is 'solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal controf and

compliance and the results of that testing, and ‘not1o provide.an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Organization's intermal controt'or on cormpliance. This report is an.intégral part of an audit
performed in accordance with ‘Government .Audiling. ' Standards, in considering -the

Organization’s intemal control andcompliance: Accor]dinglif; this communication is riot stitable:

for-any other purpose.

B s Conetation.
"Wolfeboro, New Hampshire , '
February 9, 2023




. Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

-

section of our report.

- : Leone |
- McDonnell
& Roberts

PROFESSHRA, s 2T
 CERTIFIED RUDLIC ACCOUNTANTS
- WOLFKBORG » NOKTH (oMY
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS| REPORT. ON'‘COMPLIANCE " imine™
;  FOR'EACHMAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL™ -
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestem Commiunity. Services, Inc.

i

Opinion on Each Major-federal Program )
We have audited Southwestern Community |Services, Inc.'s: {8 New Hampshire nenprofit

corporation)- compliancé with .the types of compliance. requirements described in the. OMB~

Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material efiect on.each of Southwestem
Community Services, Inc.'s. major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2022.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.’s major federal programs are identified in the summary

of duditors’ results section of the dccompanyinglschedule of findings arid questioned:co'sts, _

in 6ur opinion, Scuthwestern Communily Services, Inc. complied, in all malerial respects, with
the compliance. requirements referred to above..that could have. a direct and material effect on
each of its major-federal programs.for the year e%nded ‘May 31, 2022. °

Basis for Opinion.on Each Major Federal Program :

We conducted our -audit of compliance in accordance with .auditing standards. generally
accepled i llie Uniled Slates of America, 'lhe .standards .dpplicable to financial audits
contained in Goverrithent Auditing Standards, issued, by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the-audit requirements of Title 2,U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Reéquirements. for Federal
Awards (Uniform ‘Guidance). Our'responsibili'ties under those standards and .the Uniform
Guldance are further described in the Auditors’ "Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

~

We are required-to be independent of Southwestern Community-Services, Inc. and to meet our

“other ethical fesponsibilities, in aceordance with relevant ethical requirements. rélating-to- our

audit. We believe that the audit evidence we jhave obtained ‘is sufficieit and appropriate to.
provide a basis for dur opinioh on compliance for each major federal’ program. Our audit-does
not provide a legal.determination -of. Southvyestérh Community Services,.Inc.’s compliance. with
the compliance requirements referred to al;>ove.i

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible fplr'complianc‘.e witr:\ the requirements referred to above and for the _

design, implemeritation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, .regulatiors, | rules, and provisions of- -contracts or grant
agreements-applicable to Southwestern Communily Services, Inc.'s ledeyal programs.

O
P
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Auditors' Responsibiiities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are lo.obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether malerial noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opifion on Southwestem Communi},y Services, Inc.’s compliance based on our
audil. Reasonable assurarice. is a high level of assurance but is not absoluté assurance and
theréfore is not a guarantee that an audit-conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and thie Uniform Guidance will .always
detect material nohcompliance when il exists. The risk of riot detacting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
" forgery, intentiond! omissions, misrepresentations, or the- ovérride of internal control..
Noncompliance wilh the compliance fequirements referred to -above is considered material if
there is a.substantial likelihood that, indiviqy_.'.-xil,'y or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the! report on compliance about Southwestern .
Community Services; Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program
-as:a-whole: -« - == == = *

- In.performing an audil-in. accordance with 'ge‘nef:ally accepted audiling standards, Government

Auditing Standards, and the Uniform. Guidance, we: \‘ y
« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout

the audit: . : :

e Identify and assess the risks of material inoncampliance, whether due to fraud or '
error, and_design and .perform audit procedures responsive to those risks: Such
procedures. include. examining, on'a tesl[basis, evidence régarding Southwestem -
Communify Servicés, Inc.’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other;proc‘(.'adure's-as-we considered necessary in the
circumstances. .

» Obtain -an. understanding of South,West’gm Community Services, Inc.'s intemal
control ovér compliance. relevant to the audit in order to design auditl procedures
that .are appropriate-in the Cirgumstamcegs:--alqd (o test and report on intemal control
over.compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expiessing an opinidon on the .effellctiveness of Southwestern Community
.Services, Inc.'s intemal contro! over compliance. Accordingly. no such opinien is
expressed. '

We.are required to communicate with those crpa_[ged-wilhagqvemah'ce regarding, amorg other
matiers, the planned scope and timing of the ‘audit and. any significant deficiencies and material
‘weaknesses in, internal.control over comgliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal:Control Over Compliance .
A deficiency in internal control over, compliance. exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in'the normal course of-performing
their .assigned functions, to prevent, or detéct and correct, noricompliance with a type of
compliance réquirement of a federal program on atimely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance-is a deficiency,-or Combination of deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable-pc:)ssibilily that material nohcompliance wilh a type-
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A sighificaint deficiency i internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or-a
combination ‘of. deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
41
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requurement of a federal program that is less severe than a.material'weakness in inteéral.controt
over compliance, yel |mportant enough to mentattentron by those charged with govemance:.

QOur consideralion of internal control over comphance was for the limited purpose - described in

the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the ‘Audit-of Comp!sance section above and was riot designed-to .
identify- all deficiencies in internal control over comphance that might be material- weaknesses.or -

significant deficiencies in intemal control over 6dri1p|iance Given these limitations, during our
audit' we did not identify any deficiencies’in mteqnai control over-compliance that we consider to
be material weaknesses, .as defined: above. [However, material weaknesses-or significant
deficiencies in‘internat controi over compliance- r,'sl1ay exist that were not identified. J

. | ,
Our audit was not desighed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
intemal control over compliance. Acc’orgin‘gly. no such opinian is expressed.

- The-purpose of this report-on:internal-control- -over compliance is-solely to describethe-scope-of-
our. testing of intemal control over comphance and the results of that testing based on the:
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordmgty, this réport is not ‘suitable for -any other
purpose.

(;(Lﬁwwzaowwzuw

. Wolfeboro,.New.Hampshire. .. ... . coecdemivims . o
February 9, 2023 L
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SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS
1.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022 -

-

The auditors' report expresses an unmodified|opinion on wheiherthe c'dhsq!idated' financial
statements of Seuthwesternr Community Services, nc. and related companies were
preparéd in accordance with GAAP. )

Iy i I
One significant deficiency disclosed during the .audil ‘of the .consolidaled financial
statements :are reporied in. the Independent Audilors’ Report on -Internal -Control ‘Over
Financial Reporting and on-Compliance and Other Malters'Based on an Audit of Financial
Statemients Pérformed in Accordance-with~Government-Auditing- Standards—No-material
weaknesses are:reported. ' ; 4

No instances of noncompliance material to the consoliddled financial statements of
Southwestern. Community Services, Inc. and| related companies; which would be required

to be reported in accordancé with. Gov,emmrl;'-nt Audiling Standards were disclosed during
the audit. '
|

. No significant deficiencies in intemal control over major federal award programs are.

reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and

on.Interial Control Over Compliance -Required by the Uniform Guidance. No_ materia

- tays e pe = )
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weaknesses. are reporied.

The auditors’ report on campliance for the major federal award ‘programs for Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion-on. all. major federal programs.

. Audit finding$ that are required.to be’reported in accordance with 2'GFR section 200.516(a)

are reported in this Schedule . -

The progiams. lested as major programs were: U.S: Deépatment of Healthr and Human
Services; Low-income Home Energy Assistance, AUN. 93.568; U.S. Department of
Treasury; Emergéncy Rental Assistance. Program, ALN 21.023; and Y.S. Department of
Transportation; Formula Grants for Rural Areas, ALN 20:509. i

The threshold for distinguishing Type A a'nd.lIB programs-was $750,000.

Southwestermn Community Sewices, Inc. Wasf determined to.be a tow-risk auditee.

' o l
FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
|

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY |

2022-001 - Lack of éccurate\and'-ti_rhely-re'concili'ations

Criteria: /ntemal controls énsuring timely anld accurate reconciliations.
Condition: There was a déiay in accurate account reconciliations at-May 31,72022.



s

Cause: The Organization's intemal -control pélicies..and ‘procedures were not followed as
designed. |

Effect: Significant and material journal entries were provided by the client\to ensure
accurate ﬁnancial'statements. . .

Context: Reconcmalions .were not prepared tnmely, which resuited in Iate client entnes
many of which were a'result of audit.testing and inquiries made by auditor.

Recommendation: Internal contro! policies and procedures should be followed throughout
the year to ensure accurate and timely réconciliations.

Views of Responsible Officials: The Organization acknowledges that internal control
policies relative to. cenain reconcmatlons weére not. followed as established. The
- Organization's-Leadership-and-the-Fiscal Department L.eadership isaware ithat-is-this-not
acceptable and the expectation is'that all fi scal controls and policies are to be followed in a
timely and accurate manner.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJ(i).R‘EEDERAL'AWI_\Rﬁ PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SUMMARY. SCHEDULE. OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31,2022
- |

There were no findings. or questioried costs thatjwere required to be reparted inthe Schedule -
of Findings and Questioned Costsfor'the year enided' May 31, 2021. ’
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CONSTITUENT
SECTOR

PRIVATE
SECTOR

PuBLIC
SECTOR

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Board of Directors < 2022 Composition
. . N\

CHESHIRE COUNTY

\

SULLIVAN COUNTY .

Ron Nason
SCS Tenant

Heather Cameron
Head Start Policy Council .
Parent Representative

Mary Lou Huffling -

Fall Mountzin Emergency Food
Shelf

Alstead Friendly Meals

Anne Beattie
Newport Service Organization

| - Savings Bank of Walpole

Kevin Watterson, Chair
Clarke Companies (retired)

i

Dominic Perkins, Secretary

David Edkins, Vice-Chair
Town of Walpole

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education.
River Valley Community College

-

Jay Kahn
State Senator, District _IO'

Andy Bohannon
Parks, Recreation and Facilities
Director
City.of Keene

Derek Ferland
Sullivan County Manager

Liz Emerson

' Planning and Zoning -
Administrator
Town of Charlestown




KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION

F

Agency Name: Southwestern Comm'unity Servicés. Inc. s

Program Name:FTA 5310

R R e e R A e | e s B e Y
Annual Salary Of Key Percentage af ' “:.7' TotﬂjSalary.} ot
Administrative Salary Paid By | Amount-Pald B)'v
Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel {Personnel Contract : 2 e
- - - =0
Beth Daniels, Chief Executive Officer ! $121,000 0.00% ;':', .“‘ s
Meg Freeman, Chief Firiancial Officer i $113,531 0.00% |7+
o 1 E
Keith Thibaull, Chief Development Qfficer. , $97.000 - 0.00% 2%
I p
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Beth Danicls

Experience
Southwestern Conmmunity Services, Inc., Keene, NH

Chief Operating Officer | 03/2016-Present
* Responsible for all day-to-day program operations of the agency
» Supervise Program Directors, including WIC, Energy, and Housing Stabilization :
s Ensure that all state and federal regulations are followed while those in need receive a smooth delivery
of service
Director of Energy and Employment Programs 10/2008 - 12/2016
o Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor,
Senior Energy Assistance, Weatherization, HRRP, CORE, and Assurance 16 as well as the employment
programs Workplace Success, Work Experience Program, and WIA.
Workforce Development Director ' 11/2006 — 10/2008
¢ Supervise, direct, coach, and encourage stafT of six within four programs
» Collahorate with agency staff, community members and state contract holders to achieve common goals,
including agency name recognition and programisuccess
e Perform all SCS Program Director tasks including PPRs and budget management
Families @ Work Employment Specialist | 0372006 - 11/2006
+ Managed a caseload of fifty (50) clients throughout the Keene, Claremont, Concord, and Nashua areas
e  Worked closety with staff from Southwestern Colmmunily Services, Inc. and Southern New Hampshire
Services :
e Gained a strong working knowledge of all SCS programs for referral purposes

Second Start, Concord, NH
Career Development Specialist =~ 1 1/2004="0372006
¢ Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building exercises
e Assisted participants with barrier resolution and the job search process
» Maintained participant records and completed reporting requirements
¢ Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and leaming styles

Nina’s Family Daycare, Swanzey, NH 10/2003 — 11/2004
Daycare Provider
¢ Responsible for meal planning, payment records, supphes and activities
* Acquired CPR & First Aid certification

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH )
Case Manager, Homeless Services - 09/2002 — 10/2003
* Responsible for all daily operations of housing program, rules; and regulations
e Completed weekly.and monthly progress reports
» Coordinated house meetings, workshops, case conferences, and life skills classes
Case Manager, Welfare-to-Work | 05/2000 ~ 09/2002-
¢ Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clients
o Gained working knowtedge of Department of Health & Human Services, Immigration & Natusalization
Services, community agencies, and SCS




Education and Training ) .
. Results Oriented Management & Accoubtability (ROMA) . 2016-2017

“rant Writing Workshop ’ 05/2012
1eshire County ' ;

Nonviolent Crisis Tntervention : g 2012
Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc.

Leadership Training ; 2010-2011
Tad Dwyer Consuiting b G .
Criticism & Discipline Skills for Managers ! 11/2007
CareerTrack i -
How to Supervise People - 11/2007

. CareerTrack '
Career Dei’relt‘)pmcnt Facilitator Training : 09/2005

‘National Career Development Association - |
120-hour NCDA training E

Certified Workforce Development Specialist | 06/2005
" Nationa! Association of Workforce Development Professionals
_Ynfection Control & Bloodborne i’athogeps . ) l T 01/2003
., .ome Health Care ' ’
Bachelor of Arts in Human Services ¢ : 0572002
Franklin Pierce College ' |
Graduated cum laudeé (

References Available




Margaret Freeman

Experience

2000 - Present l
Southwestern Community Services Inc. |
Keene, NH [

Chief Financial Officer, (2014 - present)

Supervising the quality of accounting and financial reporting of SCS; a Community
Action Agency. Total funding of $18 million; federal, state and local funding sources. |
Primary responsibilides include overseeing the accounting functions, implementation (%
and monitoring of intefnal controls, reporhng financial position to the Board of
Directors, preparation of the annial A-133 audit, member of agencies Senior Staff.

Fiscal Director (2000-2014) )
Responsible to lead and manage the daily operahons of the Fiscal Department of SCS:

anary duties include budget preparation and analysis, financial statement preparation
and audit coordination.

1993 -2000
Emile ] 'Legere'Mahagement Corp wooe L 3ok
Keene, NH

Accountant [
Provided bookkeeping for real estate management/development corp. Managed 16
affordable housing properties. Responsible for cash management, general ledger; A/P, |
A/R, finandal statement prep, and audit prep Lcasing Manager of large
commercial/retail property responsible for lease management and marketing of over 30
retail spaces. -

Education®
Leadership New Hampshire, Graduate 2011

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH
M.B.A, 1999

Keene State College, Keene, NH
B.S., Management, 1991; concentration Mathematics and Computer Science




Kcith F. Thibault (603) 719-4208 (work)
kthibault@scshelps.org (e-mail)

[ d

Skills Summary

.

. Effective “hands-on” manager with proven suptf-visory experience.
‘- Honesl, dependable and self-motivated.

- Strong written and oral communicator with PC skills & experience. . &
- Detail oriented, highly organized, flexible and hard-working.

. Abie to effectively coordinate multiple projects and tasks. . ¥ ;

Expericnce R 1 | ]
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, Néw Hampshire "
Housing Director — Qctober, 1993 to December 1998 )

Director of Housing & Economic Dcvelopmcnt-—-{.lanuary-l 999-to June 2001 .~ —-o .. " A R
Development Dircctor - July 2001 to August 2007 \ . .

chief development officer — September 2007 - Prés:nt

Primarily responsible for the acquisition, dcvclopr_ncnt" and financing of over 450 units of affordable

housing, five Head Start pre-school facilities and 100,000 square feet of commercial space in fourtcen

communities in southwestern New Hampshire. |Mcmbcr of the agency's Senior Staff. The chief

development officer position has grown to jinclude all economic, program and - philanthropic

development activities within this very dynamic Community Action Agency. The position alsa includes

the responsibility to represent the organization al NUMEroUs coOMMuNity events and on local, state and

rvmme = - .regional boards. Highlights as Housing Director included the devclopment of a comprehensive Property

_ Management component that currently maintains and manages all agency owned real estate; successful

iz administration of a federal HOPE 3 first time home buyer program in Sullivan County as well as being
the recipient of many-awards for the development of historically significant properties.

At R VTS s

Rural Housing Improvement, Winchendon, Massachusetts

Director of Home Ownership and Housing Couﬁ;eling - June 1993 to October, 1993

This Program Director position consists primari:ly of the administration of a $500,000 HOPE 101 ,
Implementation grant, HOME.funding for First-time Home Buyers of $250,000; coordination of a State
Finance. Authority approved Home Buyer Education Course, management of several govemment
property disposition programs (FOIC, RTC and.Fannic Mac), several rehabilitation programs, as well as
2!l housing counseling activitics for the componcﬁt_ Staff supervised include two Housing Developers,
one or more Rehabilitation Specialists, one or mon':.Housing Counselors as well as support staff.

/
Assistant Director for Administration/Leased Housing - April 1998 to May 1593

Administration of a nearly two thousand household Section 8 Rental Assistance program comprised the
overall scope of this position. Primary responsibilities included the disbursement of nearly nine million
dollars annually in Housing Assistance Paymentsto more than eleven hundred landlords, direct day-to-
day supcrvision of eight staff, liaison work with a}l other Agency components as well as accurate record '
keeping per HUD regulations, Highlights included the creation of Agency Family Self-Sufficiency
Program (FSS) and serving on a statewide Project Coordinating Committee for FSS. [ also represented

1RHI on several commitiees of our State Housinlg Association as well as serving on several in-house
commiltees focusing on employee benefits, performance evaluations and the rewriting of Agency job
descriptions 1o conform to the American Disabilities Act.’

| - +



Program Representative/Leased Housing - Scptlcmbe'r 1986.to‘April 1998 I ’ ) i

Responsible for the administration and management of a two hundred-plus household caseload. Duties
included initial and annual inspections of all units, rent negotiation and general file maintenance.
Position required an unusually high degree of organizational, interpersonal and technical skills.

Thorough knowledge of market area, Federal Housing Quality Standards and HUD Section 8 regulations
were required. ! ¥ i

il

Education

University of Massachusetts at Amherst N Lt
Bachelor of Arts cum laude - 1983 . L ‘ X

- MZUOI’ Econornics with cmphasis on Labog. ECOI'IOI'I’HQS____ ) S

- Minor: Political Science with emphasis on locxlnl govermnment '

- Served a one-year paid intemship with the Unnlfcrs:ry s Housing Admlmsrratlon whtch lcd 10
becoming the Assistant Director of the program dunng my junior year.

- Completed a full semester academic intemshipiserving as an assistant to the Town Manager of
Action, Massachusetts. . ) ’

- Took advanced courses in Economics and Latin through the Liberal Arts Honors Program

/ Civic and Other Activities

1

- Former Big Brother volunteer, Keene

e = Current Co-Chairef Heading for Homie, i, ch:ona]‘Housmg Coalititn

- .Current co-chair of the Southwestem Region PIannmg Commission’s Economic Dcvcloprnem ;
Advisory Commmcc I

- Former volunteer at McKerley Hcalth Care Center, Keene :

- Former Chair of the Board of Directors, for thell(ccnc Day Care Center

- Current elected Vice Chairman of the Swanzcy! Zoning Board of Adjustment,

- Current founding board member and Chalrpcrson of the Monadnock Collaborative, a 501(c) (3)
organizalion formed to provide regional information and supported referral services.

- Dedicated husband and involved father of three children ages twenty-two, twenty and eight.

= Ny yer——" s o ——_e

. References available upon request.
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